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ritten Premium / Contribution

2022 RS. 4.5 siliion

= Underwriting Profit
u @\ 2022 RS. 186 mitiion

Shareholder’s Equity

2022 RS. 2,462 Million




Profit After Tax
2022 RS. 347 wmitiion

Earnings Per Share
2022 RS. 4.82

Investment Income
2022 RS. 268 wmitiion
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The vision of askari general insurance company limited

ﬁ:'-nmqer_a-u.u—u.-- ’ : ; L g -
; : (agico) is to be amongst the leading insurance companies

T TR R of the country with the clear perception of upholding the
s e - principles of corporate governance and making agico a
PRI, e i : profitable and growth oriented insurance company while
29 R G creating insurance awareness and culture.







motivated team of dedicated professionals and
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................ Sy Sy
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Head of Administration Head of Health Business Head of Legal
................ @ e e @ mmmmmm e e e

*Committees include the following:-

- Audit Committee **  Internal Audit functionally reports to the Audit Committee

B Executive, Risk Management & Compliance Committee ***  Compliance Officer functionally reports to the Executive, Risk
- Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Management & Compliance Committee

B Underwriting, Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee T Grievance Officer functionally reports to Claims Settlement
- Claims Settlement Committee Committee

- Investment Committee
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Esteemed Shareholders,

| am pleased to present this review on overall performance of
Askari General Insurance Company Limited during yet another
challenging year for the businesses primarily because of economic
and political instability. | will be sharing the role played by the Board
of Directors in dealing with these challenges.

During 2022, we remained committed towards our internal and
external stakeholders. Our priority was to continue the growth
trajectory we have built over the past decade, by taking care of our
workforce we were able to achieve highest-ever Gross Premium
Written of Rs 4.5 billion which reflects an increase of 12% over last
year. The Board continues to provide guidance towards anchoring
the Company towards growth while managing macro and micro
risks associated with the business environment. Profit contribution
from Window Takaful Operations was also registered during the
year.

The Company registered an increase in the bottom line as the
profits of the Company increased by 7% over the last year. The
underwriting profits suffered a decline of 4% due to inflation,
squeezing margins and rising claim costs. PKR depreciation
faced during 2022 also contributed negatively to the operational
performance of the company.

During the year Super Tax for two years was imposed on profits
of the company which led to decline in EPS of the company
from last year. Despite a decline in the EPS of the company,
the Board committed to its retum towards the shareholders and

recommended a disbursement of 29% (Rs. 2.9 per share) final
cash dividend for the year 2022,

Reflecting a continued recognition of the financial strength of the
Company both PACRA and VIS Credit Rating agencies awarded
Insurer Financial Strength rating as Double A+ (AA+).

On governance side, members of the Board actively contributed
towards giving a direction to the management to steer through the
economic challenges.

We are also grateful to our clients and shareholders for their
continued trust, which has been the comerstone of our continued
success. | would also like to thank the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, Insurance Association of Pakistan, and
our reinsurers for their continued support.

I am confident that the Company will overcome the challenges and
regain its growth trajectory on the on the back of guidance of Board
of Directors, innovative product portfolio while continuing to focus
on continuously improving client experience with the Company.

—

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chairman

Rawalpindi
March 15, 2023
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PRESIDENT'S

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

In 2022, Pakistan faced economic challenges, devastating floods and rapid
changes in govermment and subsequent political chaos. The current account
deficit spurred a financial crisis whereby the import-driven nature of Pakistan’s
economy suffered with the depreciation of PKR in terms of higher commmodity
and finished good prices. The policy rate was jacked up to 16% by the end of
year 2022; which resulted in reduced bank lending. Shadows over IMF program
review and thin forex reserves reduced the imports and resulting exports thereby
negatively impacting the related insurance business.

The general insurance industry gross premium revenue grew nearly 30 per
cent in 2022, The sharp increase in the revenues was primarily associated with
depreciation of PKR. The size of paid claims rose considerably mainly due to high
inflation, fire incidents at multiple industrial units and floods, in which more than
33 million people and 113 districts were affected across Pakistan. Depreciation
of the Pakistani rupee against USD triggered challenge for the insurance industry
whereby international reinsurers, due to their revenue and profitability declining
in USD terms, started tightening reinsurance capacities for Pakistan’'s general
insurance industry.

Your company posted a 12% growth in Gross Premiums Underwritten (Including
Takaful Contribution). Underwriting profits of Rs. 186 million were recorded with
a slight decline of 4% over previous year. Investment income of the company
increased by 6% over previous year. Your company was subjected to 4% Super
Tax on two years profit owing to which it's Eaming Per Share (EPS) dropped by
5% to Rs. 4.82 per share.

The new financial year will bring in its own set of challenges which are already
lined up. We are well prepared to sail through these turbulent times and hope that
2023 would be a gateway to prosperity and stability for Pakistan.

The journey of profitability, innovation and excellence would not have been
possible without the continued support and belief of the clients, employees,
business partners and regulators. We look forward to serving and working closely
with all stakeholders.

6

Mr. Abdul Waheed
President & Chief Executive




DIRECTORS'

Unconsolidated financial information for the year 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the
Directors’ Report of Askari General Insurance Company Limited
(the Company) along with Audited Unconsolidated Financial
Statements and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

Pakistan's economy has been facing various challenges in recent
years, including a large trade deficit, high inflation, and a heavy debt
burden. These challenges further accelerated in year 2022 where
political uncertainty pushed the economic uncertainty even further.
The Pakistani rupee has been on a steep depreciation against the
US dollar, which has sent the inflation skyrocketing. Moreover, the
country’s foreign exchange reserves have stayed extremely thin.

The general insurance industry in Pakistan has faced several
challenges, including intense competition, high claim costs
and economic instability. The industry has struggled to maintain
underwriting profitability. The intense competition has led to
companies offering lower premiums and broader coverage,
ultimately leading to a high claim ratio.

The devaluation of the Pakistani rupee has also impacted the
industry, as it has resulted in higher reinsurance costs for insurance
companies. With reinsurers’ revenue and profitability declining in
USD terms, Pakistan’s general insurance industry is losing ranks in
reinsurer’s priorities.

During 2022, SBP raised the policy rate to 16%, to moderate the
aggregate demand and control the rising Current Account Deficit
(CAD). This has negatively affected the overall business activity and
resultantly the insurance industry as well,

AGICO in 2022

The Company, despite challenging economic conditions,
successfully managed to underwrite a gross premium of Rs. 4.5
billion (inclusive of Rs. 456 million of Takaful contribution) in the year
2022 (2021: Rs. 4.0 bilion). During 2022, the Company’s prime
focus was to improve its underwriting performance, maintaining
better liquidity and retention of clientele. Profit after tax and Earning
Per Share (EPS) were 347 milion and 4.82 per share in the year
2022.

KEY HIGHLIGHTS
CREDIT RATING

The Company has maintained Insurer Financial Strength Rating of
‘AA+" in the year 2022, awarded by both Pakistan Credit Rating
Company Limited (PACRA) and VIS credit rating agency, with
stable future outlook.

DIGITAL INITIATIVES

IMS ERP undergoes continuous evolution every year, driven by
advancements in architecture and technology. To accommodate
these changes, we are adopting an SOA-based architecture
that enables our core ERP to seamlessly integrate data injection
and reporting across multiple channels. Additionally, we are
transitioning our application implementation to native technologies,
allowing us to cater to all devices using a single application. To
ensure rapid data retrieval, we are also implementing intermediate
No-SQL databases. Our primary objective is to provide exceptional
customer service, which can be a major challenge given the vast
and diverse customer base we serve. With the proliferation of digital
channels and the rise of mobile devices, customer engagement
tactics have become increasingly complex. Therefore, we have
tailored our ERP to be highly configurable, allowing us to meet
the unique needs of our clients. Finally, we have implemented a
comprehensive risk management and [T security system, which
helps us safeguard critical assets and navigate the changing
boundaries between client and insurer in the context of cyber risk.

The MIS team at AGICO has developed all the modules for our
business processes in-house. These modules are interlinked
and provide a unified environment for working with the same
data lifecycle. Our main advantage lies in the fact that we have
developed these modules internally. We use data analytics tools to
augment our core ERP and deliver customer-facing apps and web
portals. By developing these tools in-house, we can keep pace
with the latest market trends and incorporate quality assurance and
controls into our business processes to handle changing market
conditions.

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019 & CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (Regulations) and Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 are applicable to the Company. The Company
has duly complied with the provisions of these Regulations. A
Statement of Compliance in this regard can be viewed at page xx.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board of Directors has recommended a final cash dividend of
Rs. 2.90 per share to the shareholders whose names appear in
the share register of the Company at the start of the book closure
period.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The key performance indicators of the Company are summarized
below:



31 December
2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

Gross premium written (Inclusive

of Takaful Contribution) 4,009,173
Net premium revenue 2,172,782
Net claims 1,377,015
Underwriting profit 193,743
Investment, Rental and other

income 276,949
Profit before tax - General

Insurance Operations 449,385
Profit before tax - Window

Takaful Operations (OPF) 54,849
Profit after tax 366,879
Earmings per share (Rs.) 5.10

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

The segment wise performance analysis for each class of business
is as follows:

Motor

Motor segment shown a considerable growth in business, as a
result, it became the highest contributor in overall business with
gross premium written of Rs. 1291 million (2021: 1166 million).
Business mix of this segment is 29% of total gross premium written
in the year 2022.This segment reported contribution of Rs. 457
million (2021: Rs 448 million).

Accident & Health

Health segment was the second significant contributor towards
the total underwritten premium. This segment secured business of
Rs. 1063 million in the year 2022 (2021: Rs. 1095 million), which
translated to a share of 24% (2021: 27%) of the total business
portfolio. This segment reported contribution of Rs. 112 million
(2021: Rs. 11 million).

Miscellaneous

This segment comprises of engineering insurance, bond insurance,
crop insurance, travel insurance etc. Business mix of this segment
is 21% of underwritten business in 2022 with gross premium
underwritten of Rs. 960 million in 2022 (2021: 847 million). This
segment reported contribution of Rs. 201 million (2021: Rs 242
million).

Fire & Property Damage

Gross premium underwritten for this segment was Rs. 815 million
in the year 2022 (2021 Rs. 624 million). This segment contributed
18% towards total gross premium of the Company in the year
2022 (2021: 16%). The contribution from this segment in the year

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022 was Rs. 85 milion (2021: Rs. 78 million).
Marine, Aviation & Transport

This segment contributed 8% to our total business underwritten in
2022 with gross premium underwritten of Rs. 371 million (2021:
Rs. 277 million). This segment reported contribution of Rs. 85
million in the year 2022 (2021: Rs. 66 million).

Investment, Rental and other Income

Overall Investment and other income increased by 18% to Rs. 327
million in the year 2022, as compared to Rs. 277 milion for the
year 2021. Increase in investment and other income was majorly
due to high policy rate and investment in fixed income securities
during the year 2022.

WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

Window Takaful Operations (WTO) have been continuously adding
volume and profitability towards business of the Company and we
expect this trend to continue in the coming years as well.

The written contribution from WTO during 2022 was Rs. 458
million (2021: Rs. 403 million) while the profit from Operator's Fund
for the year 2022 was Rs. 61 milion as compared to Rs. 55 million
of 2021.

CONTRACT FOR TRACKING AND OTHER SERVICES

In accordance with section 208(2) of Companies Act, 2017,
we would like to inform the shareholders that the Company has
continued its contract for provision of tracking and other services
with Asktech (Pvt.) Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. Tracking
services have been sought to minimize the risks in motor insurance
business. We have ensured that the transactions with the said
company are on arm’s length.

AUDITORS
External Auditors

Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants audited the financial statements
of the Company for the year 2022 and being re-eligible, presented
themselves for reappointment.

Shariah Compliance Auditors

S.M. Suhaill & Co. Chartered Accountants, being re-eligible for
reappointment, as Shariah Compliance Auditors of the company,
as required under Takaful Rules 2012, were reappointed in the
Board meeting held on 16" March 2023.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
Statement of Directors Responsibilities

In compliance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting
Framework of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors
confirm the following:

. The financial statements, together with the notes forming
an integral part of these statements, have been prepared
by the management of the Company in conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017 and the Insurance Ordinance
2000; present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its

&
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operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been
maintained.
. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently

applied in preparation of these financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

. International  Accounting  Standards,  International
Financial Reporting Standards or any other regulation or
law (including but not limited to the Shariah guidelines |
principles) as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;

. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored throughout
the year.

o There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

o There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance.

. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes,
duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as at
31 December 2022, except as disclosed in the financial
statements. All such dues primarily related to the dues
of last month of the financial year 2022 and were
subsequently deposited in Government treasury in time.

o The related party transactions are approved or ratified by
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Board Performance Evaluation

The Company’'s Board of Directors undergoes a self-evaluation
exercise each year against a set of parameters. This evaluation
is performed primarily to assist the Board in evaluating its quality
of governance as it enables the Board members to perform their
roles and responsibilities more effectively towards progress of your
Company. This self-evaluation is carried out under an evaluation
methodology based on certain parameters.

The evaluation exercise addresses areas of critical importance
which include, but are not limited to, the following:

. Apprising the basic organization of the Board of Directors

o Assessment of overall roles and responsibilities of the
Board members

. Effectiveness and efficiency of the operation of the Board
and its Committees; and

o Assess performance and participation of individual Board
members

The result of the Board's self-assessment of its overall performance
was satisfactory against the set criteria.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

&

To comply with the relevant legal requirements and Articles
of Association, the Company has policy with respect to the
remuneration of Chairman, Non-Executive, Executive and
Independent Directors. Directors are only paid a fee for attending
the meetings of the Board and its sub-committees and are also
reimbursed for expenses borme by them in that regard, as per the
Articles of Association.

Key Financial Data

Key operational and financial data for the last 6 years is annexed at
page 60 of the Annual Report.

Value of investments in Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund

The value of investments in provident fund and gratuity fund, on the
basis of audited accounts, as at 31 December 2022 was:

Name of Fund 2022 2021
Rupees in Millions

Employees’ Provident Fund 113

Employees’ Gratuity Fund 143

Composition of Board

At present, the total number of directors are Nine (09) as per the
following:

a. Male Eight (08)
b. Female One (01)
Category Name of Director

Mr. M. Munir Malik
Mr. Imran Igbal

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams
(Retd)

Rizwan Ullah Khan

Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd)
Malik Riffat Mahmood

Mr. Abdul Waheed
Ms. Saima Akbar Khattak

The number of elected/nominated directors on the Board are
eight (8) whereas the Chief Executive is a “deemed director” under
section 183(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

During the year, non-executive directors of the Company, Rizwan
Ullah Khan and Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) were appointed;
therefore filing the casual vacancy.

Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors
Female Director

Board Meetings

During the year 2022, five meetings of the Board of Directors were
held. Attendance in those mestings, by each of the director (at the
Board of the Company in 2022) was as follows:



Name of Director Meetings

Attended
Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)
Rizwan Ullah Khan
Brig Mukhtar Ahmed
Malik Riffat Mahmood
Mr. Imran Igbal
Mr. M. Munir Malik
Ms. Saima Akbar Khattak 4

The Board granted leave of absence to those directors who could
not attend the Board Meetings. The list of the Board Committees,
their composition and Terms of references are given at page xxxx
of this report.

W ook~ A~ 01O

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding is given at page 273 of this report.
There was no trading in shares of the Company by the Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and their spouses and minor children.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls

The statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls is given
at page 40 of this report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The information relating to principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Company is given at page 43 of this report.

Board Committees

During the year 2022, the Audit Committee held five meetings
whereas Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

held two meetings. The composition of the Board Committees and
their terms of references are given at page 48 of this report.

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Further, the Company has four sub committees of the Board
which cover the core areas of business; these are Underwriting,
Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee, Claims  Settlement
Committee, Executive, Risk Management & Compliance
Committee, and Investment Committee. The names of members
and the terms of references of these committees are given at page
49 of this report.

OUTLOOK

Pakistan economy is passing through challenging phase. A vigilant
approach would be adopted to cater the business risks. We strive
to maintain a balance between growth, profitability, and liquidity.
Further, with a blend of insurance expertise together with well-
established and implemented internal controls system, improved
[T systems and dedicated team who strives to achieve higher
business levels as well as profits, even at most difficult imes, gives
us confidence to achieve success at times ahead.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our Regulators, the
Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP), for their continued support,
and our valued reinsurers and other stakeholders for their trust and
confidence in us. Finally, we place on record our appreciation for
the commitment and hard work of our employees towards the
growth of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Abdul Waheed
President & Chief Executive

—

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chairman — Board of Directors

Rawalpindi
March 15, 2023
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present
the Directors’ Report of Askarl General Insurance Company
Limited (the Company) along with Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

Pakistan's economy has been facing various challenges in recent
years, including a large trade deficit, high inflation, and a heavy debt
burden. These challenges further accelerated in year 2022 where
political uncertainty pushed the economic uncertainty even further.
The Pakistani rupee has been on a steep depreciation against the
US dollar, which has sent the inflation skyrocketing. Moreover, the
country’s foreign exchange reserves have stayed extremely thin.

The general insurance industry in Pakistan has faced several
challenges, including intense competition, high claim costs
and economic instability. The industry has struggled to maintain
underwriting profitability. The intense competition has led to
companies offering lower premiums and broader coverage,
ultimately leading to a high claim ratio.

The devaluation of the Pakistani rupee has also impacted the
industry, as it has resulted in higher reinsurance costs for insurance
companies. With reinsurers’ revenue and profitability declining in
USD terms, Pakistan’s general insurance industry is losing ranks in
reinsurer's priorities.

During 2022, SBP raised the policy rate to 16%, to moderate the
aggregate demand and control the rising Current Account Deficit
(CAD). This has negatively affected the overall business activity and
resultantly the insurance industry as well,

AGICO in 2022

The Company, despite challenging economic conditions,
successfully managed to underwrite a gross premium of Rs. 4.5
billion (inclusive of Rs. 456 million of Takaful contribution) in the year
2022 (2021: Rs. 4.0 bilion). During 2022, the Company’s prime
focus was to improve its underwriting performance, maintaining
better liquidity and retention of clientele. Profit after tax and Earning
Per Share (EPS) were 355 milion and 4.94 per share in the year
2022,

KEY HIGHLIGHTS
CREDIT RATING

The Company has maintained Insurer Financial Strength Rating of
“AA+" In the year 2022, awarded by both Pakistan Credit Rating
Company Limited (PACRA) and VIS credit rating agency, with
stable future outlook.

DIGITAL INITIATIVES

IMS ERP undergoes continuous evolution every year, driven by
advancements in architecture and technology. To accommodate
these changes, we are adopting an SOA-based architecture
that enables our core ERP to seamlessly integrate data injection
and reporting across multiple channels. Additionally, we are
transitioning our application implementation to native technologies,
allowing us to cater to all devices using a single application. To
ensure rapid data retrieval, we are also implementing intermediate
No-SQL databases. Our primary objective is to provide exceptional
customer service, which can be a major challenge given the vast
and diverse customer base we serve. With the proliferation of digital
channels and the rise of mobile devices, customer engagement
tactics have become increasingly complex. Therefore, we have
tallored our ERP to be highly configurable, allowing us to meet
the unique needs of our clients. Finally, we have implemented a
comprehensive risk management and [T security system, which
helps us safeguard critical assets and navigate the changing
boundaries between client and insurer in the context of cyber risk.

The MIS team at AGICO has developed all the modules for our
business processes in-house. These modules are interlinked
and provide a unified environment for working with the same
data lifecycle. Our main advantage lies in the fact that we have
developed these modules internally. We use data analytics tools to
augment our core ERP and deliver customer-facing apps and web
portals. By developing these tools in-house, we can keep pace
with the latest market trends and incorporate quality assurance and
controls into our business processes to handle changing market
conditions.

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019 & CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (Regulations) and Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 are applicable to the Company. The Company
has duly complied with the provisions of these Regulations. A
Statement of Compliance in this regard can be viewed at page xx.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board of Directors has recommended a final cash dividend of
Rs. 2.90 per share to the shareholders whose names appear in
the share register of the Company at the start of the book closure
period.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The key performance indicators of the Company are summarized
below:
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31 December
2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Gross premium written (Inclusive of 4,009,173
Takaful Contribution)

Net premium revenue 2,172,782
Net claims 1,377,015
Underwriting profit 173,624
Investment, Rental and other income 276,985
Profit before tax - General Insurance 450,609
Operations

Profit before tax - Window Takaful 54,849
Operations (OPF)

Profit after tax 367,413
Earmings per share (Rs.) 511

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

The segment wise performance analysis for each class of business
is as follows:

Motor

Motor segment shown a considerable growth in business, as a
result, it became the highest contributor in overall business with
gross premium written of Rs. 1291 million (2021: 1166 million).
Business mix of this segment is 29% of total gross premium written
in the year 2022.This segment reported contribution of Rs. 457
million (2021: Rs 448 million).

Accident & Health

Health segment was the second significant contributor towards
the total underwritten premium. This segment secured business of
Rs. 1063 million in the year 2022 (2021: Rs. 1095 million), which
translated to a share of 24% (2021. 27%) of the total business
portfolio. This segment reported contribution of Rs. 112 million
(2021: Rs. 11 million).

Miscellaneous

This segment comprises of engineering insurance, bond insurance,
crop insurance, travel insurance etc. Business mix of this segment
is 21% of underwritten business in 2022 with gross premium
underwritten of Rs. 960 million in 2022 (2021: 847 million). This
segment reported contribution of Rs. 201 million (2021: Rs 242
million).

Fire & Property Damage

Gross premium underwritten for this segment was Rs. 815 million
inthe year 2022 (2021 Rs. 624 million). This segment contributed
18% towards total gross premium of the Company in the year

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022 (2021: 16%). The contribution from this segment in the year
2022 was Rs. 85 million (2021: Rs. 78 million).

Marine, Aviation & Transport

This segment contributed 8% to our total business underwritten in
2022 with gross premium underwritten of Rs. 371 million (2021:
Rs. 277 million). This segment reported contribution of Rs. 85
million in the year 2022 (2021: Rs. 66 million).

Investment, Rental and other Income

Overall Investment and other income increased by 18% to Rs. 328
million in the year 2022, as compared to Rs. 277 milion for the
year 2021. Increase in investment and other income was majorly
due to high policy rate and investment in fixed income securities
during the year 2022.

WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

Window Takaful Operations (WTO) have been continuously adding
volume and profitability towards business of the Company and we
expect this trend to continue in the coming years as well.

The written contribution from WTO during 2022 was Rs. 458
million (2021: Rs. 403 million) while the profit from Operator’s Fund
for the year 2022 was Rs. 69 milion as compared to Rs. 55 million
of 2021.

CONTRACT FOR TRACKING AND OTHER SERVICES

In accordance with section 208(2) of Companies Act, 2017,
we would like to inform the shareholders that the Company has
continued its contract for provision of tracking and other services
with Asktech (Pvt.) Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. Tracking
services have been sought to minimize the risks in motor insurance
business. We have ensured that the transactions with the said
company are on arm’s length.

AUDITORS
External Auditors

Yousaf Adil & Co. Chartered Accountants audited the financial
statements of the Company for the year 2022 and being re-eligible,
presented themselves for reappointment.

Shariah Compliance Auditors

S.M. Suhail & Co. Chartered Accountants, being re-eligible for
reappointment, as Shariah Compliance Auditors of the company,
as required under Takaful Rules 2012, were reappointed in the
Board meeting held on 15" March 2023.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
Statement of Directors Responsibilities

In compliance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting
Framework of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors
confirm the following:

. The financial statements, together with the notes forming
an integral part of these statements, have been prepared
by the management of the Company in conformity with

&
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the Companies Act, 2017 and the Insurance Ordinance
2000; present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

o Proper books of accounts of the Company have been
maintained.
. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently

applied in preparation of these financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

o International  Accounting  Standards,  International
Financial Reporting Standards or any other regulation or
law (including but not limited to the Shariah guidelines |
principles) as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;

. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored throughout
the year.

o There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concemn.

. There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance.

. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes,
duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as at
31 December 2022, except as disclosed in the financial
statements. All such dues primarily related to the dues
of last month of the financial year 2022 and were
subsequently deposited in Government treasury in time.

o The related party transactions are approved or ratified by
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Board Performance Evaluation

The Company's Board of Directors undergoes a self-evaluation
exercise each year against a set of parameters. This evaluation
is performed primarily to assist the Board in evaluating its quality
of governance as it enables the Board members to perform their
roles and responsibilities more effectively towards progress of your
Company. This self-evaluation is carried out under an evaluation
methodology based on certain parameters.

The evaluation exercise addresses areas of critical importance
which include, but are not limited to, the following:

o Apprising the basic organization of the Board of Directors

. Assessment of overall roles and responsibilities of the
Board members

&

o Effectiveness and efficiency of the operation of the Board
and its Committees; and

o Assess performance and participation of individual Board
members.

The result of the Board's self-assessment of its overall performance
was satisfactory against the set criteria.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

To comply with the relevant legal requirements and Articles
of Association, the Company has policy with respect to the
remuneration of Chairman, Non-Executive, Executive and
Independent Directors. Directors are only paid a fee for attending
the meetings of the Board and its sub-committees and are also
reimbursed for expenses borne by them in that regard, as per the
Articles of Association.

Key Financial Data

Key operational and financial data for the last 6 years is annexed at
page 60 of the Annual Report.

Value of investments in Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund

The value of investments in provident fund and gratuity fund, on the
basis of audited accounts, as at 31 December 2022 was:

Name of Fund 2022 2021
Rupees in Millions

Employees’ Provident Fund 113

Employees’ Gratuity Fund 143

Composition of Board

At present, the total number of directors are Nine (09) as per the
following:

a. Male Eight (O8)
D. Female One (01)
Category Name of Director

Mr. M. Munir Malik
Mr. Imran Igbal

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams
(Retd)

Rizwan Ullah Khan

Brig Mukhtar Anmed (Retd)
Malik Riffat Mahmood

Mr. Abdul Waheed
Ms. Saima Akbar Khattak

Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors
Female Director
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The number of elected/nominated directors on the Board are
eight (8) whereas the Chief Executive is a “deemed director” under
section 183(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

During the year, non-executive directors of the Company, Rizwan
Ullah Khan and Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) were appointed;
therefore filing the casual vacancy.

Board Meetings

During the year 2022, five meetings of the Board of Directors were
held. Attendance in those meetings, by each of the director (at the
Board of the Company in 2022) was as follows:

Name of Director Meetings
Attended

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd) 5

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) 5

Rizwan Ullah Khan 4

Brig Mukntar Ahmed 4

Malik Riffat Mahmood 5

Mr. Imran Igbal 5

Mr. M. Munir Malik 3

Ms. Saima Akbar Knhattak 4

The Board granted leave of absence to those directors who could
not attend the Board Meetings. The list of the Board Committees,
their composition and Terms of references are given at page xxxx
of this report.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding is given at page 273 of this report.
There was no trading in shares of the Company by the Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and their spouses and minor children.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls

The statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls is given
at page 40 of this report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The information relating to principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Company is given at page 43 of this report.

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Board Committees

During the year 2022, the Audit Committee held five meetings
whereas Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
held two meetings. The composition of the Board Committees and
their terms of references are given at page 48 of this report.

Further, the Company has four sub committees of the Board
which cover the core areas of business; these are Underwriting,
Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee, Claims  Settlement
Committee, Executive, Risk Management & Compliance
Committee, and Investment Committee. The names of members
and the terms of references of these committees are given at page
49 of this report.

OUTLOOK

Pakistan economy is passing through challenging phase. A vigilant
approach would be adopted to cater the business risks. We strive
to maintain a balance between growth, profitability, and liquidity.
Further, with a blend of insurance expertise together with well-
established and implemented internal controls system, improved
[T systems and dedicated team who strives to achieve higher
business levels as well as profits, even at most difficult imes, gives
us confidence to achieve success at times ahead.
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STATEMENT ON RISK
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of askari general insurance
company limited (Company) recognizes the importance of
maintaining a good system of risk management and interal
controls to safeguard investment of shareholders and assets of
the Company. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility
for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s system
of risk management and internal controls, identifying principal
risks and establishing an appropriate control environment and
framework to manage risks and evaluating the Company’s
operational effectiveness and efficiency.

The Board has thoroughly reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the system of risk management and interal
controls of the Company. It acknowledges the fact that owing
to inherent limitations, the systems for this purpose can only
manage rather than eliminate risk of business failure. Therefore,
these systems cannot provide absolute assurance against

material misstatements or losses and the effectiveness of an

internal control system may vary over time.
SYSTEM OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board also acknowledges that all areas of the Company's
activities involve some degree of risks and appreciates that
effective risk management is part of best business management
practices aimed at successfully achieving the Company’s goals
and objectives. Operationally, the respective key management
staff is responsible for managing the risks of their departments.
Any significant risks facing the Company are highlighted at
appropriate level of hierarchy to ensure such risks are closely
monitored and appropriately addressed. The abovementioned
practices culminate into an on-going process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks that affect the achievement
of the Company’s goals & objectives.

SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The key measures implemented in the Company are as follows:-



e A well-defined organizational structure with well-defined
responsibility matrix that sets out the authority delegated to

the members of management;

e Documented policies and procedures for all significant

processes;

e A management reporting system to facilitate the collection,
processing, monitoring and dissemination of critical

information for management review and decision;

e Performance reports such as quarterly financial reviews,
business development and other corporate matters are
regularly provided to the Directors for discussion and

deliberations at meetings of the Board;

e Review of quarterly and annual financial results by the Audit
Committee;

e Regular meetings by the management team to discuss and
review reports for business development and to resolve key

operations and managements issues; and

e Reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control, with the assistance of the internal audit
function.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company has an in-house internal audit function that
constantly reviews the adequacy and integrity of the internal

control systems of the Company.
The functions of the internal audit are as follows:-

Perform audit work in accordance with the pre-approved

internal audit plan;

ii.  Carry out review of the system of intemal controls of the
Company;

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

ii. ~ Review and comment on the effectiveness and adequacy of

the existing control policies and procedures;

iv.  Provide recommendations, if any, for the improvement of the

control policies and procedures; and

v.  Review and comment on the implementation status of the

recommendations by the internal audit function.

The internal audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit reports are submitted to the Audit Committee
who reviews and deliberates on the findings before making the
necessary recommendations to the Board to strengthen its

system of internal control and policies.
CONCLUSION

The Board has utmost assurance that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are operating
adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the
risk management and internal control system of the Company.

The Board reiterates its commitment towards operating a sound
system of internal controls and effective risk management
practices throughout the Company. It is the view of the Board that
the system of internal controls is adequate, considering the size
of the Company's operations and functions; and that there was
no breakdown or weaknesses in the system of interal control
that may have resulted in a significant loss to the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board will remain vigilant
and continue implementing the necessary measures to improve
and strengthen the Company’s system of risk management and
internal controls to adapt to the ever changing and challenging

business environment.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND

UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE COMPANY
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STRATEGIC RISKS

Strategic risks are the result of Company’s strategic objectives and
business strategy decisions. The Company’'s Board of Directors
have established an Executive, Risk Management & Compliance
Committee through which it actively supervises the management
of these risks and creates mitigating strategies wherever required.

BUSINESS RISKS

These risks are associated with the commercial essence of an
entity. Common examples are reduced market share, amendments
to product-pricing regulations or other regulatory changes
undermining the organization’s profitability are a few examples of

these risks affecting the Company.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

These include risk of adverse change in the value of capital
resources resulting from operational events such as inadequacy or
failure of internal systems, personnel, procedures or controls etc.

FINANCIAL RISKS
The Company’s activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks.
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial performance. The Company
consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any
material change from previous year in the manner described in
notes below. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the
Company'’s risk management policies. These risks are divided into
following categories:

1. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to
a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking
transactions with a large number of counterparties in various
industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of
counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties
have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change
in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to
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meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The management
monitors and limits the Company’s exposure to credit risk through
monitoring of client's exposure and maintaining conservative
estimates of provisions for doubtful assets, if required. The
management believes it is not exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in
entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial
sectors.

The Company has diversified portfolio of investment to mitigate
the risk. The major credit risk exposure relates to held to maturity
investment that are placed with Government of Pakistan and
a financial institution as mentioned in note 10 to the financial
statements. The Company has also maintained a provision against
certain certificates of investments as disclosed in note 10.5 to the
financial statements.

2. MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of change in market
variable such as interest / mark up rate, foreign exchange rate
and equity prices. The objective is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
retun. The market risks associated with the Company’s business
activities are as follows:

A). Interest / Mark up rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in the market interest / mark up rates. The Company invests in
securities and has deposits that are subject to interest / mark
up rates risk. The Company limits interest / mark up rate risk by
monitoring changes in interest / mark up rates in the currencies in
which its cash and investments are denominated. The Company’s
financial liabilities are not exposed to interest / mark up rate risk.

B). Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash
flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company, at present, is not materially
exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried
out in Pak Rupees.

C). Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market
prices (other than those arising from interest / mark up rate risk
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. For
further details relating to Price Risk, please refer note no. 41 to the
financial statements.

3. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet
its financial obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities. Liquidity requirements are monitored by management to
ensure that adequate funds are available to meet any obligations
as they arise. To guard against risk, the Company has diversified
funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind,
maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and
readily marketable securities.

For further information relating to Liquidity Risks facing the
Company, please refer to note no. 41 to the financial statements.

Key Sources of Estimating Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management
and the Board of Directors to make estimates and judgments
that impact reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses and related disclosures of contingencies. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that the management and the Board
believe to be reasonable under the prevailing conditions. The
results of these estimates and assumptions form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. The key areas of estimating uncertainty, which may
have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements, are discussed below:



Provision for unearned premiums

The uneamed premium reserve is the unexpired portion of
the premium which relates to business in force at the balance
sheet date. Calculation of unearmned premiums is performed by
applying 1/365 method as specified in the Insurance Accounting
Regulations, 2017,

Premium deficiency reserve (liability adequacy test)

The Company maintains a provision in respect of premium
deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium
liability is inadequate to meet the expected future liability, after
reinsurance, from claims and other supplementary expenses
expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect
of the unexpired policies in that class of business at the balance
sheet date. The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is
recorded as an expense in profit and loss account for the year, if
any.

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

A liability for outstanding claims (including IBNR) is recognized in
respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date that is
measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments.
An actuary carries out the valuation of IBNR claims based on
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

Employees’ retirement benefits

The Company operates defined benefit pension fund and defined
benefit gratuity fund for its employees. The accounting of these
benefits is performed in accordance with International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 19 — Employee Benefits.

Deferred taxation
Deferred tax asset or liability is recognized using the balance sheet
liability method for all temporary differences between the amounts

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting and taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognized is based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Impairment in value of investments

All impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.
Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in
the provisions are recognized as income or expense in the profit
and loss account.

Investment properties

Investment Property is accounted for under cost model in
accordance with approved Intermational Accounting Standard (IAS)
40, “Investment Property” and S.R.O. 938 issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Valuation of investment
properties are also carried out by independent valuers having
relevant professional qualifications.

Useful lives of fixed assets

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and method for depreciation
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant.

Premium due but unpaid and Amounts due from other
insurers/reinsurers

The Company reviews its premium due but unpaid and amounts
due from other insurers / reinsurers portfolio to assess their
recoverability and provision required there-against. While assessing
this requirement, various factors including the delinquency and
financial position of the counter party are considered.
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The company has six committees at the board level. These
committees meet on quarterly basis to review the company’s
performance, which strengthens its governance framework.

The terms of reference and composition of these committees are
given below:

Executive, Risk Management and Compliance Committee
The terms of reference of this committee include the following:

a. Oversee the actiities of the risk management function /
department.

b. Monitoring the compliance function and the insurer’s risk profile
in respect of compliance with the laws applicable to it as well
as the internal policies and procedures.

C. Supervise and monitor matters reported using the insurer's
whistle blowing or other confidential mechanisms for
employees and others to report compliance concemns or
potential breaches, violations, or frauds.

d. Approve allinvestments over Rs. 10 million and review progress
of investments.

e. Review yearly budget and recommend its approval to the
Board.

f. Review monthly performance of the Company.
g. Review and approve claim payments over Rs. 1 million.
h. Review legal suits filed by or against the Company.

i. Consider any other matter related to the performance and
operations of the Company.

The Committee comprises of four members, including the
Chairman of this committee, three of whom are non-executive
directors. Following is the composition of this committee:

Name Status in Committee
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)  Chairman

Rizwan Ullah Khan Member

Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) Member

Mr. Abdul Waheed Member

Audit Committee
The terms of reference of this committee include the following:

e determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the
Company's assets;

e review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of

the Company, prior to their approval by the Board of Directors,
focusing on:

0 major judgmental areas;

o0 significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

o the going concern assumption;

o any changes in accounting policies and practices;
o compliance with applicable accounting standards;

0 compliance with listing regulations and other statutory and
regulatory requirements; and

o0 significant related party transactions.

e review of preliminary announcements of results prior to
publication;

e facilitating the external audit and discussion with extemal
auditors of major observations arising from interim and final
audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in
the absence of management, where necessary);

e review of management letter issued by external auditors and
management's response thereto;

e ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors of the Company;

e review of the scope and extent of interal audit and ensuring
that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the Company;

e consideration of major findings of internal investigations and
management's response thereto;

e ascertaining that the intemal control systems including financial
and operational controls, accounting systems and the reporting
structure are adequate and effective;

e review of the Company’s statement on internal control systems
prior to endorsement by the Board of Directors;

e determination  of with  relevant

requirements;

compliance statutory

e monitoring compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance and identification of significant violations thereof;
and

e consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned
by the Board of Directors.

The Committee comprises of three members, including the



Chairman of this committee, all of whom are non-executive
directors. Following is the composition of this committee:
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one is a non-executive director. Following is the composition of this
committee:

Name Status in Committee
Mr. M. Munir Malik Chairman

Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood Member

Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) Member

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The terms of reference of this committee include the following:

a. recommending human resource management policies to the
board;

b. recommending to the board the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including retirement benefits) and succession
planning of the CEQ;

c. recommending to the board the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including retirement benefits) of CFO, Company
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit; and

d. consideration and approval on recommendations of CEO on
such matters for key management positions who report directly
to CEO.

e. proposing a remuneration approach and related policies for
the insurer covering the remuneration policy, remuneration
governance and structure (including approval policy for the
level and composition of compensation), and the components
of compensation (such as the amount of fixed remuneration,
shares or options, other variable remuneration, pension rights,
redundancy pay and other forms of compensation and benefits,
as well as the performance criteria and their application);

f. reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of
Directors regarding the specific remuneration of the Board
members, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary, Compliance Officer and Head of Internal
Audit.

The committee comprises of three members including the
Chairman of this Committee, out of which one is independent, and

Name

Mr. Imran Igbal

Brig Mukhtar Anmed (Retd)
Mr. Abdul Waheed

Status in Committee
Chairman
Member
Member

Furthermore, the Company has three sub-committees of the
Board, which cover the core areas of business. These committees
meet on regular basis and are headed by non-executive directors.
The functions and composition of the committees are given below:

Underwriting, Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee

The Underwriting, Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee
formulates the under writing policy of the Company. It sets out
the criteria for assessing various types of insurance risks and
determines the premium policy of different insurance covers.
It regularly reviews the underwriting and premium policies of the
Company with due regard to relevant factors such as business
portfolio and the market development.

This committee also ensures that adequate reinsurance
arrangements are made for the Company. It peruses the proposed
reinsurances arrangements prior to their execution, reviews the
arrangements from time to time and subject to the consent of
the participating reinsures, makes appropriate adjustments to
those arrangements in the light of the market development. It also
assesses the effectiveness of the reinsurance program for the
future reference

Following is the composttion of this committee:

Name of Member Status in Committee

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)  Chairman
Mr. Zaheer Abbas Member
Mr. Shahzad Ameer Member
Mr. Shahzad Munir Member

Claims Settlement Committee

This committee devises the claims settling policy of the Company.
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It oversees the claims position of the Company and ensures that
adequate claims reserves are made. It pays particular attention
to significant claims cases or events, which give rise to a series
of clams. The Claims Setflement Committee determines the
circumstances under which the claims disputes be brought to its
attention and decide how to deal with such claim’s disputes. It
also oversees the implementation of the measures for combating
fraudulent claims cases.

Following is the composition of this committee:

Name Status in Committee
Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood Chairman

Mr. Abdul Waheed Member

M M.Qasim Member

Mr. Nadeem Anmad Member

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee is responsible for framing the investment
policy for the Company and ensuring that the overall investment
portfolio is managed in line with the approved investment policy.
The functions of the committee are outlined below:

e Reviewing overall investment portfolio and investments and
encashments made during the period under consideration;

¢ Reviewing the investment income generated in comparison
with budgeted targets during the period under consideration;

e Reviewing and recommending the annual investment budget
for the Board's approval;

e Assessing the macroeconomic and microeconomic factors
for the foreseeable future and to issue guidance for further
investments/disinvestments,  restructuring  of  investment
portfolio and reallocation of funds etc. so as to make timely
decisions to maximize profits (or reduce possible losses), within
the parameters of prudent and sound investment operations;

e Assessing the performance benchmarks for the investment
portfolio;

e To ensure that the investment decisions are in synchronization
with overall business strategy and investment policy of the
Company; and

e Torecommend changes in the investment policy guidelines, as
and when considered necessary, to the Board of Directors.,

Following is the composition of this committee:

Name Status in Committee
Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood Chairman

“Mr. M. Munir Mallk Member

M. Abdul Waheed Member

Mr. Sulerman Khalid Member

Mr. Shahid Qayyum Member
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AskTech (Pvt) Ltd.

The year 2022 has been challenging for the company as it has been for the country. We will continue facing these headwinds for some-
time till the fiscal and governance issues are sorted by the domestic and interational forces impacting the situation. There has been a
70 percent drop on the sale of new vehicles exacerbated by substantial increase in the prices of the vehicles. All imported items have
been impacted by the depreciation of the currency and more challenging environment is expected putting pressure on the availability and
prices of the devices. Insurance companies have played a major role in the growth of the tracking industry through demand created by
the bank financing of the vehicles. This particular segment has been severely affected by high interest rates, increasing vehicle prices
and regulatory restriction on financing by the banks.

We are managing the situation to the best of our abilities. The shortfall from traditional channels has been compensated by aggressive
penetration in commercial/ logistics market and we have been blessed with success due to our ability to meet the technical requirements
of this sector. Notable breakthroughs were achieved by winning the contracts for National Highway Motor Police (NHMP) and Rawalpindi
Waste Management Company. We also had a major breakthrough with logistics management in the cement sector and in the cash
security/ delivery sector. These penetrations were primarily due to our ability to provide tallormade targeted solutions to the customers.
Going forward we believe this technical capability will be critical to growth and profitability.

We tried 1o introduce a heart monitoring remote medical device to diversify the product line which did not lead to fruition due to foreign
exchange fluctuations. We continue to explore areas that complement our existing business allowing diversification and growth. We wish
to leverage on our core competencies and position ourselves in the Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) market enabling us to earn
foreign currency.

We have strengthened our HR despite the constraints as we believe the success of this organization is people dependent. We give our
sincere gratitude to our valued customers for their confidence in us and our team for their hard work and dedication. Special thanks to
our Board of Directors for their valuable guidance and support.

<

o

Mr. Taimoor Afzal
Chief Executive Officer
AskTech (Pvt) Ltd.
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GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF BALANCE SHEET
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GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF PROFIT & LOSS
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
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2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Wealth Generated

Net Premium Revenue . - 2,427,948 - 2,172,782
Commission from reinsurer . - 320,710 - 304,193
Investment income and profit on bank deposits . - 293,621 - 263,832
Rental income . - 5,991 - 4,984
Other income . o 273719 8,133
Gain on Takaful 61,369 54,849

3,137,018 o 2,808,772
Less:

Claims, commission and expenses (excluding employees
remuneration, depreciation and other taxes) 1,956,130 1,744,643

Net wealth generated 1,180,888 1,064,129

Wealth distribution:

Employees' remuneration . o 522,761 o 465,990
Government taxes (includes income tax, WWF and other taxes) . o 193,442 o 137,355
Finance cost 25,605 13,385
741,808 616,730
Distribution . .
Cash Dividend . . 197,730 197,730
Stock Dividend . . -
197,730 197,730
Retained in business: . .
Depreciation and amortization . . 92,491 80,519
Eamings . . 148,859 169,149
241,350 249,668
Total Wealth Distributed 1,180,888 1,064,129

©
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Askari General Insurance Company Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016

\We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,2019
and the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (both herein referred to as ‘the Regulations’) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Askari General Insurance Company Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended December 31, 2022 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and provision Ixxvi of the
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report
if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place
before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company’'s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable
to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022,

Morenf AdA

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 6 April 2023

UDIN: CR202210134I6¢3ERVNP



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE

Name of the Company:
Askari General Insurance Company Limited (the Company)
Year Ending: 31 December 2022

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code
of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (CCG 2016) and the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
20719 (Regulations 2019).

The Company has applied the principles contained in CCG 2016
and Regulations 2019 in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are nine (09) as per the following:

Male

Female

Eight (08)
One (01)

o o®

2. The Company encourages representation of independent,
non-executive directors and directors representing minority
interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board
includes:

Name of Director

Mr. M. Munir Malik
Mr. Imran Igbal
Ms. Saima Akbar Knhattak

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams
(Retd)

Rizwan Ullah Khan

Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd)
Malik Riffat Mahmood

Mr. Abdul Waheed
Ms. Saima Akbar Khattak

Category
Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors
Female Director

All independent directors meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under CCG 2016 and Regulations 2019.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as
a director in more than seven listed companies, including this
company.

4. Al the resident directors of the insurer are registered as
taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of
any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being
a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by a stock exchange.

5. Acasual vacancy occurred on the Board on 27th April, 2022
which was filled by the directors within 90 days thereof.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct & Ethics
and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall
corporate strategy and significant policies of the insurer. A
complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended
has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 (Act) and Regulations 2019.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations 2019 with respect
to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
Board.

The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and the Regulations 2019.

No Orientation courses / training programs have been
conducted for its directors during the year to apprise them of
their duties and responsibilities. However, policies regarding
roles and responsibilities of directors were provided to newly
appointed director.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control,
which is effectively implemented at all levels within the insurer.
The insurer has adopted and complied with all the necessary
aspects of interal controls given in the CCG 2016.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Intemal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions
of employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations.

The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the CCG 2016 and
the Regulations 2019 and fully describes the salient matters
required to be disclosed.



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE

ANNUAL

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

REPORT 2022

CFO and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) duly endorsed the
financial statements before approval of the Board.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other executives
do not hold any interest in the shares of the insurer other than
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial
reporting requirements of CCG 2016 and Regulations 2019.

The Board has put in place a mechanism for an annual
evaluation of the Board's own performance as required under
the Regulations 2019.

The Board has formed the following Management Committees
under the CCG 2016:

Underwriting, Reinsurance & Coinsurance Committee:

Name of the Member Category
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Chairman
Mr. Shahzad Ameer Member
Mr. Zaheer Abbas Member
Mr. Shahzad Munir Member
Claims Settlement Committee:
Name of the Member Category
Malik Riffat Mahmood Chairman
Mr. Abdul Waheed Member
Mr. M. Qasim Member
Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Member

Executive, Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

Name of the Member Category
AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Chairman
Rizwan Ullah Khan Member
Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) Member
Mr. Abdul Waheed Member

20. The Board has formed the following Board Committees

under CCG 2016/Regulations 2019:

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Imran lgbal Chairman
Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) Member
Mr. Abdul Waheed Member

Investment Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Malik Riffat Mahmood Chairman
Mr. M. Munir Malik Member
Mr. Abdul Waheed Member
Mr. Suleman Khalid Member
Mr. Shahid Qayyum Member

21.

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of
three (3) members, of whom one is independent director
and two are non-executive director. The chairman of the
Committee Is an independent director. The composition of
the Audit Committee is as follows:

Audit Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. M. Munir Malik Chairman
Malik Riffat Mahmood Member
Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) Member

22. During the year meeting of the Committees, were held as
follows:
Committee No of Meetings
Underwriting, Reinsurance & Coinsurance 2
Committee

Claims Settlement Committee

Executive, Risk Management &
Compliance Committee

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration 2
Committee

Investment Committee 3

Audit Committee 5
23. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have

24,

25.

been formed, documented and advised to the committees
for compliance.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function
who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Company and they are involved in the intemal audit
function on regular basis.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit possess

such qualification and experience as required under the



Mr. Abdul Waheed

Mr. Zaheer Abbas

Mr. Shahzad Ameer

Mr. M. Qasim

Mr. Hassan Shafig

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Malik

Mr. Suleman Khalid
Mr. Haseeb Gul
Mr. Ali Noor

Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. The

persons heading the underwriting, claim, reinsurance,
risk management and grievance functions / departments
possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to
their respective functions, as required under Section-12 of
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of

2000):

Name of Persons Designation
Chief Executive Officer
Head of Underwriting
Head of Reinsurance
Head of Claims

Head of Risk Management

Compliance Officer / Head of
Grievance Function

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Head of Internal Audit

26. The Statutory auditors of the insurer have been appointed

27,

28.

from the panel of auditors approved by the Commission
in terms of Section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
(Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000). The statutory auditors have
confimed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of
the partner of the firm, their spouses and minor children do
not hold shares of the insurer and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidance on code of ethics as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors and the partners of the firm involved in
audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the CEO, CFO, Head of Intemal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them
have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that

29.

30.

31.

32.

38.

34.

36.

36.

—

Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

Chairman — Board of Directors

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The Board ensures that the appointed actuary complies with
the requirements set out for him in the Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company
has been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
CCG 2016.

The Board ensures that the risk management system of the
Company is in place as per requirements of the CCG 2016.

The Board has set up a risk management function/
department, which carries out its tasks as covered under the
CCG 2016.

The Board ensured that, as part of the risk management
ratng from JCR-VIS
and PACRA, which is being used by its risk management

system, the Company obtained
function/department and the respective Committee as a risk
monitoring tool. The rating assigned by VIS and PACRA on
17 November 2022 and 14 February 2023 respectively, was
‘AA”" (Double A) with Stable outlook.

The Board has set up a grievance department/function,
which fully complies with the requirements of the CCG 2016.

The Company has not obtained any exemptions from the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan in respect of
any of the requirements of the CCG 2016 and Regulations
2019,

We confirm that all material principles contained in CCG
2016 and all requirements of the Regulations 2019 have
een complied with.

o
Abdul Waheed

President & Chief Executive

Rawalpindi
March 15, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Askari General Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Askari General Insurance Company Limited (the Company),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of
financial position, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of Company’s affairs as at December 31,
2022, and of the profit, toral comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the unconsolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter(s)

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Revenue Recognition

(Refer notes 24 and 28 of the unconsolidated financial
statements)

The Company generated its revenue primarily from two main
sources namely premiums on insurance policies (2,427.95
million) and investment income (267.96 million) for the year
ended December 31, 2022,

Premiums from insurance policies comprise of 90% of
the total revenue. Premium income is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company. Because of the
significance of the premium as key performance indicator
and risk that revenue transactions may not be recognized
in the appropriate period in line with revenue recognition
policy, we considered this area as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter included the
following:

- Obtained the understanding, evaluated the design and
implementation and operating effectiveness controls
over the process of capturing, processing and recording
of premiums;

- Assessed whether the Company's accounting policy
for revenue recognition from premium is compliant with
the requirements of applicable laws, accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan;

- Evaluated the completeness, accuracy and reliability of
the underlying policies/data used for revenue recognition
from premiums;

- Checked the premiums recorded on sample basis from
the underlying policies issued to insurance contract
holders;

- Checked the policies on sample basis where premium
was recorded close to year end and subsequent to
year end to evaluate that revenue from premiums was
recognized in the appropriate accounting period;

- Recalculated the unearned portion of premium revenue
to ensure that appropriate amount has been recorded
as revenue for the current period; and

- Assessed the relevant presentation and disclosures
made in the financial statements to ascertain that these
are compliant with laws, accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.
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Valuation of Claims Liabilities including Provision for
Incurred but Not Reported(IBNR) Claims Reserves

(Refer notes 3.9 and 25 of the annexed unconsolidated
financial statements)

As at December 31, 2022, claims liabilities represent 17%
(Rs. 763.29 million including Rs. 304.10 million of IBNR
reserves) of its total liabilities. Valuation of claim liabilities
involves  significant management judgment regarding
uncertainty in the estimation of claims. Claims liabilities are
recognized on intimation of the insured event based on
management judgment and estimate. Provision for IBNR

Our audit procedures in relation to this matter included the
following:

- Assessed the design and implementation of the relevant
controls over the measurement and calculation of
IBNR reserves and evaluated the appropriateness of
methodologies and assumptions used.

- Bvaluated the completeness, accuracy and reliability of
the underlying data used by the management for the
actuarial valuation.

- Involved an independent actuarial expert to test the

assumptions and assess the reasonableness of the
assumptions used by management and their actuary.

is calculated by the Company as required under Circular
No. 9 of 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan based on the advice of actuary.
The actuarial valuation process also involves significant
judgment and the use of actuarial assumptions.

- Checked the adeguacy of IBNR reserves and assessed
an internal consistency and a reasonableness of basic
actuarial figures with the prior year.

Because of the significance of the impact of these judgments

/ estimations and assumptions used in determination of

claims liabilites and calculation of provision for IBNR, we

consider this area as Key Audit Matter.

- Assessed whether the financial statement disclosures in
relation to the valuation of IBNR reserves are compliant
with the relevant accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such interal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

O
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a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concermn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be commmunicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b)  the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in agreement with the books
of account;
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(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the company’s business;
and;

(d)  zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter
Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 were audited by another firm of
Chartered Accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April 29, 2022.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Shahzad All.

M W

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 6 April 2023

UDIN: AR2022101349ULvcK2ws
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note Rupees in fhousand

ASSETS o
Property and equipment 5 395,144 o 404,439
Intangible assets 6 9,992 o 696
Investment property 7 36,571 o 37,881
Investment in subsidiary 8 10,000 o 10,000
Investments . o o

- Equity securities . 9 o 341,988 o 206,533

- Debt securities . 10 o 2,749,845 o 2,558,599
Loans and other receivables . 11 o 197,437 o 153,090
Insurance / Reinsurance receivables . 12 o 1,474,879 o 1,435,030
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims . 25 o 310,712 o 245,466
Salvage recoveries accrued . o 3,341 o 3,769
Taxation - payments less provision . o - 17,706
Deferred commission expense / Acquisition cost . 26 o 108,258 o 102,363
Deferred taxation . 15 o 35,595 o 21,945
Prepayments . 16 o 671,877 o 561,999
Cash and bank . 17 o 291,610 o 196,392
Total assets from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 44 366,960 331,192
Total Assets 7,004,209 6,287,100

ah ez

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive
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31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Note Rupees in thousand
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company's equity holders
Ordinary share capital 18 719,019 719,019
Share premium 19 121,161 121,161
Reserves 19 46,077 51,113
Unappropriated profit 1,575,852 1,425,034
Total Equity 2,462,109 2,316,327
Liabilities
Underwriting Provisions
- QOutstanding claims including IBNR 25 763,291 639,160
- Unearned premium reserves 24 1,823,622 1,719,511
- Unearmed reinsurance commission 26 113,761 97,068
Retirement benefit obligations 13 30,675 40,109
Staff compensated absences 14 44,185 38,633
Liabilities against assets - secured 20 199,754 213,106
Taxation - provision less payment 26,708 -
Premium received in advance 63,361 47,597
Insurance / Reinsurance payables 21 1,034,109 833,479
Unclaimed dividends 9,708 10,971
Other creditors and accruals 22 254,946 185,079
Deposits and other payables 59,061 43,137
Total Liabilities 4,423,181 3,867,851
Total liabilities from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 44 118,919 102,923
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,004,209 6,287,100
Contingencies and commitments 23
The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
M‘ (hsiaro? —

Malik Riffat Mahmood
Director

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)

Director

L.t Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

Chairman

O
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note Rupees in thousand

Net insurance premium . 24 o 2,427,948 o 2,172,782
Net insurance claims . 25 . (1,548,190) (1,377,019)
Net commission and other acquisition costs . 26 . 61,811 49,050
Insurance claims and acquisition expenses . . (1,486,379) (1,327,965)
Management expenses . 27 o (755,131) o (651,074)
Underwriting results 186,438 193,743
Investment income . 28 o 267,960 o 262,402
Rental income . 29 o 5,991 o 4,984
Other income . 30 o 53,039 o 19,663
Other expenses . 31 o (9,161) o (7,922)
Results of operating activities 504,267 462,770
Finance costs . 32 o (25,605) o (13,389)
Profit before tax from General Operations 478,662 449,385
Profit before tax from Window Takaful Operations - OPF . 33 o 61,369 o 54,849
Profit before tax 540,031 504,234
Income tax expense . 34 o (193,441) o (137,355)
Profit after tax 346,590 366,879
Other comprehensive income: . o o
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account:
Unrealised (loss) / gain on Available-for-sale investments - net . . (4,149) (21,972)
Unrealized loss on available for sale investments from Window Takaful Opera- . .
tions - OPF (net) (887) 61

' ' (5,036) (21,911)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account: o
Effect of remeasurement of staff retirement benefit plans - net ' o 2,020 o (12,788)
Total comprehensive income for the period 343,574 332,180
Eamnings (after tax) per share - Rupees 35 4.82 5.10

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

/e N —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman



UNCONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
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2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Operating cash flows

a)  Underwriting activities:
7 Premium received 4,012,553 3,401,081
7 Reinsurance premium paid (1,456,638) (831,092)
7 Claims paid (1,889,692) (1,887,268)
7 Reinsurance and other recoveries received 475,547 338,534
7 Commission paid (244,413) (229,565)
7 Commission received 316,927 144,678
7 Management expenses paid (663,831) (573,856)
7 Net cash flows (used in) / generated from underwriting activities 550,453 362,512
b) 7 Other operating activities: 7
 Income tex paid (142,065 (149.313)
7 Other expenses paid (9,700) (8,327)
7 Other operating receipts / (payments) 61,505 50,932
7 Advances to employees 16 (135)
7 Net cash used in other operating activities (90,244) (106,843)
Total cash flow generated from all operating activities 460,209 255,669
Invésting activities: 7
7 Profit / return received 276,383 218,167
7 Dividends received 19,250 17,023
7 Payments for investments (2,652,674) (5,447,827)
7 Proceeds from investments 2,310,030 5,225,840
7 Fixed capital expenditure (36,022) (18,967)
7 Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,291 3,200
Totél cash used in investing activities (80,742) (2,674)
Finéncing activities: 7
7 Financial charges paid (25,605) (13,385)
. Repayment of obligation under finance lease (68,642) (78,249)
" Dividend paid (198,993) (195,864)
7 Staff house building finance - net 884 (1,149)
7 Mark-up on staff house building finance received 477 199
7 Funds Amortized Against Leased Vehicles 7,692 -
7 Equity transactions costs paid (62) (55)
Totél cash used in financing activities (284,249) (288,503)
Net cash used in all activities 95,218 (35,405)
Caéh and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 196,392 ' 231,797
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 291,610 196,392

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

/e N —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account

460,209

Operating cash flows 255,669

7 Depreciation expense (92,490) 7 (80,519)

' Financial charges (25,605) (13,385)

7 Gain on disposal of fixed assets 2,160 7 2,563

7 Decrease in assets other than cash 134,192 7 547,309

7 Decrease in liabilities other than running finance (435,491) 7 (675,397)

7 Unrealized gain on investments - held for trading 91 7 19

7 Provision for diminution in value of investments (34,970) 7 -

' Dividend income 19,250 16,979

7 Investment income 282,069 7 234,870
 Profit on bank deposits 25,661 11,430

7 Income tax provision (193,441) 7 (137,355)

7 Gain on trading 1,521 7 534
Tax paid 142,065 149,313
Profit after taxation from General Insurance Operations 285,221 312,030
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 61,369 54,849
Profit after taxation 346,590 366,879

Definition of cash :

Cash comprises cash in hand, bank balances, stamp in hand and short term placements with banks which are readily convertible to cash in
hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

2022 2021
Caéh for the purpose of cash flow statement consists of: Rupees in thousand
' Cash and other equivalents o
 Cash in hand 1,561 1,490
' Stamp in hand 762 7 416
2,323 1,906
' Current and other accounts '
' Current accounts 24,146 45,365
' Deposit accounts 265,141 149,121
' 289,287 194,486
Total 291,610 196,392

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

/e N —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Share Reserves Total Total
capital reserves equity
Issued, Capital Revenue reserve
subscribed reserve
and
paid up Share General Available Unappropriated
premium reserve for sale profit
investment
revaluation
reserve

Rupees in thousand

Balance as at 01 January 2021 719,019 121,161 70,000 3,025 1,268,728 1,462,914 2,181,933

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - - - 366,879 366,879 366,879
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (21,911) (12,788) (34,699) (34,699)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (21,911) 354,091 332,180 332,180

Changes in owners' equity

Cash dividend 2020: Rupees 2.75 per share - - - - (197,730) (197,730) (197,730)
Equity transaction costs - - - - (55) (55) (55)

- - - - (197,785) (197,785) (197,785)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 719,019 121,161 70,000 (18,887) 1,425,034 1,597,308 2,316,327
Balance as at 01 January 2022 719,019 121,161 70,000 (18,887) 1,425,034 1,597,308 2,316,327

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - - - 346,590 346,590 346,590
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (5,036) 2,020 (8,016) (8,016)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (5,036) 348,610 343,574 343,574

Changes in owners' equity

Cash dividend 2021: Rupees 2.75 per share - - - - (197,730) (197,730) (197,730)
Equity ransaction costs - - - - (62) (62) (62)

- - - - (197,792) (197,792) (197,792)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 719,019 121,161 70,000 (23,923) 1,575,852 1,743,090 2,462,109

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

b 2 B —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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1

2.1

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Askari general insurance company limited (“the Company”) was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 as a
public limited company on 12 April 1995, The Company is engaged in non-life insurance business comprising of fire, marine,
motor, health and miscellaneous. The Company commenced its commercial operations on 15 October 1995, Shares of
the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is located at AWT Plaza, Rawalpindi. The Company has 20 branches in Pakistan. The Company is a subsidiary of
Army Welfare Trust.

The Company was granted license to work as Window Takaful Operator (WTO) dated August 10, 2015 by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on Window Takaful Operations in Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Statement of Compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting consist of:

- Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules, 2017,
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulation, 2019.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the
Insurance Rules, 2017, the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and the Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful
Accounting Regulation, 2019 shall prevail.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP’) vide its S.R.O 89(1)/2017 dated 9 February, 2017 has
prescribed format of the presentation of annual financial statements for general insurance companies. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the SECP.

Total assets, total liabilites and profit / (loss) of the Window Takaful Operations of the Company referred to as the Operator's
Fund has been presented in these financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Circular 25 of 2015 dated 9
July 2015,

A separate set of financial statements of Window Takaful Operations has been reported which is annexed to these financial
information as per the requirements of the SECP Takaful Rules, 2012.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments which are stated at their fair values and obligation under certain employee retirement benefit funds including
staff compensated absences which are measured at their present values as determined under the provisions of IAS-19,
‘Employee Benefits”.

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees in thousand, unless otherwise stated.
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2.5

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are effective in the current year

The following amendments are effective for the year ended December 31, 2022. These amendments are either not relevant
to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ -

Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfiling a contract January 01, 2022
Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended beyond

June 30, 2021 April 01, 2021
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - IFRS 16 “ Leases” January 01, 2022

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are not yet effective

The following amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of
them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact
on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure of

accounting policies January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 '‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities

arising from a single transaction. January 01, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘ Leases’ -Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently

measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ has become applicable, however as an insurance company, the management has opted
temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities
whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance and percentage of their liabilities connected with insurance
relative to their total amount of liabilities to be greater than 90%.Additional disclosures, as required by the IASB, for being
eligible to apply the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are given below:

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
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The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during that
period for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

(a) Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held for
trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and

(b) All other financial assets

As at December 31, 2022

Fail the SPPI test

Pass the SPPI test

Change in Change in
unrealized Carrvin Cost less unrealized
FairValue | gain/ (loss) Va%eg Impairment gain / (loss)
during the P during the
period period
Rupees in thousands
Financial assets
Cash and Bank* 291,610 -
Investment in equity securities -available-for-
sale 241,594  (70,5628) -
Investment in debt securities -
available-for-sale* 235,025 293
Investment in debt securities - held to
maturity 2,614,627
Loans and other receivables® 197,436 -
Total 241,594  (70,5628) 3,238,598 293

* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair

values.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these unconsolidated

financial statements.

3.1 Property and Equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for capital work in progress
which is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged on depreciable amount over the estimated
useful life using straight line method. Depreciation is charged on monthly basis where full month depreciation is charged in the
month of addition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
are incurred. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Intangible assets

Software development cost are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
entity. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Amortization is charged on the amortizable amount over the useful life of the asset by applying straight line method. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Investment property

Investment Property is accounted for under cost model in accordance with approved International Accounting Standard (IAS)
40, “Investment Property” and S.R.O. 938 dated 12 December 2002 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

Depreciation is charged on depreciable amount on straight line basis over its estimated useful life at the rate of 2.5% per
annum.

Subsequent capital expenditures on existing properties and gains or losses on disposals are accounted for in the same
manner as tangible fixed assets.

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Company as insurer has accepted insurance risk from the insurance
contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the insured. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract
for the remainder of its tenure, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations
are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts are classified into following main categories, depending on the nature and duration of risk and whether or
not the terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and property damage;

- Marine, aviation and transport;
- Motor;

- Health and accident; and

- Miscellaneous.

These contracts are normally one year insurance contracts except marine and miscellaneous classes. Normally all marine
insurance contracts are of three months period. In miscellaneous class, some engineering insurance contracts are of more
than one year period, whereas, normally travel insurance contracts and few bond insurance contracts in miscellaneous class
expire within one month time.

These contracts are provided to all types of customers based on assessment of insurance risk by the Company. Normally
personal insurance contracts e.g. vehicle, travel, personal accident, etc. are provided to individual customers, whereas,
insurance contracts of fire and property, maring, aviation and transport, accident and health and other commercial line
products are provided to commercial organizations.

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals, and any transport or property by which cargo is
transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and against third party
liability that could be incurred in an accident.

Health insurance includes coverage of in-patient-hospital, out-patient-department, medical and other related expenses of
disease, sickness or accidental injury incurred during the period of insurance.

Liability insurance contracts protect the insured against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate
activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-contractual events.

Other various types of insurance are classified in miscellaneous category which includes mainly engineering, terrorism,
personal accident, worker compensation, travel, products of financial institutions, livestock and crop insurance etc.

The Company also accepts insurance risk pertaining to insurance contracts of other insurer as reinsurance inward. The
insurance risk involved in these contracts is similar to the contracts undertaken by the Company as insurer.

Reinsurance contracts

Those insurance contracts that are issued by one insurer (the reinsurer) to compensate another insurer (the cedant) for
losses on one or more contracts issued by the cedant are reinsurance contracts. The Company enters into reinsurance
contracts with both foreign and local reinsurers.

Deferred Commission Expense

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized as an expense in accordance
with the pattern of recognition of premium revenue.

Receivables and payables under insurance contracts

Receivable under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and that impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

Reinsurance contracts held

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses
arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same year as the related premiums
for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured. Reinsurance premium is recognized as expense after taking
into account the proportion of deferred premium expense which is calculated using pattemn similar to calculation of premium
income for the same policy. The deferred portion of premium expense is recognized as prepayment.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in the manner
consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or
settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.
Reinsurance liabilities or assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.
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The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on balance sheet date. If there is any objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited (PRCL) retrocession business is booked on the basis of PRCL statements pertaining
to the previous years.

3.8 Revenue Recognition
3.8.1 Premiums

Premium written under all insurance policies is recognized as income over the period of insurance from the date of issuance
of policy to its expiry, after taking into account the uneamed portion of premiums. Amount is recorded as premium written at
the time the policy is written. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the year of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattemn of the incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating to the unexpired year
of coverage is recognized as unearned premium by the Company. The unearned premium is calculated by applying 1/365
method as specified in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017.

Premium income includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation charges recovered by the Company from
policy holders in respect of policies issued. Administrative surcharge is recognized as premium income at the time of issuance
of policy.

3.8.2 Commission

Commission expense incurred on issuance of policies is deferred and recognized as asset and is recognized in the profit and
loss account as an expense in accordance with pattern of recognition of premium revenue. Commission and other forms of
revenue (apart from recoveries) from reinsurers are deferred and recognized as liability and recognized in the profit and loss
account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium. Profit / commission, if any,
under the terms of reinsurance arrangements, is recognized when the Company'’s right to receive the same is established.

3.8.3 Investment income
Following are recognized as investment income;

- Income from held to maturity investments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield on
the investments. The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held to maturity investments is
amortized and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.

- Dividend income on securities held for trading and available for sale securities and is recognized when the Company’s right
to receive the dividend is established

- Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is recognized in profit and loss account in the year of sale
3.9 Claim expense including provision for outstanding claims including Incurred But Not Reported

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident
giving rise to the claims except as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The liability for clams include
amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims as at 31 December 2022 is made on the basis of individual case
estimates by using Chain Ladder Method (Development technique) on the basis of recommendation by an independent
actuary under the guidelines issued by Insurance Division of SECP vide its Circular 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016 for
estimation of IBNR claims reserve, which were effective from 01 July 2016.
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IBNR

Class of business Gross Net

Rupees in thousand
- Fire and property damage; 5,483 1,371
- Marine, aviation and transport; 25,051 945
- Motor; 63,799 63,154
- Accident and health; and 174,188 171,703
- Miscellaneous. 35,682 2,364

304,103 239,537

3.10 Reinsurance recoveries against claims

3.1

3.12

3.13

Claims recoveries receivables from the reinsurers are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give rise
to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received in accordance
with respective reinsurance arrangements.

Premium deficiency reserve

The Company is required as per the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of premium
deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future liability,
after reinsurance from claims, and other supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect
of the unexpired policies in that class of business at the reporting date. The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is
recorded as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company determines adequacy of liability of premium deficiency by carrying out analysis of its loss ratio of expired
periods of the contracts. For this purpose average loss ratio of last three years inclusive of claim settlement cost but excluding
major exceptional claims are taken into consideration to determine ultimate loss ratio to be applied on unearmned premium.
The liability of premium deficiency in relation to accident and health insurance is calculated in accordance with the advice of
the actuary.

No provision has been made as the unearmed premium reserve for each class of business as at the year end is adequate to
meet the expected future liability after reinsurance from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting
date in respect of policies in force at reporting date.

Provision for unearned premium and prepaid reinsurance premium ceded

In accordance with the requirements of Insurance Rules, 2017, provision for uneamed premium is calculated by applying
1/365 method. Uneamed portion of premium is recognized as liability.
The deferred portion of reinsurance premium is recognized as reinsurance premium ceded using 1/365 method.

Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for the services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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3.14 Investments in subsidiary and associate
Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are carried at cost less impairment loss, if any.

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of investments if any, in subsidiary and associates is reviewed to assess whether
there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In making an estimate of recoverable
amount of these investments, the management considers future dividend stream and an estimate of the terminal value of
these investments. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account.

Currently the Company has investment in AskTeck (Pvt.) Ltd. which is wholly owned subsidiary and classified as investments
in subsidiary at reporting dates, presented in these financial statements.

3.15 Investments
3.15.1 Classification

The classification of financial assets is determined at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Currently, the financial assets of the Company are classified into the following categories:

a) In equity securities

Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securiies which are classified as available for sale
investments is taken to a separate account which is shown in the statement of financial position as revaluation surplus.
The surplus / (deficit) arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account when actually realized upon
disposal or in case of impairment of securities. The unrealized surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities
which are classified as held for trading is taken to the profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in the values of
securities is made after considering impairment, if any, in their value and is taken to profit and loss account. Impairment
is booked when there is an objective evidence of significant or prolonged decline in the value of such securities.
Unqguoted investments are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b) In debt securities
These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Company has the intention and
ability to hold till maturity. Provision for impairment against debt securities is made in accordance with the requirements of the
law. In case of unquoted equity securities, the breakup value of- the security should be considered to determine impairment
amount. Premium or discount on debt securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity is amortized using effective
interest method and taken to the profit and loss account.

c) In term deposits
These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed (short term) maturities which the Company has the
intention and ability to hold till maturity.
Investments which are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

3.15.2 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
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3.16

3.17

settle the liability simultaneously.
Taxation

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the current year for such years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss account, except
in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Employees’ retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all eligible employees completing the minimum qualifying year of
service as specified by the scheme. The assets of the funded plan are held independently in a separate fund. Provision for
gratuity is made to cover obligations under the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial

valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2022.

Actuarial valuation was carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method based on the following significant assumptions:

2022 2021

Discount rate 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Expected retun on plan assets 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Expected rate of increase in salary 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Average expected remaining working life time of the employee 8 years 9 years

Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 20056 SLIC 2001 - 20056
The Company recognizes the actuarial gains or losses in other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognized staff provident fund as a defined contribution plan for all eligible employees. Equal

monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. The
Company's contribution is charged to income during the year.
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C) Compensated absences
Provisions for compensated absences is recognized annually to cover the obligation for compensated absences and charged
to profit and loss account. The provision is determined using the projected unit credit method.
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2022 based on the following significant assumptions:
2022 2021
Discount rate 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Expected rate of increase in salary 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Average number of leaves accumulated per annum 5 days 5 days
SLIC 2001 - 2005 SLIC 2001 - 2005
Mortality rate with 1 year setback with 1 year setback
3.18 Management expenses
Management expenses have been allocated to various classes of business on equitable basis. Expenses not allocable to
underwriting business are charged under other expenses.
3.19 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted eamnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.
3.20 Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Company accounts for segment reporting
of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance
Accounting Regulations, 2017. The reported operating segments are also consistent with the internal reporting provided to
Strategy Committee and Board of Directors which are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment. The
Company has following business segments:

Fire insurance segment provides insurance cover against damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake,
atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and impact.

Marine insurance segment provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland transit.
Motor insurance provides comprehensive vehicle coverage and indemnity against third party loss.
Accident and health provides inpatient and outpatient medical coverage.

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, personal accident, money,
engineering losses and other coverage.

Investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not allocated to any segment. Assets,
liabilites and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them while the carrying
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3.21

3.22

3.23

amount of certain assets pertaining to two or more segments have been allocated to segments on a reasonable basis. Those
assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are routed through profit and loss account.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, exchange gain and changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading. Income on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion
basis using effective rate of interest. Income on investments is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the
effective yield of such securities. Dividend income on equity investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment
is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Impairment of assets
Non-derivative financial assets

All financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers and economic conditions that correlate with
defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortized cost at both a specific asset
and collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected as allowance against financial asset measured at amortized cost.
Interest on the impaired asset is recognized only to the extent it is considered recoverable. When an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there

is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

3.24 Right of use assets and lease liability

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. The Company mainly lease properties for its operations and recognizes a right-of use asset
and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is inttially measured at cost, and subsequently at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or end of lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same
basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest
cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain
to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has elected not to recognize
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term and low value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented in the same
line item as it presents underlying assets for the same nature it owns.

3.25 Dividend Distribution

Cash dividends declared, bonus shares issued and other reserves’ appropriations are recognized in the year in which these
announcements or appropriations are made.
3.26 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the
management of its short-term commitments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the requirements of accounting and reporting standards as applicable
to insurance companies in Pakistan requires management to make judegments/estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These judgements/estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from their estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
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9)

In particular, the matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are discussed below:

Income tax

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account current
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred
taxes, estimates of the Company’s future taxable profits are taken into account.

Fixed assets, depreciation and amortization

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization method, the management uses depreciation / amortization rate which
reflects the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. These rates are reviewed
at each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets, the depreciation / amortization rates would be changed to reflect the change in pattern. Further, the
assets’ residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

The liability for IBNR is computed through Chain Ladder Method (Development technigue) in light of the guidelines issued by
Insurance Division of SECP vide its Circular 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016 for estimation of IBNR claims reserve, the liability
for IBNR for all classes of business is based on actuary recommendation. Any significant change in assumption used event
may affect the management's judgement which could affect the provision made for IBNR. Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and are measured at the amount expected to be
received.

Premium deficiency reserves

The Company carries out an analysis of loss / combined ratios for the expired year, such ratio being calculated after taking
into account the relevant IBNR provision for the determination of premium deficiency reserve for each class of business.

Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plan is provided to eligible employees of the Company. Calculations in this respect require assumptions to be
made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration, the expected long-term returm on
plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes
in the underlying assumptions.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
pest estimates.

Provision against premium due but unpaid & amount due from other insurers/reinsurers

The Company reviews its premium due but unpaid and amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers portfolio to assess their
recoverability and provision required there-against. While assessing this requirement, various factors including the delinquency
and financial position of the counter party are considered.

Classification of investments

In classifying investments as “fair value through profit and loss” the Company has determined securities which are acquired
with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements.
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In classifying investments as “held-to-maturity” the Company has determined financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity.

The investments which are not classified as fair value through profit and loss or held to maturity are classified as available for
sale.

i) Allocation of management expenses

Management expenses which are not specifically related to a class of business are allocated on all classes of business on
equitable basis.

i) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past event and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

k) Fair value of investments

The fair value of held for trading and available for sale investments is determined by reference to their quoted closing repurchase
price at the reporting date. Any change in the estimate might effect carrying amounts of investments held for trading with
corresponding effect in profit and loss account. Fair value of held to maturity instruments is determined with reference to
general interest rates prevailing in the market. Fair value of held to maturity investments is determined for disclosure purpose
only.

) Lease term
The Company applies judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that includes

renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease
term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liability and right of use assets recognized.

2022 2021
Note Rupees in thousand
5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Capital work-in-progress 51 - -
Operating assets 52 395,144 404,439
395,144 404,439
5.1 Movement in Capital work-in-progress is as follows:
Opening balance - 1,637
Additions - 9,914
Transfers - (11,550)

Closing balance - -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
This represents the carrying amount of two offices in Islamabad Stock Exchange building, classified as investment property
based on the management’s intention to hold the property for eaming rentals and / or capital appreciation.

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Cost
' Balance at beginning of the year - 52,400 - 52,400
Balance at end of the year 52,400 52,400
Depreciation
' Balance at beginning of the year ' (14,519) (13,209)
' Depreciation for the year ' (1,310) (1,310)
Balance at end of the year ' (15,829) (14,519)
36,571 37,881
Usetul life (years) 40 40
71 The market value of the investment property as on 31 December 2022 is Rs. 117.9 milion (20271: Rs. 100.084 million)
as per valuation carried out by an independent valuer. Useful life of the investment property is estimated to be 40 years.
72 The amount of depreciation has been allocated to management expenses.
2022 2021
8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY Note Rupees in thousand
AskTech (Private) Limited - At cost 8.1 10,000 10,000
Rupees in thousand
Country of % interest
8.1 Name Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss)
Incorporation held
7 7 7 2022 7 7
AskTech (Private) Limited  Pakistan 40,547 22,688 78,741 7,747 100
2021
AskTech (Private) Limited  Pakistan 29,659 19,098 55,201 782 100
8.2 AskTech (Private) Limited is engaged in establishing, developing, expanding, enhancing, managing and operating information

technology services, GPS/GSM based tracking and systems. The Company acquired 100% shareholding in AskTech
(Private) Limited in February 2019. The Company holds 99.96% shares of AskTech (Private) Limited whereas the directors
nominated by the Company on the Board of Directors of AskTech (Private) Limited hold qualification shares of 0.04%.



NOTES TO AND FORMING
PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022 2021
9 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES Note , Rupees in thousand

' Fair value through profit and loss ' 9.1 o 100,397 o 673
Available-for-sale 9.2 241,591 205,859

Total equity securities 341,988 206,533

Number of shares / units 2022 2021
2022 2021 Cost Carrying Cost Carrying
value value

Rupees in thousand

9.1 ' Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds
786 Smart Fund (Dawood Income

. Fund) . - 7,897 - 654 673
AWT Financial Sector Fund 998,443 - 100,306 100,397 -
998,443 7,897 100,306 100,397 654 673
2022 2021
Cost Impairment  Carrying Cost Impairment /  Carrying
/ provision value provision value

Rupees in thousand

9.2 ' Available-for-sale
. Listed shares 312,120 (34,972) 277,148 232,161 - 232,161
Mutual funds - AFS ' - - | 2939 - 2,039
' Unrealized (deficit)/surplus on ' : : : -
. revaluation . - - (85,557) - - (29,241)
312,120 (84,972) 241,591 235,100 - 205,859




NOTES TO AND FORMING
PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 2021
Cost Impairment  Carrying Cost Impairment /  Carrying
/ provision value provision value
Rupees in thousand
' Listed shares - -
 Askari Bark Limited 3,993 - 3903 3388 3,353
' Avanceon Limited - - - 2,647 - 2,647
' Bank Al Habib Limited - - - 4,789 4,789
Crergyico PK Limited : : : 730 732
' Engro Corporation Limited - - - 1,644.. 1,644
' Fauji Cement Company Limited 1,571 - 1,571 846.. 846
' Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited - - - 6,444.. 5,444
*Fauj Fertiizer Company Limited - : - 14451 14,451
Faysal Bank Limited 676 _
' GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 1,178 (476) 702 2,697 2,697
. Habib Bank Limited 35,874 . (15,481) N 20,394.. 21 ,068.. 21,063
' Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 7,662 (2,176) - 5,487 4,674.. 4,674
Intemnational Indlusries Limited 3,314 - 3314 89 893
' International Steels Limited 3,768 - 3,768 1,722.. 1,722
* Lucky Cement 9429 - 9429 4353 4,858
. MCB Bank Limited . 129,021 . - 129,021 N 68,928“ 58,923
National Refinery Limited 3,210 - 3210 756 756
' Nishat Mills Limited 2,796 - 2,796 6,160 6,160
' Oil & Gas Development Company 24,313 - 24,313 15,905.. 15,905
' Pak Elektron Limited - - - 4820 4,820
' Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited 18,036 . (6,083) - 11 ,953.. 15,465.. 156,465
' Pakistan Petroleum Limited 19,850 . - 19,850.. 11,476.. 11,476
. Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 30,006 . (9,560) N 20,447.. 24,704.. 24,704
* Sui Northem Gas Pipeline Limited 6,484 - 6484 6857 6,857
System Limited - - - 5428 5,423
. The Searl Company Limited 2,741 . (1,196) N 1,545.. 1,418.. 1,418
. United Bank Limited 8,198 - 8,198 11,148 11,148
. 312,120 . (34,972) N 277151 N 232,161 B 232,161
' Unrealized surplus / (deficit) on revaluation (85,557) (29,709)
241,594 202,452
Mutual funds B
Dawood Income Fund . . - 2,039 2,939
- - - 2,989 - 2,939
' Unrealized (deficit) / surplus on revaluation - 469
- 3,408
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9.3 Investments in units / shares - quoted
Number of Face value Investee name Carrying value
shares / units per sh_are /
unit
2022 2021 Rupees 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
N - - Open-End Mutual Funds - .
- 39,989 - 100 - 786 Smart Fund (Dawood Income Fund) 2,939 .
Carrying value - before provision - 2,039
' Provision for dirﬁihution in market value R B - '
Carrying value - 2039
Market value - 3,408
10 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES
2022 2021
Cost i Con  vanes  Cot RS R
. Note Rupees in thousand
. HELD TO MATURITY .
. Government Securities
. Pakistan Investment Bonds . 10.1 2,172,187 - 217287| 2,174,760 - 2,174,760
. Treasury Bills . 10.2 . 342,340 : . 342,340 122,007” . 122,007
. . 2,514,527 - 2,514,527 2,296,767 - 2,296,767
. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE : . . . .
. Term Finance Certificates . 10.3 160,000 - 160,000 160,000 160,000
. Sukuks . 10.4 . 75,025 : - 75,025 100,025” 100,025
. Unrealized surplus on revaluation . . : 293 : 1,807
. 235,025 - 235,318 260,025 261,832
. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES : . .
. Certificates of Investments 11,128 : (11,128) ) - 11,128.. (11,128) -
2,760,680 (11,128) 2,749,845 2,567,920 (11,128) 2,558,599
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10.1 Pakistan Investment Bonds
Face Value RZ,:S;) P:;;ﬁe"n ) Type of Security Maturity 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
50,000,000 8.75% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 12-Jul-28 40,973 39,927
37,500,000 8.75% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 12-Jul-28 . 30,767 - 29,987
25,000,000 9.00% : On Maturity : Pakistan Investment Bonds : 19-Sep-22 . o 24,365
25,000,000 9.50% : On Maturity : Pakistan Investment Bonds : 19-Sep-24 . 23,927 B 23,389
25,000,000 8.00% . On Maturity : Pakistan Investment Bonds : 10-Dec-30 . 22,336 B 22,123
50,000,000 9.50% . On Maturity : Pakistan Investment Bonds : 19-Sep-24 . 50,071 B 50,095
150,000,000 9.50% . On Maturity : Pakistan Investment Bonds : 19-Sep-24 . 149,789 B 149,643
200,000,000 7.00% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 20-Aug-23 . 197,429 B 193,732
120,000,000 7.50% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 156-Oct-25 . 113,481 - 111,522
50,000,000 8.00% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 10-Dec-30 . 44,199 - 43,740
200,000,000 7.00% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 20-Aug-23 . 198,148 - 195,491
350,000,000 7.50% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 156-Oct-25 . 336,597 - 332,511
175,000,000 7.50% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 15-Oct-25 . 168,217 - 166,150
200,000,000 8.00% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 10-Dec-30 . 181,368 - 179,857
100,000,000 8.00% ) On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds : 10-Dec-30 . 90,584 - 89,821
70,000,000 7.00% R On Maturity Pakistan Investment Bonds “ ZOAUQQS . 69379 o 68,489
140,000,000 7.50% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds . 15—Oot—25” 134,418 - 132,719
60,000,000 8.00% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds . 10—Dec—80.. 54,015 - 53,533
240,000,000 9.50% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds . 19—Sep—24” 241,755 - 242,602
25,000,000 9.00% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds . 19—Sep—22” - 25,064
30,000,000 7.50% . On Maturity . Pakistan Investment Bonds . 29—Apr—27” 24,734 - -
2,172,187 2,174,760

10.1.1

These carry interest at effective rate of 8.49% to 13.49% per annum (2021: 8.56% to 13.60% per annum) and will mature by 10 December
2030 (2021: 10 December 2030). Market value of PIBs carried at amortised cost amounts to Rs. 2,310.7 million (2021: Rs.2,052.5

million).
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10.2 Treasury Bills
Profit Profit . Maturity
Face Value Rate % Payment Type of Security Date 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
125,000,000 10.66%  Maturity Treasury Bills 10-Mar-22 - 122,007
75,000,000 16.67%  Maturity Treasury Bills 12-Jan-23 72,389 -
175,000,000 16.70%  Maturity Treasury Bills 26-Jan-23 168,898 -
105,000,000 16.97%  Maturity Treasury Bills 9-Mar-23 101,053 -
342,340 122,007
10.2.1 Treasury bills are placed as statutory deposit with State Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the requirements of clause (a) of sub section
2 of section 29 of Insurance Ordinance, 2000.
10.3 Term Finance Certificates
Number of certificates Cr?d't Mark up Rate Investee Value of Certificates
rating name
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
15,000 15,000 AA 6-M KIBOR Plus 150 bps Bank Al Habib 75,000 75,000
15,000 15,000 AA 6-M KIBOR Plus 150 bps Bank Alfalah 75,000 75,000
2,000 2,000 A 6-M KIBOR Plus 200 bps Soneri Bank 10,000 10,000
160,000 160,000
10.3.1 The term finance certificates have a maturity of ten years and are maturing on 05 January 2028 to 20 December 2028 (2020: 05
January 2028 to 20 December 2028)
10.4 Sukuks
Number of certificates Mark up Rate Investee name Value of Certificates
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
50 50 Based on Monthly Shariah Pool Meezan Bank Limited 50,025 50,025
The Hub Power
500 50 3-M KIBOR Plus 190 bps Company Limited 25,000 50,000
Cost of certificates 75,025 100,025
Unrealised surplus on revaluation 293 1,807
Carrying value 75,318 101,832
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2022 2021
' Note . Rupees in t'housand

11 . LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES .
. Sundry receivables 111 137,573 . 100,693
. Advances to employees 1.2 . 342 . 357
. Staff house building finance 11.3 . 3,129 . 4012
Accrued investment income 56,393 48,029
197,437 153,090

1.1 . Sundry receivables .
. Security deposits 16,333 . 16,693
. Advances to suppliers - unsecured, considered good 3,373 . 1,836
. Receivable against sale of laptops 5,060 . 3,152
. Receivable against sale of vehicles 611 . 611
. Receivable from subsidiary 5,003 . 598
. Deposit against vehicles ljarah 28,220 . 17,454
. Health Claim recoverable 21,557 . 31,170
. Earmest money 49,028 . 18,345
Other receivables - unsecured, considered good 8,388 10,834
137,573 100,693
1.2 These represent short term interest free advances given in accordance with terms of employment. These are secured and

considered good. The maximum amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. Nil (2021:

Rs. Nil) and outstanding balance at 31 December 2022 is Rs. Nil (2021 Rs. Nil).

1.3 These represent housebuilding finance loans given to employees in accordance with terms of employment. Interest is

charged at the rate of 6 months KIBOR. These are secured and considered good.

2022 2021
12 - INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES . Note Rupees in t.housand

. Due from insurance contract holders 12.1 1,336,412 . 1,279,055

. Less: provision for impairment of receivables from . .
insurance contract holders 12.2 (9,965) (10,174)
1,326,447 1,268,881
. Due from other insurers / reinsurers 12.4 . 149,051 171,541

. Less: provision for impairment of receivables from .

other insurers / reinsurers 125 . (619) (5,392)
148,432 166,149
1,474,879 1,435,030
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121 Due from insurance contract holders

This includes premium amounting to Rs. 2,712 thousand (2021: Rs. 2,611 thousand) and Rs. 81,628 thousand (2021:
Rs. 78,077 thousand) receivable from the Parent and associated undertakings respectively, the movement of which is as
follows:

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Receivable from parent:
Balance at beginning of the year 2,611 1,639
Insurance premium written (including government levies,

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 10,619 10,776

Premium received during the year (10,518) (9,804)
Balance at end of the year 2,712 2,611

Payable / (Receivable) from subsidiary:

. Balance at beginning of the year . o (599) o 13,297
. Services acquired . - 74,537 o 50,327
Paid during the year (78,941) (64,223)
Balance at end of the year (5,003) (599)

Receivable from associated undertakings:
Balance at beginning of the year 78,077 69,079
Insurance premium written (including government levies,

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 147,782 138,287

Premium received during the year (144,232) (129,289)
Balance at end of the year 81,627 78,077

12.2 . Provision for doubtful balances .
. Balance at beginning of the year . o 10,174 o 20,760
Provision made / (reversed) during the year (209) (10,586)
Balance at end of the year 9,965 10,174
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2022

Rupees in thousand

12.3 Age analysis of amounts receivable from related
. parties:
. Receivable from parent: .
. Upto 1 year 2,457 . 2,253
. 110 2 years 228 . 242
2 to 3 years 27 116
2,712 2,611
. Receivable from associated undertakings: .
“Upto 1 year 79,314 74,453
. 110 2 years 1,463 . 2,288
2 to 3 years 850 1,336
81,627 78,077
12.4 . Due from other insurers / reinsurers .
. Considered good 148,432 . 171,541
Considered doubtful 619 5,392
149,051 176,933
Provision for doubtful balances (619) (5,392)
148,432 171,641
12.5 . Provision for doubtful balances .
. Balance at beginning of the year 5,392 . 15,500
Provision made during the year (4,773) (10,108)
Balance at end of the year 619 5,392
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13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The company operates an approved gratuity scheme for all employees. The eligible employees under the scheme are 327
(2021 : 327). The latest actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2022 under the Projected
Unit Credit Method as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, the
details of which are as follows:

2022 2021
' Note - Rupees fn fhousand
13.1 . Amount recognized in the balance sheet . o o
. Present value of defined benefit obligation . 13.3 - 212,020 o 178,024
Benefits due but not paid during the year 4,012 4,067
. . N 216,032 182,091
Fair value of plan assets 13.4 (185,357) (141,982)
Net liability at end of the year 30,675 40,109
13.2 . Movement in liability recognized in balance sheet . - o
. Balance at beginning of the year . o 40,109 o 36,469
Expense for the year 19,113 16,461
. Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in other comprehensive ' o -
income (8,015) 18,011
. . N 56,207 70,941
Contributions to the fund during the year (25,532) (30,832)
Balance at end of the year 30,675 40,109
13.3 . Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefits obligation. .
. Present value of obligations as at beginning of the year . o 178,024 o 142,393
~ Current service cost . - 16,378 14,653
. Interest cost . o 20,597 o 13,883
. Benefits paid . - (2,972) o (5,5606)
. Benefits due but not paid . o (2,507) o (1,822)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 2,500 14,483
Present value of obligations as at end of the year 212,020 178,024
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2022 2021
13.4 . Movement in the fair value of plan assets Rupees ih t.housand
. Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year 141,982 . 108,435
. Interest income on plan assets 17,861 . 12,075
. Contribution to the fund 25,532 . 30,832
Benefits paid (5,533) (5,832)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 5,515 (3,528)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 185,357 141,982
13.5 . Expense for the year .
. Current service cost 16,378 . 14,653
. Interest cost 20,596 . 13,883
Interest income on plan assets (17,861) (12,075)
Expense for the year 19,113 16,461
13.6 The estimated charge to profit & loss account for the defined benefit plan for the year ending December 31, 2023 is Rs.
18,404 thousand and expected contribution for the year ending 31, 2023 is Rs 25,533 thousands.
13.7 Composition of fair value of plan assets
' 2022 2021
Fair value Percentage Fair value Percentage
Rupees in - Rupees in
. thousand % thousand %
. Debt instruments 22,442 N 12% 67,799 B 48%
- Cash and bank balances 639 0% 20,962 15%
Mutual funds 162,277 88% 53,221 37%
Fair value of plan assets 185,358 100% 141,982 100%
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13.8 Comparison of present value of defined obligation, fair value of plan assets and surplus / (deficit) of gratuity fund for the last
four years:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 212,020 178,024 142,393 124,970 107,728
Fair value of plan assets (185,357) (141,982) (108,435) (89,814) (80,3083)
Deficit 26,663 36,043 33,958 35,156 27,425

Effect of remeasurement:

- Actuarial (gain) / loss on

experience adjustment

on obligation 2,500 14,483 1,488 (2,409) 2,602

- Actuarial (loss) / gain on

on plan assets 5,515 (3,528) (2,046) (9,262) (8,511)

13.9 Sensitivity Analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumption used. The following table summarizes the
impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period as a result of a change in the respective
assumptions by one percent.

Increase / decrease in defined benefit obligation

2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
1% 1% 1% 1%
. B increase N decrease inCrease B decrease
 Discount rate 195693 230689 163,671 195,140
 Future salary growth 230,719 195,374 195,164 163,230

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as
when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized within the statement of financial position.
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2022 2021
13.10 . Significant Actuarial Assumption per 'an.num
. The following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme;:
. a) Expected rate of increase in salary level 14.50% . 11.75%
. b) Discount rate 14.50% . 11.75%
13.11 Risks
. These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as \ongévity risk, currency ris'k, i'nterest rate risk,
final salary risk, asset volatility, withdrawal and market (investment) risk.
2022 2021
Note . Rupees fn fhousand
14 STAFF COMPENSATED ABSENCES 141 44,185 38,633
The company provides leave encashment plan to all employees. The eligible employees under the scheme are 327 (2021
. 327). The latest actuarial valuation of leave encashment was carried out as at December 31, 2022 under the Projected
Unit Credit Method as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, the
details of which are as follows:
141 Movement in liability
. Balance at beginning of the year . 38,633 . 34,320
Charge for the year 14.1.7 7,526 7,573
Benefits paid (1,974) (3,260)
Balance at end of the year 44,185 38,633
14.1.1  Charge for the year
. Current service cost 3,150 . 3,104
Interest cost 4,423 3,187
Actuarial loss / (gain) on experience adjustment 47) 1,282
7,526 7,573
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2022 2021

15 DEFERREDTAXATION Rupees in thousand

Deferred tax debits arising in respect of:

- Provision for impairment in loans and receivables investménts 3,673 ' 3,227
- Effect of remeasurement of staff retirement benefit plans ' 5,253 ' 6,248
- Unrealized losses on AFS investments 11,637 . 7,956
- Provision against premium due but unpaid 3,288 . 2,950
- Provision against amounts due from other insurers / reinsu'rers 204 ' 1,664
- Provision for diminution in value of AFS investments ' 11,540 '
35,595 21,945
15.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
As at January 01 21,045 13,748
. Recognized in profit & loss account:
- Provision for impairment in loans and receivables investme.nts 446
- Provision against premium due but unpaid . 338 (3,070)
- Provision against amounts due from other insurers / reinsu'rers (1,359) (2,931)
- Provision for diminution in value of AFS investments ' 11,540
. Recognized in OCI
o Effect of remeasurement of staff retirement benefit plans (995) 5,223
o Unrealized losses on AFS investments 3,681 8,975
As at December 31 35,595 21,945
16 PREPAYMENTS
. Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 665,084 . 559,058
' Prepaid rent 2,624 ' 75
Others 4,169 2,866
671,877 561,999
17 CASH AND BANK
. Cash & cash equivalents:
" Cash in hand 1,561 1,490
. Policy & Revenue stamps, Bond papers 762 . 416
2,323 1,906
Cash at bank
' Current accounts 24,146 ' 45,365
. Deposit accounts - local currency 265,141 . 149,121
289,287 194,486
171 These carry an annual effective markup rate ranging from 3.7% to 14.5% (2021 : 2.52% to 8%).
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17.2 During the year, the Company has obtained running finance facility of Rs. 300,000 thousand from Bank Al Habib Limited
at 3 months average KIBOR + 0.4%, prevailing on the date of disbursement. Tenor of the facility is one year. 110% lein is
marked over market value of Pakistan Investment Bonds as security procured through Bank Al Habib's account maintained
at Pak Oman Investment Bank.

18 SHARE CAPITAL 2022 2021
18.1 Authorized Capital Rupees in thousand
100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
18.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Rupees in thousand

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as:

24,358,699 B 24,358,699 - fully paid cash shares . 243,587 B 243,587

47,543,196 47,543,196 - fully paid bonus shares 475,432 475,432

71,901,895 71,901,895 719,019 719,019
18.3 Army Welfare Trust (AWT) and directors hold 42,600,734 (2021; 42,600,734) and 545,939 (2021: 549,939) ordinary

shares of the Company respectively at the year end.

2022 2021
' Note o Rupees fn t.housand
19 - RESERVES
. Capital reserve . - o
Share premium . o 121,161 o 121,161
: Revenue reserves .
General reserves . . 70,000 70,000
AFS Revaluation reserve . (28,923) (18,887)
46,077 51,112
167,238 172,273
20 - LEASE LIABILITIES . .
. Lease liability - right of use assets - rental properties . o 112,202 o 140,879
Lease liabilities - right of use assets - vehicles 87,552 72,227
199,754 213,106
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20.1 Lease liabilities - right of use assets
2022 2021
. Financial Present value - Financial Present value
Minimum L Minimum .
lease charges of minimum lease charges of minimum
avments for future lease avments for future lease
pay periods payments pay!

periods payments

Rupees in thousand
Not later than one year 80,398 23,824 56,785 74,989 14,932 60,057

Later than one year and not

later than five years 141,624 30,832 110,792 156,989 33,778 123,211
. Later than five years . 52,688 B 20,510 - 32,177 B 57,639 B 27,801 : 29,838
274,710 75,166 199,754 289,617 76,5611 213,106
20.2 Interest rate used in calculation of lease liability is 6-months KIBOR +.7% for vehicles and 1-year KIBOR + 1% for rental
properties
2022 2021
Note Rupees fn fhousand
21 INSURANCE / REINSURANCE PAYABLES .
. Amount due to other insurers . o 604,421 o 429,064
Amount due to foreign reinsurers 429,688 404,415
1,034,109 833,479
22 ~ OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS .
. Agents' commission payable . o 78,762 o 61,256
. Tax deducted at source . o 5,148 o 5,107
. Federal excise duty / federal insurance fee . o 75,903 o 45,949
. Accrued expenses . o 11,014 o 7,002
. Fund received against leased vehicle . 221 o 22,583 o 20,029
. Fund received against vehicle ljarah . 22.1 o 13,550 o 7,733
. Unearned rental income . o 2,376 o 5,749
Others 45,610 32,253
254,946 185,079
221 . Funds received from executives o
. Fund received against leased vehicle . o 9,589 o 6,330
Fund received against vehicle ljarah 5,472 197
15,061 6,527
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23
23.1
23.1.1

23.1.2

23.1.3

23.1.4

23.1.5

23.1.6

23.1.7

23.1.8

23.2
23.2.1

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Inland Revenue authority framed an order under section 161/205 of the Ordinance creating a tax demand of Rs. 4.25
million for alleged non-withholding of tax on various heads of account for the Tax Year 2015. The Company filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"] against the impugned order. The CIR(A) confirmed the
order. Subsequently, being aggrieved with the order, the Company filed second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue [ATIR], which is subjudice till date.

Tax assessments for Assessment Years 1996-1997 to 1999-2000 were finalized by the tax authorities mainly by curtailing
management expenses and thereby raising demands aggregating to Rs. 6.6 million. On appeals filed by the Company, these
assessments were set aside by the ATIR. The Department has filed reference applications to the High Court on question of
admissibility of management expenses for the Assessment Years 1996-1997 to 1999-2000.

The Inland Revenue Tax authorities issued an order raised a demand of Rs. 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim of
input tax credit, short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period 2017. The Company being aggrieved with decision
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who uphold the decision. Subsequently the Company filed
an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending disposal to date.

The Inland Revenue Tax authorities issued a demand of Rs. 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim of input tax credit,
short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period 2017. The Company being aggrieved with decision filed an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who uphold the decision. Subsequently the Company filed an appeal before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending disposal to date.

Taxation officer of Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) framed the Order-in-Original No 285 of 2022 dated 11 February 2022 raising
atax demand of Rs 288.13 million on account of non-payment of Sindh sales tax on reinsurnace premiums and commission
from reinsurer for the period January 2014 to Decemeber 2015. The management believes that the nature of demand is not
appropriate as per applicable rules/laws/regulations and would result in double taxation and has filed an appeal before the
CIRA).

Taxation officer of SRB issued show cause notice No 818082 dated 28 January 2022 alleging the Company for under dec-
laration of insurance premiums and short payment of sindh sales tax for tax periods January 2014 through December 2015.
The Company has obtained stay from High Court of Sindh against the notice.

The Inland Revenue Tax autorities issued an Order-in-Origianl No 04/2020 dated 31 december 2020 raising a demand of
Rs 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim input tax credit and short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period
2017. The Company preferred an appeal before the CIR(A) who deleted the tax demand to the extent of Rs 9,277 and upheld
the remaining impugned tax demand throguh Order-in-Appeal No 06 dated 12 July 2021. Being aggrieved with the Appellate
Order of CIR(A) , the Company has filed an appeal before the ATIR which is pending disposal. The Company has deposited
total 16% of the impugned tax demand to avalil stay order against the recovery of the impugned tax demand.

Certain claims have been filed against the Company. The management, based on the opinion of its legal counsels, believes
that the above mentioned matters are most likely to be decided in favour of the Company at superior appellate forums and
no charge is required to be recognised and carried in the financial statements. Management on the basis of nature and facts
of the claims believes that expected outcome of these cases will be favorable and adverse financial impact, if any, on these
financial statements is not likely to be material.

Commitments

The Company’s commitment under ljarah arrangement with Meezan Bank Limited is Rs. 67.04 million (2021: Rs 37.6 million). The
contracts have a term of five years.

2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
Future Minimum ljarah (lease) payments are as under:
Not later than one year 16,861 9,139
Later than one year and not later than five years 50,186 28,469

67,047 37,608

23.2.2

liarah payments recognized in expense during the year 16,506 8,067

The Company's commitment under rental agreements with lease term of less than 1 year are:
Not later than one year 2,624 2,385

Rental payments recognized in expense during the year 10,544 10,072
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2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

24 | NET INSURANCE PREMIUM
' Written gross premium ' - 4,042,262 - 3,606,497
. Add:  Unearmed premium reserve opening ' - 1,719,511 - 1,493,846
' Less: Unearned premium reserve closing ' - 1,823,622 - 1,719,511
Premium earned 3,938,151 3,380,832
. Less: Reinsurance premium ceded . 1,616,229 1,323,827
. Add: Prepaid reinsurance premium opening . . 559,058 443,281
Less: Prepaid reinsurance premium closing . . 665,084 559,058
Reinsurance expense . 1,510,203 1,208,050
2,427948 2,172,782
25 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS

Claims paid 1,889,692 1,887,268
Add: Qutstanding claims including IBNR closing 763,291 639,160
Less: Qutstanding claims including IBNR opening 639,160 735,247
Claims expense 2,013,823 1,791,181
. Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries received . . 400,386 549,746

Add: Reinsurance and other recoveries in . .
respect of outstanding claims closing 310,712 245,466

Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries in . .
respect of outstanding claims opening . 245,465 381,046
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 465,633 414,165
1,548,190 1,377,015

251 Claim Development

The Company maintains adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of claim payments are normally
resolved within one year. The following table shows the development of the claims over a period of time. All amounts are
presented in gross numbers before reinsurance.
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Accident Year 2%;;& 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
Rupees in thousand
At the end of accident year 8,920 18,534 25,764 29,786 1,735,753 2,058,520
One year later 10,602 22,302 29,863 688,815 549,750 -
Two years later 28,172 25,718 55,773 40,409 - -
Three years later 34,363 10,835 39,460 - - -
Four years later 21,321 3,318 - - - -
Five year later 10,665 - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 10,665 3,318 39,460 40,409 549,750 2,058,520 2,702,122
Less: Cumulative payments to date - (1,783 (18,767) (24,726) (492,698)  (1,400,877)  (1,938,831)
Liability recognized in statement of financial
position 10,665 1,665 20,693 15,683 57,052 657,643 763,291

25.2 The provision for IBNR on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2022 amounted to Rs. 304,102
. thousands (2021: Rs 239,537 thousands). B
. - B 2022 2021
26 NET COMMISSION AND OTHER ACQUISITION COSTS Rupees in thousand
. Commission paid or payable : - 264,794 - 238,930
. Add: Deferred commission expense opening. 102,363 - 118,575
. Less: Deferred commission expense closing.:;. 108,258 - 102,363
Net commission 258,899 265,142
. Less: Commission received or recoverable B 337,403 314,365
. Add: Unearned reinsurance commission. 6pening 97,068 86,896
Less: Unearned reinsurance commissior.w.closing 113,761 97,068
Commission from reinsurers : 320,710 304,193
(61,811) (49,050
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2022 2021

27 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES Note Rupees in thousand
' Employees benefit cost ' 271 - 522,761 o 465,990
. Rent . o 10,544 o 10,072
. Communication . - 8,341 o 5,135
. Tracker devices . o 5,455 - 3,678
. Monitoring of trackers . - 27,770 o 27,282
. Printing and stationery . o 11,653 - 9,345
. Traveling and entertainment . - 6,766 o 3,959
. Depreciation and amortization . o 92,491 o 80,519
. Repair and maintenance . - 13,440 o 11,894
. Utilities . o 21,579 o 14,425
. Advertisement . o 1,352 - 1,916
. Legal and professional charges . o 8,673 o 8,088
. Bank charges . o 1,813 o 1,750
. Provision against premium due but unpaid . o (4,982) o (10,586)
. \ehicle ljarah rentals . - 16,506 o 8,067
. Miscellaneous . o 10,969 - 9,641
755,131 651,074

271 . Employees benefit cost

Salaries, allowance and other benefits . o 485,328 - 428,962
Charges for post employment benefits 27.2 37,433 37,028
522,761 465,990
272 This includes charges for defined benefit plans, staff compensated absences and defined contribution plans amounting to

Rs. 19.11 million (2021: Rs. 16.46 milion), Rs. 7.52 million (2021: Rs. 7.57 million) and Rs. 14.51 million (2021: Rs. 12.99
million) respectively.
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28 INVESTMENT INCOME

Dividend income on investments

' Note '

2022

Rupees in thousand

528

2021

Dividend income on securities held for trading 34
. Dividend income on available for sale investments 18,722 . 16,945
19,250 16,979

. Income from debt securities .
. Return on government securities 246,415 200,714
. Return on other fixed income securities 36,985 25,721
. 283,400 226,435

. Net realised gains on investments .
. Gain on trading of held for trading investments 1,521 534
. (Loss) / Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments (1,184) 8,568
. 337 9,102
. Unrealized profit on re-measurement of investments held fof trading 91 . 19

. Provision for diminution in available-for-sale investments . . (34,970) .

. Reversal for diminution in value of Certificate of Investments . N
. Investment related expenses . (148) . (133)
Total investment income 267,960 262,402

29 . RENTAL INCOME
. Rental income 6,013 . 5,009
. Less : expenses of investment property (22) . (25)
5,991 4,984
30 . OTHER INCOME

. Profit on bank deposits 25,661 . 11,430
. Gain on sale of fixed assets . 5213 . 2,160 . 2,563
. Mark-up on staff house building finance . . 477 . 199
. Funds amortized against leased vehicles 7,692 . 4,826
. Others 17,049 . 545
53,039 19,563
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2022 2021
31 OTHER EXPENSES Rupees in thousand
. Subscription 7,026 - 6,022
' Auditors' remuneration 2,135 - 1,900
9,161 7,922
31.1 . Auditors' remuneration
. Audit fee 1,135 - 900
. Half yearly review 450 o 450
. Special purpose review 250 o 450
. Code of Corporate Governance 100 o 100
. Other certifications 200 -
2,135 1,900
32 FINANGE COSTS
. Interest on lease liabilities 24,964 - 13,385
. Interest on running finance 641 -
25,605 13,385
33 . WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS - OPF
. Wekala fee 170,125 o 158,419
. Management expenses (94,636) o (79,446)
. Commission expenses (49,248) o (44,348)
. Modarib's share of PTF investment income 9,797 - 5,384
. Investment income 19,784 - 12,875
. Other income - net 5,547 o 1,965
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 61,369 54,849
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2022 2021
34 . INCOME TAX EXPENSE Rupees fn t.housand
. For the year -
. Current 204,405 . 130,819
. Deferred (10,964) . 5,883
. Prior year
. Current - 653
193,441 137,355
34.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
' - 2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective tax rate - % Rupees in thousand
Profit for the year before taxation 540,031 504,234
. Tax at the applicable rate 29.00% N 29.00% B 156,609 B 146,228
. Effect of items that are not considered N N B
. in determining taxable income - net -0.52% N -1.89% B (2,814) B (9,625)
. Effect of tax rate change 4.00% N 0.00% N 21,601 B
Effect of prior year adjustment 3.34% 0.13% 18,044 653
35.82% 27.24% 193,441 137,355
34.2 . Taxation charged to other comprehensive income B
Deferred tax income / (expense) (2,686) (14,173)
. 2022 2021
35 . EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees.ir.l thousand
Profit after tax (Rupees in thousand) 346,590 366,879
Weighted average number of shares 71,902 71,902
Earnings (after tax) per share - (Rupees) 4.82 5.10
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36 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

36.1 The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits, to the
Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2022 2021

Ch|ef Directors Executives Ch'e.f Directors Executives
Executive Executive

Rupees in thousand

. Fees - 1,560 - - 1,565
. Managerial remuneration . 18,658 B - 41,826 B 16,226 R . 23,906
. Leave encashment . 949 B . 1,213 . 859 . - 775
. Bonus . 8,113 B . 15,890 . 7,055 . . 8,700
g;irge to defined benefit 1,744 ) 3,695 1,430 ) 2004
. Rent and house maintenance . 8,396 B . 18,518 . 7,302 . . 10,607
. Utilities . 1,866 B - 4,115 . 1,623 . . 2,357
. Conveyance . 935 B - 10,019 B 1,317 B - 9,883
. Provident fund . 1,654 B - 2,955 . 1,362 . . 1,674
. Others . 597 B . 11,912 . 36 . . 2,435
42,812 1,560 110,143 37,200 1,565 62,241
.Noofperson(s) . 1" 8.' 25'. 1.' 8'. 14

36.2 The Chief Executive and Executives are also provided with Company maintained cars.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is a subsidiary of Army Welfare Trust (“the parent company’) therefore all subsidiaries and associated
undertakings of the parent company are related parties of the Company. Other related parties comprise of directors, key
management personnel, entities with common directorships and entities over which the directors are able to exercise
influence. Balances with related parties are shown in the note 12.1 and the remuneration of chief executive, executives
and directors is disclosed in note 36 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Transactions with related parties other than
those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2022 2027
Transactions with the parent company: Rupees in thousand

' Insurance premium written (including government levies ' o o

' administrative surcharge and policies stamps) ' - 10,619 o 10,776
Premium received during the period 10,519 9,804
Insurance claims paid 2,842 1,113
Rent paid 29,782 27,693
Dividend Paid 106,502 88,929

. Transactions with subsidiary:

. Investment made . o - -
Services acquired 74,537 50,327
Payments made (78,941) (64,223)
Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) o 1014
Premium received during the period 1,035 967
Insurance claims paid 740 664

. Transactions with associated undertakings:

. Army Welfare Sugar Mills

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 12,402 o 9,003
Premium received during the period 12,454 7,890
Insurance claims paid 672 108

. Askari Aviation (Private) Limited

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 2,593 o 2,830
Premium received during the period 3,241 2,455
Insurance claims paid 917 380
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2022 2021
Askari Development and Holdings (Private) Limited Rupees in thousand
. Insurance premium written (including government levies . o o
' administrative surcharge and policies stamps) ' - 7,320 o 8,298
Premium received during the period 7,760 8,176
Insurance claims paid 249 209
. Askari Enterprises (Private) Limited
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 240 335
Premium received during the period 336 284
Insurance claims paid 50 191
. Askari CNG and Fuels
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 4,878 2,499
Premium received during the period 7,507 3,377
Insurance claims paid 369 1,145
. Askari Guards (Private) Limited
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 60,880 67,905
Premium received during the period 61,811 56,297
Insurance claims paid 15,993 2,782
. Askari Lagoon Faisalabad
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 67 . 67
Premium received during the period 203
Insurance claims paid - 50
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2022 2021
Askari Shoe Project Rupees in t.housand
. Insurance premium written (including government levies . o
. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) . o 2,403 o 1,641
Premium received during the period 2,390 1,594
Insurance claims paid 1,046 570
. AskariTours and Travels
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,095 431
Premium received during the period 224 145
Insurance claims paid 30 7
. Askari Woolen Mills
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,264 714
Premium received during the period 1,346 770
Insurance claims paid 180 261
. AWT Plaza Project
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 223 223
Premium received during the period - -
Insurance claims paid 240 203
. Army Welfare Trust CEO (Army Projects) Office
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) . o - o (4)
Premium received during the period - (4)

Insurance claims paid - -
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2022 2021

| Blue Lagoon . . Rupees fn t.housand

. Insurance premium written (including government levies . o -

. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 505 . 263
Premium received during the period 664 -
Insurance claims paid - 60

. Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 25,149 19,067
Premium received during the period 22,686 21,913
Insurance claims paid 1,129 1,208

. MAL Pakistan Limited

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 15,003 12,122
Premium received during the period 12,648 13,262
Insurance claims paid 5,017 4,564
Petrosel Lubricants (Private) Limited

' Insurance premium written (including government levies

' administrative surcharge and policies stamps) . - (149) .

Premium received during the period - -
Insurance claims paid - -

. Army Welfare Housing Scheme

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) . o 566 o 418
Premium received during the period 523 418
Insurance claims paid 24 24
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Army Welfare Real Estate Division

Insurance premium written (including government levies

2022

Rupees in thousand

2021

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 2,210 1,363
Premium received during the period 2,058 1,208
Insurance claims paid 599 763

. Askari Apparel
. Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) (206) -
Premium received during the period - -
Insurance claims paid - -

. AWT Investments Limited
. Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 2,878 2,750
Premium received during the period 2,313 2,758
Insurance claims paid 1,809 680
Services Travels

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

' administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 92 ' 124
Premium received during the period 92 124
Insurance claims paid 17

. Askari Life Assurance

. Insurance premium written (including government levies

. administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,640 . 2,841
Premium received during the period 4,101 2,783
Insurance claims paid 3,691 1,455
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2022 2021
| Askari Seeds . o Rupees fn t.housand
. Insurance premium written (including government levies . o -
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,360 1,383
Premium received during the period 1,400 1,272
Insurance claims paid 366 604
. Medask
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 5,225 4,011
Premium received during the period 435 4,567
Insurance claims paid 1,498 1,017
. Jolidays (Private Limited)
. Insurance premium written (including government levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 144 4,011
Premium received during the period 40 4,667
Insurance claims paid 73 1,017
. Transactions with other related parties
. Contributions to Employees Provident Fund Trust . o 47,432 o 41,945
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40 MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS
Held t_o Available- Fair value Loaps and Total
maturity for-sale through P&L  receivables
Rupees in thousand

At beginning of previous year 2,216,657 323,591 654 - 2,540,902
Additions 4,428,087 712,741 195,000 - 5,335,828
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (4,347,977) (637,694) (195,000) - (5,080,671)
Fair value net gain (excluding net realised gains) - (830,947) 19 - (30,928)
Designated at fair value through profit / loss

upon initial recognition 7

Classified as held for trading - - -

Impairment (loss) / reversal - - -

At beginning of current year 2,296,767 467,691 673 - 2,765,131
Additions 1,699,489 338,474 809,099 - 2,847,063
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (1,481,729) (286,451) (709,466) - (2,477,645)
Fair value net gain (excluding net realised gains) - (42,804) 91 - (42,713)
Designated at fair value through profit / loss

upon initial recognition _ _ _ _ _
Classified as held for trading - - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - - -
At end of current year 2,514,527 476,910 100,397 - 3,091,836

41

41.1

MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK
Financial risk

The Company's activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including interest / mark-up rate risk
and price risk). The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance. The Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material
change from previous year in the manner described in notes below.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company'’s risk management framework. The Board is
also responsible for developing the Company’s risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a
large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change in
economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The management monitors
and limits the Company’s exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client’s exposure and maintaining conservative estimates of provisions
for doubtful assets, if required. The management believes it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are
adequately diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.
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The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:
2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

. Bank deposits . o 289,287 196,392
. Investments . o 3,091,833 o 2,765,132
. Salvage recoveries accrued . o 3,341 o 3,769
. Advances to employees . o 342 o 357
. Amounts due from insurance contract holders . o 1,326,447 o 1,254,309
. Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers . o 148,432 o 180,721
. Accrued investment income . o 56,393 - 48,029
. Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims . o 310,712 o 245,466
. Staff house building finance . o 3,129 o 4,012
. Sundry receivables . o 137,573 o 100,692

5,367,488 4,798,879

The Company does not hold any collateral against the above balances except for staff house building finance. Provision
against receivable is written off when the Company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. Except as already
provided for in these unconsolidated financial statements, past due balances were not impaired as they relate to a number
of policy holders and other insurers / reinsurers for whom there is no recent history of default. The age analysis of gross
receivables is as follows:

Amount Amount Reinsurance

.due from due from recov.erles Sundry 2022 2021
insurance other against receivables  Aggregate Aggregate
contract insurers / outstanding ggreg goreg

holders reinsurers claims

Rupees in thousand

Upto 1 year 1,123,799 143,105 263,169 137,573 1,667,646 1,487,235
. 1-2 years . 194,955 . 6,054 . 18,258 . - 219,267 . 204,501
. 2-3 years . 14,600 . (449) . 6,187 . - 20,337 . 49,437
. Over 3 years . 3,058 . 341 . 23,098 . - 26,498 . 23,044
1,336,412 149,051 310,712 137,573 1,933,748 1,764,217
a) The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:
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Rating Financial institution Rating Rating agency 2022 2021
Long term  Short term Rupees in thousand

Askari Bank Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA 237,284 164,002

. Sumrrﬁritr Bank Limited BBB- A-3 JCR-VIS o 95? - 25
. Habiﬁ VEVBank Limited AAA A-1+ JCR-VIS o 852 - 2é1
. Faysérlréank Limited VAA Al+ PACRA o 2,061 - 72,6792
. Sik Bank Limited 7 A- A-2 JCR-VIS o . - 1
. BanRVAIV Falah Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA o 7 - Vﬂ
. BanRVAIV—Habib Limited AAA Al+ PACRA o 1,356 - 71,6710
. l\/IeeééA Bank Limited AAA A-1+ JCR-VIS o 14,988 - 74
. The Bank Of Punjab AA+ Al+ PACRVA o 387 - 71,1764
. NRSVF;I\V/Iicroﬁnance Bank V A- A2 PACRVA o 1,409 - 73,7768
. JS Bank Limited VAA- Al+ PACRVA o 1,116 - 73,1781
. SindH éank Limited VA+ A-1 JCR-VIS o . S
. BanRr(r)rf Khyber 7 A Al PACRVA o 1,294 - 29
. PunJéB VProvinciaI Cooperative Barnrkw Exémpted . Exemptea . Not appliéablé - 1,565 o 71,8711
. Zarainrarraqiyati Bank AAA o A-1+ JCR-VIS o 2,4471 o 24,995
. SamrbrérBank Limited VAA A-1 JCR-VIS o 7- - -
. AHieorlrErarank Limited AAA Al+ PACRVA o 2,459 - 7%8
. Te\er%(r)rrrl\/licroﬂnance Bank V A A-1 JCR-VIS o 7- - -
. Fincérli/rlicroﬁnance Bank V A Al PACRVA o 3,098 - 2
. U Miéf@finamce Bank VA+ A-1 JCR-VIS o 1b - 24
. MOBVIVsAamic Banking V A Al PACRVA o 7- - 1
. Uniterdeank Limited AAA A-1+ JCR-VIS o 18,064 - W56
289,287 194,486

The credit quality of amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers and reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims can be assessed

with reference to external credit rating as follows:

2022 2021
Amount Reinsurance
due from recoveries
other against Aggregate Aggregate
insurers / outstanding
reinsurers claims
Rating Rupees in thousand
A or above 149,051 310,712 459,763 431,579
Others - - -
149,051 310,712 459,763 431,579
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C) The Company has diversified portfolio of investment to mitigate the risk. The credit risk exposure relates to investment in debt securities as
mentioned in note 10 to the unconsolidated financial statements. The Company has also maintained a provision against certain certificates of
investments as disclosed in note 10.5 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. Liguidity requirements are monitored by management to ensure that adequate
funds are available to meet any obligations as they arise. To guard against risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are
managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily marketable securities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities. The contractual maturities of these liabilities at the year
end have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Financial liabilities
not having a contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expected date on which these liabilities will be settled.

2022

Carrying Contractual Up toone More than
amount cash flows year one year

Rupees in thousand

. Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) . 763,291 . 763,291 763,291 . -
. Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers . 1,034,109 . 1,034,109 . 1,034,109 . -
. Other creditors and accruals . 89,777 . 89,777 . 89,777 . -
. Unclaimed dividend . 9,708 . 9,708 . 9,708 . -
. Deposits and other payables . 59,061 . 59,061 . 59,061 . -
. Lease liabilities . 199,754 . 199,754 . 56,785 . 142,969
. Other liabilities . 45,610 . 45,610 . 45,610 . -

2,201,310 2,201,310 2,058,341 142,969

2021
Carrying . Contractual . Uptoone . More than
amount cash flows year one year

Rupees in thousand

. Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) . 639,160 . 639,160 639,160 .
. Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers . 833,479 . 833,479 . 833,479 .
. Accrued expenses . 7,002 . 7,002 . 7,002 .
. Other creditors and accruals . 182,523 . 182,523 . 182,523 .
. Unclaimed dividend . 10,971 . 10,971 . 10,971 .
. Deposits and other payables . 43,137 . 43,137 . 43,137 .
. Liabilities liabilities . 213,106 . 213,106 . 60,057 . 163,049
. Other liabilities . 35,663 . 35,663 . 35,663 .
1,965,041 1,965,041 1,811,992 163,049

©
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iii) Market risk
a) Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of change in market variable
such as interest / mark up rate, foreign exchange rate and equity prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. The market risks associated with the Company’s business activities are interest / mark up
rate risk and price risk.
Interest / mark up rate risk
Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the market
interest / mark up rates. The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to interest / mark up rates risk. The Company
limits interest / mark up rate risk by monitoring changes in interest / mark up rates in the currencies in which its cash and investments are
denominated. The Company’s financial liabilities are not exposed to interest / mark up rate risk. At the balance sheet date exposure to interest
bearing financial assets is as follows:
2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective interest rate (%) Carrying amounts
Rupees in thousand
Fixed rate financial assets
‘ 3.70% to
Deposit accounts 2.80% to 8% 265,141 149,121
14.5%
8.49% to 8.50% to
Investments 3,091,833 2,765,132
13.49% 13.48%
3,356,974 2,914,253
b) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company, at present, is not materially exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.
c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or foreign currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s listed securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about the future value of investment securities.
The Company limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in equity market.

The following table summarises the Company’s price risk as at December 31, 2022 and 2021. It shows the effects of an estimated increase of
10% in the market prices as on those dates. A decrease of 10% in the fair values of the listed securities would affect it in a similar and opposite
manner.

Effect on fair

Fair value Price change value
(Rupees in ‘000 (Rupees in ‘000)
7 December 31, 2022 7 341,988 7 +10% 7 34,199
7 7 341,988 7 -10% 7 (34,199
7 December 31, 2021 7 206,533 7 +10% 7 20,653

206,533 -10% (20,653)
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(a)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values except for available for sale and held to
maturity investments whose fair values are determined for disclosure purpose only and have been disclosed in their respective notes to these
financial statements.

Determination of fair values
Fair values have been determined for measurement / or disclosure purpose based on the following methods:
Investment in fair value through profit and loss account - held for trading

The fair value of held for trading investment is determined by reference to their closing repurchase price / price quoted on the stock exchange
at the reporting date.

Available-for-sale investment

The fair value of available for sale investment is determined by reference to their closing repurchase price / price quoted on the stock exchange
at the reporting date. They are being carried at fair value.

Held to maturity investment

Fair value for held to maturity investment is estimated as the present values of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date. They are being carried at fair value.

Non-derivatives financial assets and liabilities

The fair value is estimated based on the present values of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
However, since these assets and liabilities are due to be settled within one year, their fair values approximate their carrying values.

Capital management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concermn so that it can continue
to provide retuns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained
development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions.

In accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Rules, 2017 issued by the SECP, minimum paid-up capital requirement to be complied
with by insurance/ takaful companies as at December 31, 2017 and for subsequent years is Rs. 500 milion. As at December 31, 2022, the
Company's paid-up capital is in excess of the prescribed limit.

Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the Company faces
under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the
frequency or severity of claims is greater than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims will vary
from year to year from the level established.

Based on past experience, management is of the view that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome is. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of
these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of
industry covered.

Frequency and severity of claims
Political, environmental, economical and climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe extreme events (for example, fire, theft,

steal, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, hurricanes, typhoons, river flooding, electric fluctuation, terrorism, war risk,
damages occurring in inland transit, burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, travel and personal accident, money losses , engineering

®

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
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(o)

losses and other events) and their consequences (for example subsidence claims). For certain contracts, the Company has also limited the
number of claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any policy vear.

Insurance contracts which are divided into direct and facultative arrangements are further subdivided into five segments: fire, marine, motor,
accident and health and miscellaneous. The insurance risk arising from these contracts is concentrated in the territories in which the Company
operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal properties / assets in the overall portfolio of insured properties / assets.
The Company underwrites insurance contract in Pakistan.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and
geography. The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent claims.
Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). The claim
payments are limited to the extent of sum insured on occurrence of the insured event.

The Company has entered into reinsurance cover / arrangements with local and foreign reinsurers having good credit rating by reputable rating
agencies, to reduce its exposure to risks and resulting claims. Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a
number of proportional and non-proportional facultative reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of a major
catastrophe. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Company recovers the share of claims from reinsurers thereby reducing
its exposure to risk. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional
reinsurance arrangements, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered under non-proportional treaty which is very much in
line with the risk management philosophy of the Company. In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly
submitted with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The Company has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether reported or not. This department
investigates and settles all claims based on surveyor’s report / assessment. The unsettled claims are reviewed individually on a periodic basis
and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively
manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims reported and otherwise are analyzed separately. The development of large losses / catastrophes is analyzed separately. The shorter
settlement year for claims allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims including IBNR.
However, the longer time needed to assess the emergence of a subsidence claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these
claims.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation value, reinsurance
and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability
established. The liability comprises amount in relations to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims
settlement costs and a provision for unexpired risks at the end of the reporting year.

Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In calculating the estimated cost
of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company estimation techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss
ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums eamed in a prior financial years in relation to
such claims) and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined basis where greater weight is given to actual claims
experience as time passes.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers any information available from surveyor's
assessment and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous years. Claims are assessed on a case-by-
case basis separately.
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Age-wise Breakup

. Total
Particulars amount 1106 7to12  13t024  25t036 Be%’g”d
months months months months
months

Rupees in thousand

Claims not encashed 106,223 88,782 5,190 8,464 3,786 -

(¢) Key assumptions
The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves is that the Company’s
future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The management uses qualitative
judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply in future. The judgement
includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors, economic conditions, etc.

(d) Changes in assumptions
The Company did not change its assumptions for the insurance contracts as disclosed in above (b) and (c).

(e) Sensitivity analysis
The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to number of variables which complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claim numbers and expected loss
ratios. The Company considers that the liability for insurance claims recognized in the balance sheet is adequate. However,
actual experience will differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market
conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit
before tax net of reinsurance.

Profit before tax Shareholders’ equity

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

10% increase in loss

Fire and property damage (1,789) (1,658) (1,199) (1,177)
Marine aviation and transport (2,154) (2,357) (1,443) (1,674)
Motor (16,626) (14,711) (11,139) (10,445)
Health (20,524) (15,614) (13,751) (11,086)
Miscellaneous (4,165) (5,030) (2,791) (3,671)
(45,258) (39,370) (30,323) (27,954)

A 10% decrease would have had equal but opposite effect on the profit and loss account and shareholders’ equity.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, to the
Company's profit before tax and equity based upon closing balances and rates:

@
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Increase / .

(decrease) in Eﬁggth?Z gxo fit Effect on equity

basis points

(Rupees in ‘000)
December 31, 2022 100 4 533 3,037
-100 (4,533) (3,037)
December 31, 2021 100 3,631 2,678
-100 (3,631) (2,578)
(U} Concentration of insurance risk

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular type of policyholder, within a geographical
location or to types of commercial business. The Company minimizes its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a
number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme importance. There are
a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location, the most
important of which is risk survey. The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities.

Gross sum

. Reinsurance Net
insured

Rupees in thousand

2022
 Fire and property ' 744,300,706 666,441,971 77,948,735
' Mearine, aviation and transport ' 613,988,830 ' 372,182,600 ' 241,806,230
 Motor ' 67852,609 1,885,714 65966985
 Miscellaneous ' 482,876,418 371,986,705 110,889,713
1,909,108,653 1,412,496,990 496,611,663

2021
 Fire and property ' 513562,364 491036489 22,515,875
' Marine, aviation and transport ' 446,832,021 231704510 215,127,511
Motor ' 57638482 2728206 54,910,276
 Miscellaneous ' 355,458,156 215,707,699 139,750,457

1,373,481,023 941,176,904 432,304,119

The Company’s class wise major risk exposure is as follows:

Maximum Gross Risk Exposure
2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

' Fire and property B N 90,869,307 65,260,599
' Marine, aviation and fransport R 37400000 21,000,000
 Motor ) 3078032 1,810,783
 Liability ) 1,800,000 1485000
. Miscellaneous B - 23,196,748 B 20,913,300
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NOTES TO AND FORMING

PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

42 STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY 2022

Assets
. Property and equipment 395,144
. Intangible assets 9,992
. Investment property 36,571
. Investment in subsidiary 10,000
' Investments
- Equity securities 341,988
- Debt securities 2,749,845
. Loans and other receivables 197,437

Insurance / Reinsurance receivables - unsecured,

considered good aer
. Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 310,712
. Salvage recoveries accrued 3,341
. Taxation - payments less provision -
. Deferred commission expense / Acquisition cost 108,258
. Deferred taxation 35,595
. Prepayments 671,877
. Cash and bank 291,610
. Total assets from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 366,960

Total Assets (A) 7,004,209
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2022

. Rupees in thousand

In-admissible assets as per following clauses of section 32(2)
of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

(d) loans to employees 3,470
(@) . receivable from related parties 79,337
(@) . investment in subsidiary 10,000
(h) ' insurance / reinsurance receivables for more than three monfhs 599,399
0] . intangible assets . 9,992
0) . deferred tax asset 35,595
(K) . security deposit receivable 16,333
(K) . security deposits 59,061
() . assets subject to encumbrances 330,000
(U)-()  vehicles 129,925
(U)-(i)  office equipment 23,716
(U)-(ii) . office equipment (window takaful operator's fund) 573
(U)-(iii) ' fixtures and fittings 8,158
(U)-(iify . fixtures and fittings (window takaful operator's fund) 369
32(5) . Right of use assets - Rental properties 96,657
' Total of In-admissible assets (B) 1,402,585
Total Admissible Assets (C=A-B) 5,601,623
Total Liabilities

' Underwriting Provisions
- Qutstanding claims including IBNR 763,291
- Uneamed premium reserves 1,823,622
- Unearned reinsurance commission 113,761
' Retirement benefit obligations 30,675
. Staff compensated absences 44,185
. Lease liabilities 199,754
. Taxation - provision less payment 26,708
. Premium received in advance 63,361
. Insurance / Reinsurance Payables 1,034,109
" Unclaimed dividend 9,708
. Other Creditors and Accruals 254,946
. Deposits and other payables 59,061
Total Liabilities 4,423,181
' Total liabilities from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 118,919
Total Liabilities (D) 4,542,100
Total Net Admissible Assets (E=C-D) 1,059,523
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ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022
Rupees in thousand
' Minimum solvency requirement (higher of following) 485,590
Method A - U/s 36(3)(a) 160,000
Method B - Us 36(3)(0) 485,590 |
Method G - Urs 3613)(c) 322,223 |
Excess in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Requirements 573,933

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

43

Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

44 WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS - OPF
Assets
Cash and bank deposits 92,076 66,887
Investments 177,479 179,450
Current assets - others 96,462 84,247
Fixed assets 943 608
Total assets 366,960 331,192
Total liabilities - current 118,919 102,923
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 61,369 54,849
Details of total assets, total liabilities and segment disclosure of window takaful operations are stated in the annexed financial
statements.

45 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purposes of

comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions.
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46 NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on 15 March 2023 have proposed a final cash dividend of
Rupees 2.9 per share.

47 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
15 March 2023.

48 GENERAL
Number of employees
Total number of employees at the end of the year were 377 (2021: 384). Average number of employees during the year
were 387 (2021: 391).

/B N S e

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Askari General Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Askari General Insurance Company Limited and its subsidiary (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December
31, 2022, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibiliies
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following is the Key audit matter:

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO.

LTD

reserves

(Refer notes 3.16 and 24 of the annexed consolidated

S. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
No.
1 Valuation of Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims Our audit procedures in relation to this matter included

amongst others:

- Assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the

relevant controls over the measurement and calculation
of IBNR reserves and evaluated the appropriateness of
methodologies and assumptions used.

financial statements)

As at December 31, 2022, provision for IBNR amounted to

Rs 239.926 million. N
- Evaluated the completeness, accuracy and reliability

of the underlying data utilised by the management to

The provision for IBNR claims is calculated by the Company ‘ .
support the actuarial valuation.

as required under Circular No. 9 of 2016 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
As per the SECP Circular No. 9 of 2016, an insurer shall
estimate and maintain the provision for IBNR for each class
of business by using the prescribed method which is “Chain
Ladder Method” or any other alternate method as allowed
under the provisions of the Guidelines.

- Involved an independent actuarial expert to test the
assumptions and assess the reasonableness of the
assumptions used therein.

- Checked the adequacy of IBNR reserves and assessed
an internal consistency and a reasonableness of basic

I - ‘ ‘ actuarial figures with the prior year.
The determination of provision for IBNR claims involves

estimation and judgment. Because of the significance of the -
impact of these judgments / estimations, we considered the
area of IBNR as a key audit matter.

Assessed whether the financial statement disclosures in
relation to the valuation of IBNR reserves are compliant
with the relevant accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan

Information Other than the consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group’'s  annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such intermal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Other Matter
Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 were audited by another auditor, KPMG
Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April 30, 2022.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. JehanZeb Amin.

Yoirf AdA

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 6 April 2023

UDIN: AR202210134yfJ1g3huk
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021

77777777777 Note Rdbéés in t.housréhrcri

ASSETS S
Property and equipment . 5 o 417,954 77777 418,970
Intangible assets . 6 o 9992 77777 696
Investment property . 7 o 36?571 77777 37,881

Investments S
- Equity securites . 8 o 341}988 77777 206,532
- Debt securies . 9 o 2,749}845 77777 2,658,599
Loans and other receivables . TO o 205@84 77777 161,479
Insurance / Reinsurance receivaplgs 777777 . 11 o 1,474?879 77777 1,435,030
Reinsurance recoveries against Q,‘%@@Ud,i”g clams . 274 o 310,’,7,12 77777 245,466
Salvage recoveries accrued - 3339 77777 3,769
Taxation - payments less provisiQQ 77777777 S - 17,016
Deferred commission expense /Aoguisirtrion cost . 275 o 108?258 77777 102,363
Deferred taxaton . 14 o 36}324 77777 21,945
Prepayments . 15 o 672}960 77777 562,807
Cashandbark . 16 o 295,746 201,374
Total assets from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 43 366,960 331,192
Total Assets 7,029,912 6,305,119

ah ez

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Note Rupees in t.housand
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company's equity holders .
Ordinary share capital 17 719,019 . 719,019
Share premium 18 121,161 . 121,161
Reserves 18 46,077 . 51,113
Unappropriated profit 1,584,559 1,425,243
Total Equity 2,470,816 2,316,537
Liabilities
Underwriting Provisions
- QOutstanding claims including IBNR 24 763,291 639,160
- Unearned premium reserves 23 1,823,622 1,719,511
- Unearmed reinsurance commission 25 113,761 97,068
Retirement benefit obligations 12 30,675 40,109
Staff compensated absences 13 44,185 38,633
Liabilities against assets - secured 19 199,754 213,106
Taxation - provision less payment 28,864
Premium received in advance 63,361 47,598
Insurance / Reinsurance payables 20 1,034,109 833,479
Unclaimed dividends 9,708 10,971
Other creditors and accruals 21 269,786 202,887
Deposits and other payables 59,061 43,137
Total Liabilities . 4,440,177 3,885,659
Total liabilities from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 43 118,919 102,923
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,029,912 6,305,119
Contingencies and commitments 7 272 7

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Malik Riffat Mahmood
Director

(o

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)

Director

SR

—

L.t Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

Chairman

©
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note Rupees in thousand

Netinesurance premium . 23 - 2,426,7941 - 2,172,782
Netnsuance claims Y (1,548,190) (1,377,015)
Net commission and other acquisition costs . 275 . Gi ;811 7 7 49,050
Insurance claims and acquisition experm's'érsr 7 . 7 . (1,486,379) (1,327,965)
Management expenses . 276 o (7527,71703) o (671,193)
Underwriting results 188,459 173,624
nvestmentincome o7 267960 052,402
Rentalincome 8 5001 4,984
Otherincome 29 53800 41,022
Other expenses . 30 o (97,;’3713) o (8,038)
Results of operating activities 506,897 463,994
France costs s (25,605 (13,385)
Profit before tax from General Operations 481,292 450,609
Profit before tax from WindowTakaﬁJ'IVOVbrerations - OPF . 372 o 68,75768 o B 54,849
Profit before tax 549,860 506,458
ncome tax expense . 33 o (194;772) o (138,045)
Profit after tax 355,088 367,413
Other comprehensive income: . 7 o R B
Items that will be reclassified subsed&éhﬂy to profit and loss account:
Unrealised (loss) / gain on Availab\e—fof;ééié Vinvestments - net . 7 . (4,149) (21,972)
Unrealized loss on available for sale inQéétfﬁénts from Window Takaful . ' . - ' ' '
Operations - OPF (net) (887) 61

"""" - (5,036) (21,911)
Items that will not be reclassified subéédﬁéntly to profit and loss account: R B
Effect of remeasurement of staff retirer'mréhrtrbeneﬂt plans - net ' 7 o 27,7(7)20 o (12,788)
Total comprehensive income for the period 352,072 332,714
Eamnings (after tax) per share - Rupees 34 4.94 511

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

/A T S —3

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman

©



CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Operating cash flows

a) Underwriting acti\)ifies:
 Premium received 4,012,553 3,401,081
. Reinsurance premidfn paid (1 ,456;638) (831,092)
" Claims paid B (1,889,692) ©(1,887,268)
. Reinsurance and ofﬁer recoveries received 475;547 7 338,534
" Commission paid (244,413) (220,565)
. Commission receivéd 316;927 144,678
. Management expehées paid (7267,7102) (625,847)
. Net cash flows (uééd in) / generated from undérwriting activities 488,182 310,622
b) . Other operating aéﬁvities: B B .
Income tax paid (142,065) (149.313)
. Other expenses paid (9;851) (8,443)
. Other operating recéipts / (payments) 122;321 107,037
. Advances to empbyées B 16 (135)
. Net cash used in cﬁher operating activities (29,579) (50,853)
Total cash flow generated from all operating activities 458,603 259,669
Invésting activities: B B B .
* Profit/ retum received 277143 218,157
. Dividends received” 19;250 17,023
. Payments for invesfrﬁents (2,652;673) 7 (6,447,827)
. Proceeds from invéétments 2,310;030 7 5,225,840
. Fixed capital expenditure (36;021) (18,967)
. Proceeds from disbbsal of fixed assets 2;291 3,200
Totél cash used in inveéﬂng activities (79,980) (2,674)
Finéncing activities: B B .
Financial charges paid (25,605) (13,385)
VRepayment'éf ob||gat\on ther finance Iéééé 77777777777777777777777777777 (68,643) (78,249)
© Dvidendpad (198,993) (195,864)
. Staff house bui\ding Vﬁnance - net ”884 (1,149)
. Mark-up on staff thse building finance receivedr ”477 199
. Funds Amortized Agéinst Leased Vehicles B i691
. Equity transactionsrcrosts paid ”(62) (65)
Totél cash used in finahbing activities (284,251) (288,502)
Net cash used in all activities 94,372 (31,408)
Caéh and cash equivalénts at beginning of the peﬁod 20i ;374 . 232,782
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 295,746 201,374

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

/A P S . —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
Rébonciliation to Profi;trénd Loss Account
* Operating cash flows 458,603 050,669
d Depreciation expenéé (98;341) . (83,194)
d Financial charges (25;605) . (13,389)
d Gain on disposal of ﬁ%ed assets 2160 . 2,563
d Decrease in assetsrbrther than cash 149;‘i44 . 563,765
d Decrease in Iiabilitiéé Vother than running ﬂnancé B (4417,71715) . (681,954)
d Unrealized gain on irhi/estments - held for tradiné 7 7”91 . 19
d Provision For Diminﬁfiom In Value Of Investmentrs” (34;970) . -
Dividend income 19,250 16,979
d Investment incomem 282;068 . 234,870
 Profit on bank deposits 26,421 11,430
d Income tax provisiorn” (194;772) . (138,045)
d Gain on trading 17 ;521 . 534
 Tax paid 142,065 149,313
Profit after taxation from General Insurance Operations 286,520 312,663
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 68,568 54,849
Profit after taxation 355,088 367,413

Définition of cash :

Cash comprises cash in hand, bank balances, stamp in hand and short term placements with banks which are readily convertible to cash in
hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

2022 2021

Cééh for the purpose 67f7 cash flow statement cohéists of: Rdbées in thousahd

ﬂ Cash and other edurivalents -
Cashinhand 1621 1,549
" Sempibard 762 416
2,383 1,965

d Current and other'érccounts -

ﬂ Current accounts 24,663 45,517
ﬂ Deposit accounts 268','7'00 168,892
" B 293,363 199,409
Total 295,746 201,374

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

/e N —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Share Reserves Total Total
capital reserves equity
Issued, Capital Revenue reserve
subscribed reserve
and
paid up Share General Available Unappropriated
premium reserve for sale profit
investment
revaluation
reserve

Balance as at 01 January 2021 719,019 121,161 70,000 3,025 1,268,403 1,462,589 2,181,608

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the period - - - - 367,413 367,413 367,413
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (21,911) (12,788) (34,699) (34,699)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (21,911) 354,625 332,714 332,714

Changes in owners' equity

Cash dividend 2020: Rupees 2.75 per share - - - - (197,730) (197,730) (197,730)
Equity transaction costs - - - - (55) (55) (59)

- - - - (197,785) (197,785) (197,785)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 719,019 121,161 70,000 (18,887) 1,425,243 1,597,518 2,316,537
Balance as at 01 January 2022 719,019 121,161 70,000 (18,887) 1,425,243 1,597,518 2,316,537

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the period - - - - 355,088 355,088 355,088
Other comprehensive loss for the period - - - (5,036) 2,020 (3,016) (3,016)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (5,036) 357,108 352,072 352,072

Changes in owners' equity

Cash dividend 2021: Rupees 2.75 per share - - - - (197,730) (197,730) (197,730)
Equity transaction costs - - - - (62) (62) (62)

- - - - (197,792) (197,792) (197,792)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 719,019 121,161 70,000 (23,923) 1,584,559 1,751,797 2,470,816

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

b 2 B —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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1

2.1

2.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Askari general insurance company limited (“the Company”) was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 as a
public limited company on 12 April 1995, The Company is engaged in non-life insurance business comprising of fire, marine,
motor, health and miscellaneous. The Company commenced its commercial operations on 15 October 1995. Shares of
the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is located at AWT Plaza, Rawalpindi. The Company has 20 branches in Pakistan. The Company is a subsidiary of
Army Welfare Trust.

The Company was granted license to work as Window Takaful Operator (WTQO) dated August 10, 2015 by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on Window Takaful Operations in Pakistan.

AskTech (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on December 17, 2018 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act, 2017. AskTech (Private) Limited was acquired by Askari General Insurance Company Limited as a wholly
owned subsidiary on February 01, 2019. The registered office and principal place of business of the subsidiary company
is located at 1st Floor, Ferozsons Building, Harding Road, Saddar, Rawalpindi. The subsidiary specializes in establishing,
developing, expanding, enhancing, managing and operating information technology services, GPS/GSM based tracking and
systems.

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, the Company and its above referred wholly owned subsidiary
AskTech (Pvt) Ltd is referred to as the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting consist of :

- Interational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules,
2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful Accounting Regulation, 2019,

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the
Insurance Rules, 2017, the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and the Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takaful
Accounting Regulation, 2019 shall prevail.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP’) vide its S.R.O 89(1)/2017 dated 9 February, 2017 has
prescribed format of the presentation of annual financial statements for general insurance companies. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the SECP.

Total assets, total liabilities and profit / (loss) of the Window Takaful Operations of the Company referred to as the Operator's
Fund has been presented in this consolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Circular 25 of 2015
dated 9 July 2015,

A separate set of financial statements of Window Takaful Operations has been reported which is annexed to these consolidated
financial statements as per the requirements of the SECP Takaful Rules, 2012.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments which are stated at their fair values and obligation under certain employee retirement benefit funds including
staff compensated absences which are measured at their present values as determined under the provisions of IAS-19,
“‘Employee Benefits”.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has the control and power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to elect and appoint
more than one half of its directors. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group and are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary company have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the
carrying value of investments held by the parent company is eliminated against the subsidiary shareholders’ equity in the
consolidated financial statements.

Material intra-company balances and transactions have been eliminated for consolidation purposes.
Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees in thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are effective in the current year

The following amendments are effective for the year ended December 31, 2022. These amendments are either not relevant
to the Group's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group’s financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.
Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ -

Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfiling a contract January 01, 2022
Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Reference to the conceptual framework January 01, 2022
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - related to IFRS 9 January 01, 2022

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are not yet effective

The following amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of
them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Group’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from Accounting

period beginning on or after
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure of accounting policies  January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors’ - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘ Leases’ - Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently

measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

from a single transaction. January 01, 2023

Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of liabilities

as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely

@
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Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ has become applicable, however as an insurance company, the management has opted
temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities
whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance and percentage of their liablities connected with insurance
relative to their total amount of liablities to be greater than 90%.Additional disclosures, as required by the IASB, for being
eligible to apply the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are given below:

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during that
period for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

(a) Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held for
trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and

(b) All other financial assets

As at December 31, 2022
Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
unrealized Carrvin Cost less unrealized
FairValue | gain/ (loss) Va%eg Imoairment gain / (loss)
during the P during the
period period
Rupees in thousands
Financial assets
Cash and Bank* - - 295,746 - -
Investment in equity securities -available-for-
sale 241,694  (70,528)
Investment in debt securities -
available-for-sale* - - 235,025 - 293
Investment in debt securities - held to
maturity - - 2,614,627
Loans and other receivables* - - 205,850 - -
Total 241,694  (70,528) 3,251,148 - 293

* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

3.1 Property and Equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for capital work in progress
which is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged on depreciable amount over the estimated
useful life using straight line method. Depreciation is charged on monthly basis where full month depreciation is charged in the
month of addition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Subseqguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
are incurred. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

3.2 Intangible

Software development cost are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
entity. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Amortization is charged on the amortizable amount over the useful life of the asset by applying straight line method. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

3.3 Investment property

Investment Property is accounted for under cost model in accordance with approved International Accounting Standard (IAS)
40, “Investment Property” and S.R.O. 938 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Depreciation is charged on depreciable amount on straight line basis over its estimated useful life at the rate of 2.5% per
annum.

Subsequent capital expenditures on existing properties and gains or losses on disposals are accounted for in the same
manner as tangible fixed assets.

3.4 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Company as insurer has accepted insurance risk from the insurance
contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the insured. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract
for the remainder of its tenure, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations
are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts are classified into following main categories, depending on the nature and duration of risk and whether or
not the terms and conditions are fixed.

- Fire and property damage;

- Marine, aviation and transport;
- Motor;

- Health and accident; and

- Miscellaneous.

These contracts are normally one year insurance contracts except marine and miscellaneous classes. Normally all marine
insurance contracts are of three months period. In miscellaneous class, some engineering insurance contracts are of more
than one year period, whereas, normally travel insurance contracts and few bond insurance contracts in miscellaneous class

expire within one month time.



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

3.5

3.6

3.7

These contracts are provided to all types of customers based on assessment of insurance risk by the Company. Normally
personal insurance contracts e.g. vehicle, travel, personal accident, etc. are provided to individual customers, whereas,
insurance contracts of fire and property, marine, aviation and transport, accident and health and other commercial line
products are provided to commercial organizations.

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals, and any transport or property by which cargo is
transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and against third party
liability that could be incurred in an accident.

Health insurance includes coverage of in-patient-hospital, out-patient-department, medical and other related expenses of
disease, sickness or accidental injury incurred during the period of insurance.

Liability insurance contracts protect the insured against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate
activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-contractual events.

Other various types of insurance are classified in miscellaneous category which includes mainly engineering, terrorism,
personal accident, worker compensation, travel, products of financial institutions, livestock and crop insurance etc.

The Company also accepts insurance risk pertaining to insurance contracts of other insurer as reinsurance inward. The
insurance risk involved in these contracts is similar to the contracts undertaken by the Company as insurer.

Reinsurance contracts

Those insurance contracts that are issued by one insurer (the reinsurer) to compensate another insurer (the cedant) for
losses on one or more contracts issued by the cedant are reinsurance contracts. The Company enters into reinsurance
contracts with both foreign and local reinsurers.

Deferred Commission Expense

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized as an expense in accordance
with the pattern of recognition of premium revenue.

Receivables and payables under insurance contracts

Receivable under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and that impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Reinsurance contracts held

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses
arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same year as the related premiums
for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured. Reinsurance premium is recognised as expense after
taking into account the proportion of deferred premium expense which is calculated using pattern similar to calculation of
premium income for the same poalicy. The deferred portion of premium expense is recognised as prepayment.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in the manner
consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or
settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.
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Reinsurance liabilities or assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on balance sheet date. If there is any objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited (PRCL) retrocession business is booked on the basis of PRCL statements pertaining
to the previous years.

3.8 Revenue Recognition
3.8.1 Premiums

Premium written under all insurance policies is recognized as income over the period of insurance from the date of issuance
of policy to its expiry, after taking into account the uneamed portion of premiums. Amount is recorded as premium written at
the time the policy is written. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the year of the policy, premium is recognized as
revenue in accordance with the pattemn of the incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating to the unexpired year
of coverage is recognized as uneamed premium by the Company. The unearned premium is calculated by applying 1/365
method as specified in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017,

Premium income includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation charges recovered by the Company from
policy holders in respect of policies issued. Administrative surcharge is recognised as premium income at the time of issuance
of policy.

3.8.2 Income from Tracker related services

The Company provide consultancy services which include vehicle monitoring services to companies having PTA license to
establish, maintain and operate Data Class Value Added services in Pakistan, Digital scanning and other IT related services.
Income of consultancy fee is recognized on the basis of contract period.

Sales revenue is recognized on installation of the device in the vehicle, transfer of ownership and possession to the client.
Minor accessories are charged to expense as and when purchased.

Rental revenue under a service agreement is recognized as income from the month of activation of monitoring to completion
of the contract period. Income is recognized on monthly basis where full month income is charged in the month of activation
of service and no income is recognized in the month of termination of services.

Annual Vehicle Monitoring fee under a service agreement is recognized as income from the month of activation of monitoring
to completion of contract period. Income is recognized on monthly basis where full month income is charged in the month of
activation of service and no income is recognized in the month of termination of services.

3.8.3 Commission

Commission expense incurred on issuance of policies is deferred and recognized as asset and is recognized in the profit and
loss account as an expense in accordance with pattern of recognition of premium revenue. Commission and other forms of
revenue (apart from recoveries) from reinsurers are deferred and recognized as liability and recognized in the profit and loss
account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium. Profit / commission, if any,
under the terms of reinsurance arrangements, is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the same is established.

3.8.4 Investment income
Following are recognised as investment income;
- Income from held to maturity investments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield on

the investments. The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held to maturity investments is
amortized and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.
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- Dividend income on securities held for trading and available for sale securities and is recognized when the Company’s right
to receive the dividend is established

- Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is recognized in profit and loss account in the year of sale

3.9 Claim expense including provision for outstanding claims including Incurred But Not Reported
The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident
giving rise to the claims except as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The liability for claims include
amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.
Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims as at 31 December 2022 is made on the basis of individual case
estimates by using Chain Ladder Method (Development technique) on the basis of recommendation by an independent
actuary under the guidelines issued by Insurance Division of SECP vide its Circular 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016 for
estimation of IBNR claims reserve, which were effective from 01 July 2016.
IBNR
Class of business Gross Net
Rupees in thousand
- Fire and property damage; 5,483 1,371
- Marine, aviation and transport; 25,051 945
- Motor; 63,799 63,154
- Accident and health; and 174,188 171,703
- Miscellaneous. 35,682 2,364
304,103 239,637
3.10 Reinsurance recoveries against claims
Claims recoveries receivables from the reinsurers are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give rise
to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received in accordance
with respective reinsurance arrangements.
3.1 Premium deficiency reserve

The Company is required as per the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of premium
deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future liability,
after reinsurance from claims, and other supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect
of the unexpired policies in that class of business at the reporting date. The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is
recorded as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company determines adequacy of liability of premium deficiency by carrying out analysis of its loss ratio of expired
periods of the contracts. For this purpose average loss ratio of last three years inclusive of claim settlement cost but excluding
major exceptional claims are taken into consideration to determine ultimate loss ratio to be applied on unearned premium.
The liability of premium deficiency in relation to accident and health insurance is calculated in accordance with the advice of
the actuary.

No provision has been made as the unearned premium reserve for each class of business as at the year end is adequate to
meet the expected future liability after reinsurance from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting
date in respect of policies in force at reporting date.
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3.12 Provision for unearned premium and prepaid reinsurance premium ceded

In accordance with the requirements of Insurance Rules, 2017, provision for uneamed premium is calculated by applying
1/365 method. Unearmed portion of premium is recognized as liability.

The deferred portion of reinsurance premium is recognised as reinsurance premium ceded using 1/365 method.
3.13 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for the services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

3.14 Investments
3.14.1 Classification

The classification of financial assets is determined at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Currently, the financial assets of the Company are classified into the following categories:

a) In equity securities

Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securiies which are classified as available for sale
investments is taken to a separate account which is shown in the statement of financial position as revaluation surplus.
The surplus / (deficit) arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account when actually realised upon
disposal or in case of impairment of securities. The unrealized surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities
which are classified as held for trading is taken to the profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in the values of
securities is made after considering impairment, if any, in their value and is taken to profit and loss account. Impaiment
is booked when there is an objective evidence of significant or prolonged decline in the value of such securities.
Unqguoted investments are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b) In debt securities

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Company has the intention and
ability to hold till maturity. Provision for impairment against debt securities is made in accordance with the requirements of the
law. In case of unquoted equity securities, the breakup value of- the security should be considered to determine impairment
amount. Premium or discount on debt securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity is amortised using effective
interest method and taken to the profit and loss account.

c) In term deposits
These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed (short term) maturities which the Company has the
intention and ability to hold till maturity.
Investments which are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
3.14.2 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the

Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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3.15 Taxation
Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the current year for such years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss account, except
in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

3.16 Employees’ retirement benefits

a) Defined benefit plan
The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all eligible employees completing the minimum qualifying year of
service as specified by the scheme. The assets of the funded plan are held independently in a separate fund. Provision for
gratuity is made to cover obligations under the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial
valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2022.
Actuarial valuation was carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method based on the following significant assumptions:
Class of business 2022 2021
Discount rate 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Expected return on plan assets 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Expected rate of increase in salary 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Average expected remaining working life time of the employee 8 years 9 years
Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 20056 SLIC 2001 - 20056
The Company recognizes the actuarial gains or losses in other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

b) Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a recognized staff provident fund as a defined contribution plan for all eligible employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. The
Company’s contribution is charged to income during the vear.

C) Compensated absences

Provisions for compensated absences is recognised annually to cover the obligation for compensated absences and charged
to profit and loss account. The provision is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2022 based on the following significant assumptions:

3.17

3.18

3.19

Class of business 2022 2021
. Discount rate . o 14.50% per annum o 14.50% per annum
. Expected rate of increase in salary . o 14.50% per annum o 14.50% per annum
Average number of leaves accumulated per annum 5 days 5 days
Mortality rate ' © SLC2001-2005  SLIC 2001 - 2005
with 1 year setback - with 1 year setback

Management expenses

Management expenses have been allocated to various classes of business on equitable basis. Expenses not allocable to
underwriting business are charged under other expenses.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Company accounts for segment reporting
of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance
Accounting Regulations, 2017. The reported operating segments are also consistent with the internal reporting provided to
Strategy Committee and Board of Directors which are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment. The
Company has following business segments:

Fire insurance segment provides insurance cover against damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake,
atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and impact.

Marine insurance segment provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland transit.
Motor insurance provides comprehensive vehicle coverage and indemnity against third party loss.
Accident and health provides inpatient and outpatient medical coverage.

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, personal accident, money,
engineering losses and other coverage.

Investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not allocated to any segment. Assets,
liabilites and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them while the carrying
amount of certain assets pertaining to two or more segments have been allocated to segments on a reasonable basis. Those
assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are routed through profit and loss account.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, exchange gain and changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading. Income on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion
basis using effective rate of interest. Income on investments is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the
effective vield of such securities. Dividend income on equity investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment
is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Impairment of assets
Non-derivative financial assets

All financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers and economic conditions that correlate with
defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortised cost at both a specific asset
and collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in as allowance against financial asset measured at amortized cost.
Interest on the impaired asset is recognized only to the extent it is considered recoverable. When an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
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Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.23 Right of use assets and lease liability

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. The Company mainly lease properties for its operations and recognizes a right-of use asset
and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is inttially measured at cost, and subsequently at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or end of lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same
basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest
cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain
to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term and low value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented in the same
line item as it presents underlying assets for the same nature it owns.

3.24 Dividend Distribution

Cash dividends declared, bonus shares issued and other reserves’ appropriations are recognized in the year in which these
announcements or appropriations are made.
3.25 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the
management of its short-term commitments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the requirements of accounting and reporting standards as applicable
to insurance companies in Pakistan requires management to make judegments/estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These judgements/estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from their estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

In particular, the matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are discussed below:

a) Income tax
In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account current

income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred
taxes, estimates of the Company’s future taxable profits are taken into account.
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Fixed assets, depreciation and amortisation

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses depreciation / amortisation rate which
reflects the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. These rates are reviewed
at each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets, the depreciation / amortisation rates would be changed to reflect the change in pattemn. Further, the
assets’ residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

The liability for IBNR is computed through Chain Ladder Method (Development technigue) in light of the guidelines issued by
Insurance Division of SECP vide its Circular 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016 for estimation of IBNR claims reserve, the liability
for IBNR for all classes of business is based on actuary recommendation. Any significant change in assumption used event
may affect the management's judgement which could affect the provision made for IBNR. Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and are measured at the amount expected to be
received.

Premium deficiency reserves

The Company carries out an analysis of loss / combined ratios for the expired year, such ratio being calculated after taking
into account the relevant IBNR provision for the determination of premium deficiency reserve for each class of business.

Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plan is provided to eligible employees of the Company. Calculations in this respect require assumptions to be
made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration, the expected long-term return on
plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes
in the underlying assumptions.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

Provision against premium due but unpaid & amount due from other insurers/reinsurers

The Company reviews its premium due but unpaid and amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers portfolio to assess their
recoverability and provision required there-against. While assessing this requirement, various factors including the delinquency
and financial position of the counter party are considered.

Classification of investments

In classifying investments as “fair value through profit and loss” the Company has determined securities which are acquired
with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements.

In classifying investments as “held-to-maturity” the Company has determined financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity.

The investments which are not classified as fair value through profit and loss or held to maturity are classified as available for
sale.
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i) Allocation of management expenses

Management expenses which are not specifically related to a class of business are allocated on all classes of business on
equitable basis.

i) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past event and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

K) Fair value of investments

The fair value of held for trading and available for sale investments is determined by reference to their quoted closing repurchase
price at the reporting date. Any change in the estimate might effect carrying amounts of investments held for trading with
corresponding effect in profit and loss account. Fair value of held to maturity instruments is determined with reference to
general interest rates prevailing in the market. Fair value of held to maturity investments is determined for disclosure purpose
only.

) Lease term
The Company applies judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that includes

renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease
term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liability and right of use assets recognised.

2022 2021
' the o Rubrees fn t.housarlhd

5  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - - - -
. Capital vvork—in—progress 7 - . 611 o 77,7114 - - 4,353
Operating assets 52 409,940 414,617
417,054 418,970

5.1 o Movementr jn Capital Workfin—progress is as follows: - - o -
. Opening ba\ance 7 - - 47,353 o - 1,724
.Additions - 7 - - o - 9,914
Transfers 2,761 (7,285)
Closing balance 7114 4,353
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

This represents the carrying amount of two offices in Islamabad Stock Exchange building, classified as investment property

based on the management’s intention to hold the property for eaming rentals and / or capital appreciation.

2022 o 2021
Rupees in thousand
Cost
' Balance' ét beginning' of the year B 52,400 - 52,400
Balance at end of the year 52,400 52,400
Depreciation
' Balance' ét beginning' of the year : (14,519) (13,209)
B Depreciétion for the yéar B (1 ,310)' ' ' (1 ,310)
' Balance' ét end of thé year (15,829) (14,519)
36,571 37,881
. Usetul life (years) 40 o 40

71 The market value of the investment property as on 31 December 2022 is Rs. 117.9 milion (20271: Rs. 100.084 million)
as per valuation carried out by an independent valuer. Useful life of the investment property is estimated to be 40 years.
72 The amount of depreciation has been allocated to management expenses.
2022 2021
8 . INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES Note . Rupees in thousand
Fair value through profit and loss 8.1 100,397 673
Available-for-sale ' 82 241591 205,859
Total equity securities 341,988 206,532
Number of shares / units 2022 2021
2022 2021 Cost Carrying Cost Carrying
value value
Rupees in thousand
8;1 ' ' Fair \)alue thfough prdfit or Idss
o ' Mutual funds' ' ' '
' 786 Smart Fuhd (Déwood Imcome
Fund) - 7,897 - - 654 673
AWT Financial Sector Fund 998,443 100,306 100,397 -
998,443 7,897 100,306 100,397 654 673
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2022 2021
Cost Impairment  Carrying Cost Impairment /  Carrying
/ provision value provision value

Rupees in thousand

82  Available-for-sale
~ LUstedshaes | 312120  (34972) 277,148|[ 232,161 - 232,161
Mutal funds - AFS | - X < < Xe'e
Unrealized (deﬁcit)/sUrplué on - o ' I -
revaluation - - (85,557) - - (29,241)
312120 (34,972) 241,591 235,100 - 205,859
2022 2021
Cost Impairment  Carrying Cost Impairment /  Carrying
/ provision value provision value
Rupees in thousand

Listed shares ] .. .. e }
 Askari Bank Limited 3983 - 3993 333 - 3353
 Avanceon Limited i . omr L opay
Bank Al Habb Limited .. 4789 - a7sg
Crergyico PK Limited e
'Engro'Corporati(')'n Limited” : e - 1p4d o 1,644
Faui Cement Company Limited 1571 - 1571 84 - 8lp
Fauj Fertlizer Bin Qasim Limted - - . s . 541
Fauj Fertlizer Company Limited = - . qa451 . 1445]
Faysal Bark Limited e - e -
GlxoSmitKine PakistanLimted 1,178 (476) 702 2507 - 2507
Habib Bark Limited 35874 (15481) 20394 21083 - 21,088
Honda Atias Cars (Pakistan) Limited 7662 (2,176) 5487 4674 - 4674
ntematonal Industries Limited 3314 - 3314 83 - 803
Intermational Steels Limited 378 - 3788 1722 - 1720
Lucky Cement i 9429 - o4 433 - 4358
MCBBankLimted 120021 - 129021 88923 - 58028
National Refinery Limited 8210 - 3210 786 - 756
Nishat Mils Limited 2796 - 2796 160 - §160
(Ol & GasDevelopment Company 243138 - 24313 159056 - 15906
Pak Elektron Limted . 4E0 - 48
Pak Suzuk Motor Company Limited 18,036 (6,083) 11,953 15465 - 15466
*Pakistan Pefroleum Limited 19850 - 19,850 11476 - 11,476
Pakisten State Oil Company Limited 30,006 (9,560) 20,447 24,704 - 24704

©
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2021
Cost Carrying Cost Impairment / Carrying
value provision value
Rupees in thousand

. Sui Norther Gas Pipeline Limited 6,484 6484 6857 - 6,857
gystemlimted - - sm3 - 54
The Searl Company Limited 2741 (1,196) 1545 1,418 1,418
United Bark Limited 8,198 8,198 11,148 S 11,148
312,120 277151 282,163 - 232,163

Unredlized surplus / (deficit) on revaluation (35,557) (29,709)
241,594 202,454
Mutual funds S
Dawood Income Fund - - 2939 : 2,939
: S ewm - omo
' Unreéliiéd surblﬁé / (deﬁc'it')r bn revé\ﬁétion - 469
] 3,408
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8.3 Investments in units / shares - quoted
Number of Face value Investee name Carrying value
shares / units per sh_are /
unit
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees in thousand
- 39,989 1OQ 786 Sﬁwéﬂ Fund (Ii):e:lwood Inc:o:me Fund): - 2,939
Carrying value - before provision _ 2039
Proviréion for dihﬂfﬂution ih fnarket \/aI'Qé 7 - - 7 B B '
Carrying value - 2,939
Market value - 3,408
9 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES
2022 20217
Cost i Con  vanes  Cot REE R
. Noté Rupees in thousand
HELDTO MATURITY -
. Gd\)éfnment Securifiéé
. Pakiéfan Investment Béhds . 9,717 2,172,187 - 2,172187|| 2,174,760 - 2,174,760
. Treééer Bills . 92 7 342,340 - - 342,340 7 122,0707.. . ”7122,007
- - 2,514,527 - 2,514,527 2,296,767 - 2,296,767
 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE R ' . '
. Terrrrnr Finance Oertiﬁcéﬁéé . 93 160,000 - 160,000 160,000 160,000
. Su@ks . 94 ?5,025 - - 75,025 7 100,0725.. o 777100,025
. Un}éélized surplus oh Vré'valuation - 7 - 293 7 - o 1,807
- 235,025 - 235,318 260,025 261,832
' LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - .
. Cerr’r(irﬂbates of Investrﬁéﬁts i1,128 - 7(11;128)7” - 11,1728.. (1717,1287) -
2,760,680 (11,128) 2,749,845 2,567,920 (11,128) 2,558,599
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9.1 Pakistan Investment Bonds
Face Value Rz:gf;) P;;;fgn . Type of Security Maturity 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
5O,OOO,OOOV - 78.767% : On !\/laturi& 7777777 Pakirsrtan Investment Bbﬁds ) 12;Ju|728 40,973 39,927
37,500,000 78.767% : On !\/laturiﬂ) 7777777 Pakirsrtan Investment Bbﬁds ) 712—Ju|;28 - 30,767 h 29,987
25,000,000 79.007% ) On !\/latur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Baﬁds : 179—Sep—722 a o 24,865
25,000,000 79.507% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Béﬁds : 179—Sep—724 a 23,927 R 23,389
25,000,000 78.007% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Béﬁds : 1VO—Dec-730 a 22,336 R 22,123
50,000,000 79.507% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Béﬁds : 179—Sep—724 a 50,071 R 50,095
150,000,000 79.507% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Béﬁds : 179—Sep-724 a 149,789 R 149,643
200,000,000 77.007% : On !\/Iatur@ 7777777 Pakirs:tan Investment Baﬁds : éO—Aug—éS a 197,429 R 193,73?
120,000,000 77.507% : On !\/Iatur@ 7777777 Pakirs;tan Investment Béﬁds ) ﬁS—Oct-éfi - 113,481 h 111,522
50,000,000 78.007% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs;tan Investment Béﬁds ) 1VO-Dec-VSO - 44,199 h 48,740
200,000,000 77.OOV% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs;tan Investment Béﬁds ) éO—Aug—éS - 198,148 h 196,47971
350,000,000 77.507% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs;tan Investment Béﬁds . i6—Oct—é5 . 7336,5797 h 332,5{1
175,000,000 77.507% : On Matur@ 7777777 Pakirs;tan Investment Béﬁds ) i6—Oct—é5 - 168,217 h 166,150
200,000,000 800% OnMatulty  PakistanlvestmentBonds — 10-Dec30 181,368 179,857
100,000,000 800% OnMatulty  PakstanlvestmentBonds — 10-Dec30 90584 89,821
70,000,000 700% OnMatuilty Pakistan Investment Bonds ~ 20-Aug-23 69,379 68,489
714OV,OOO,VOOOV 7.750% . On Vl\r/laturitry : Pakistén Investfﬁent Bonds : 15;Oct;25” 7 134,4718 h 135,%19
7 6O,VOOO,COOV 8.700% . On VI\V/Iaturitry Pakistén Investfﬁent Bonds : 1OV—DeCLSOH 7 54,015 h 53538
724OV,OOO,VOOOV 9.750% . On Vl\r/laturitry : Pakistén Investfﬁent Bonds : 197—Sep;24” 7 241,755 h 245,602
725,VOOO,COOV 9.700% .On VI\V/Iaturitry . Pakistén Investfﬁent Bonds : 197—Sep;22” R 25064
7 BO,VOOO,VOOOV 7.750% . On Vl\r/laturitry . Pakistén Investrﬁent Bonds : 297Apr;27” 7 24,734 - -
2,172,187 2,174,760

9.1.1

These carry interest at effective rate of 8.49% to 13.49% per annum (2021: 8.56% to 13.60% per annum) and will mature by 10 December
2030 (2021: 10 December 2030). Market value of PIBs carried at amortised cost amounts to Rs. 2,310.7 million (2021: Rs.2,052.5

million).
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9.2 Treasury Bills
Profit Profit . Maturity
Face Value Rate % Payment Type of Security Date 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
125,000,000 10.66%  Maturity Treasury Bills 10-Mar-22 - 122,007
75,000,000 16.67%  Maturity Treasury Bills 12-Jan-23 72,389 -
175,000,000 16.70%  Maturity Treasury Bills 26-Jan-23 168,898 -
105,000,000 16.97%  Maturity Treasury Bills 9-Mar-23 101,053 -
342,340 122,007
9.2.1 Treasury bills are placed as statutory deposit with State Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the requirements of clause (a) of sub section
2 of section 29 of Insurance Ordinance, 2000.
9.3 Term Finance Certificates
Number of certificates Cn.adlt Mark up Rate Investee Value of Certificates
rating name
2022 2022 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
15,000 15,000 AA 6-M KIBOR Plus 150 bps Bank Al Habib 75,000 75,000
15,000 15,000 AA 6-M KIBOR Plus 150 bps Bank Alfalah 75,000 75,000
2,000 2,000 A 6-M KIBOR Plus 200 bps Soneri Bank 10,000 10,000
160,000 160,000
9.3.1 The term finance certificates have a maturity of ten years and are maturing on 05 January 2028 to 20 December 2028 (2020: 05
January 2028 to 20 December 2028)

9.4

Sukuks

Number of certificates

2021

Mark up Rate

Investee name

Value of Certificates

2022 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
50 50 Based on Month\y Shariah Pool 7 Meezan Bank Limited ) 50,025 50,025
The Hub Power
500 500 3-M KIBOR Plus 190 bps Company Limited 25,000 50,000
Cost of certificates 75,025 100,025
Unrealised surplus on revaluation 293 1,807
Carrying value 75,318 101,832
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2022 2021
' the . Rurbrées in t'housrairid

10 . LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES .
. Sundry recsivables iQ.i . 1437,9777 . 108,716
. Advances td employees 1Q.2 . ”3747 . 365
. Staff houser building ﬂnaricem iQ.S . 3129 . 4012
Accrued investment income 57,831 48,387
205,284 161,480

10.1 . Sundry receivables o
. Security deposits - 167,921 . 18,012
. Advances td suppliers - unsscured, considered good 3373 . 1,836
. Reoeivabieragainst sale of Iaptops 5292 . 3,218
. Reoeivabieragainst sale of yeiwicies - 511 . 611
. Deposit against vehicles Ijardh 287,74706 . 17,752
. Health Ciaim recoverable 217,557 . 31,170
. Eamest money - 497,70728 . 18,345
Other receivables - unsecured, considered good 18,789 17,772
143,977 108,716
10.2 These represent short term interest free advances given in accordance with terms of employment. These are secured and

considered good. The maximum amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. Nil (2021:

Rs. Nil) and outstanding balance at 31 December 2022 is Rs. Nil (2021 Rs. Nil).

10.3 These represent housebuilding finance loans given to employees in accordance with terms of employment. Interest is

charged at the rate of 6 months KIBOR. These are secured and considered good.

2022 2021
11 INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES . the quses in t.housrairid
. Due from insurance contracrtr holders - ii.i 1,3367,7412 . 1,279,055
. Less: provision for impairmeni of receivables Vii'om - o

insurance contract holders 1.2 (9,965) (10,174)
1,326,447 1,268,881
. Due from oiher insurers / reinsurers - 1.4 . 149,051 171,541

. Less: provision for impairmsrji of receivables irom - -
other insdrers/ reinsurers” 117.5 . (619) (5,392)
148,432 166,149
1,474,879 1,435,030
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1.1 Due from insurance contract holders

This includes premium amounting to Rs. 2,712 thousand (2021: Rs. 2,611 thousand) and Rs. 81,628 thousand (2021:
Rs. 78,077 thousand) receivable from the Parent and associated undertakings respectively, the movement of which is as
follows:

2022 2021

Receivable from parent:

Balance at beginning of the year 2,611 1,639

Insurance premium written (including government levies,

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 10,619 10,776
Premium received during the year (10,519) (9,804)
Balance at end of the year 2,711 2,611

Receivable from associated undertakings:

Balance at beginning of the year 78,077 69,079

Insurance premium written (including government levies,

. administrgtjye surcharge angl policies stamps) - 147]82 - 138,287
Premium received during the year (144,232) (129,289)
Balance at end of the year 81,627 78,077

11.2 . Provision for doubtful balances .
. Balance at beginning of the year . o 10,174 - 20,760
Provision made / (reversed) during the year (209) (10,586)
Balance at end of the year 9,965 10,174
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2022

1.3

parties:

Age analysis of amounts receivable from related

Uptolyear 2,456 2,253
Tto2yeqgs 228 7777777 242
2 to 3 years 27 116
2,711 2,611

. Receivablg Vfrrom associateq Vundertakingrsrzr 7777777777777777
Uptolyear 79314 7777777 74,453
Tto2yegs 1463 7777777 2,288
2 to 3 years 850 1,336
81,627 78,077

1.4 . Due from other insurers /7 rejnsurers 7777777777777777777
Consideredgood 148432 7777777 171,541
Considered doubtful 619 5,392
149,051 176,934
Provision for doubtful balances 619) (5,392
148,432 171,541

1.5 Provisionr fqr doubtful balgpqes 7777777777777777777
Balance at beginning of the yeear 5392 7777777 15,500
Provision made during the year 4,773) (10,108)
Balance at end of the year 619 5,392
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12 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The company operates an approved gratuity scheme for all employees. The eligible employees under the scheme are 327
(2021 : 327). The latest actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2022 under the Projected
Unit Credit Method as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, the
details of which are as follows:

2022 2021
' Néte - RQbées in t'housrerlhrd
12.1 - Amount reébgnized in the bélance sheet - . o -
. Present value of defined benefit obligation . 12.3 o 212,020 - 178,024
Benefits due but not paid during the year 4,012 4,067
. . N 216,032 182,091
Fair value of plan assets 12.4 (185,357) (141,982)
Net liability at end of the year 30,675 40,109
12.2 . Movement in liability recognized in balance sheet . - o
. Balance at peginning of theryear - - 40 71709 - 36,469
Expense for the year 19,113 16,461
. Actuarial (géin) /loss recoghizéd in other corhbrehensive . -
income (8,015) 18,011
| ) } R 56207 . 70941
Contributions to the fund during the year (25,532) (30,832)
Balance at end of the year 30,675 40,109
12.3 . Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefits obliga’tion. . -
. Present valure of obligationsrars at beginning Qf the year . 7 . 1787Q24 o 142,393
. Current seryice cost - - 167378 o 14,653
. Interest cost - - 20,597 - 13,883
. Benefits paid - - (27,79772) o (5,5606)
. Benefits dug but not paid - - (27,75707) - (1,822)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 2,500 14,483
Present value of obligations as at end of the year 212,020 178,024
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2022 2021
124 . Movement in the fair value of plan assets - Rﬁbéés in t.housrérr'lrd
. Fair value pr\an assets as Qt beginning of trheryear - 141”,982 - 108,435
. Interest inQQme on plan assgts - 17,861 7777777 12,075
. Contributian’rto the fund . 7 o 257,75732 7777777 30,832
Benefits paid (5,533) (5,832)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 5,515 (3,528)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 185,357 141,982
12.5 - Expense frqrrthe year S
. Current seryi;:e cost - 16378 7777777 14,653
. Interest cost - 20596 7777777 13,883
Interest income on plan assets (17,861) (12,075)
Expense for the year 19,113 16,461
12.6 The estimated charge to profit & loss account for the defined benefit plan for the year ending December 31, 2023 is Rs.

18,404 thousand and expected contribution for the year ending 31, 2023 is Rs 25,533 thousands.

12.7 Composition of fair value of plan assets
E 2022 - oo
Fair value Percentage Fair value Percentage
""""""" ' Rupées 'in . F'%Q'bées in . '

- - - thousand % thousand %

. Debrtrirr)rstruments 77777 - 7 22,442 12%7 B ”67,799 o 7487%

. Cash and bark balances - - 639 0% N 20,962 - 15%
Mutual funds 162,277 88% 53,221 37%
Fair value of plan assets 185,358 100% 141,982 100%
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12.8 Comparison of present value of defined obligation, fair value of plan assets and surplus / (deficit) of gratuity fund for the last
four years:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 212,020 178,024 142,393 124,970 107,728
Fair value of plan assets (185,357) (141,982) (108,435) (89,814) (80,3083)
Deficit 26,663 36,042 33,958 35,156 27,425

Effect of remeasurement:
- Actuarial (gain) / loss on
experience adjustment

on obligation 2,500 14,483 1,488 (2,409) 2,602

- Actuarial (loss) / gain on

on plan assets 5,515 (3,528) (2,046) (9,262) (8,511)

12.9 Sensitivity Analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumption used. The following table summarizes the
impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period as a result of a change in the respective
assumptions by one percent.

Increase / decrease in defined benefit obligation

2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
1% 1% 1% 1%
. 7 7 7 7 7 - increase Hrdecrease S inCrease decrease
Discount rate 7 7 7 195693 230689 163571 195140
Future salary growth 7 7 230,79 195374 195164 163,230

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as
when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized within the statement of financial position.
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2022 2021
127.107 Significant Actuarial Assumptidh 7777777 7 ber .an.num B
The following significant assumptirorrjs”harve been used for valuation of this scheme:
. a) Expected rate of increase in salgry Vleryel 14.507% . 117.7775%
- p) Discount rate 14.507% . 117.7775%
12.11 Risks
- These defined benefit plans expo's”e' Vth'e”Company o actuarial risks, such as \'ongévit'y risk, currency ris'k, i'nterest rate'r'irsk,
final salary risk, asset volatility, withdrawal and market (investment) risk.
2022 2021
777777777 Néte . ”Rupees fn fhousand
13 STAFF COMPENSATED ABSENCES 131 44,185 38,633
The company provides leave encashment plan to all employees. The eligible employees under the scheme are 327 (2021
. 327). The latest actuarial valuation of leave encashment was carried out as at December 31, 2022 under the Projected
Unit Credit Method as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, the
. details of which are as follows:
13.1 . Movement in liability .
. Balance at beginning of the year - 38,633 . 34,320
. Charge for the year 13.1.1 . 7,526 . 7,573
Benefits paid (1,974) (3,260)
Balance at end of the year 44,185 38,633
13.1.1 . Charge for the year .
. Current servicecost 3,150 . 3@04
. Interest cost 4,423 . 3,187
Actuarial loss / (gain) on experience adjustment 47) 1,282
7,526 7,573
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2022 2021
14 DEFERREDTAXATON Rupees in thousand
Deferred tax debits arising in respect of:
. Provisiorhrfbr impairment ihrlrdans and recéi\}éb\es investm 'nts 3672 7777777 3,227
- Effect orfr frermeasurementr brfr étaﬁ retiremehrtrbreneﬂt plans ' - 5253 . 6,248
. Unrealiz”edr\osses on AFS ihVestments 7777777 1 1,637 7777777 7,956
- Provisbhré{gaimst premiu%ﬁrdue but unpaid 777777 3288 7777777 2,950
. Provisidh”argainst amountrérdrue from otherrrirhrsurers / reinsu'rersr - 204 B 1,664
Provisiorhrfbrdiminution ihr\r/élue of AFS inQééiments ' . 11540 .
- Others 730 77777777
36,324 21,945
15.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
~ Asatdanuayol 21,945 13,748

Provisbhfér impairment ihrbans and recéi\}éb\es inves‘[me.nts 445
- Provisbhrérgaimst premiufh”due but unpaidm - 338 . (8,670)
- Provisbhrégamst amoumré,rdrue from otherrrirhrsurers / reinsu'rersr - (1360) : (2,931)
Provisbhfdrdiminution ih”vélue of AFS invééfments . - 11540 R R
“Others 730

. Effect orfr Vrrermeasurementr brfr étaﬁ retiremehrt”breneﬂt plans R (995) 5,223
. Unrealiz”edr\osses on AFS Vihr\/estments 7777777777 3,681 R 8,7976
As at December 31 36,324 21,945
15 PREPAYMENTS
- Prepaid rerirhrsrurance premitrjfﬁr Ceded 77777 665,084 7777777 559,058
Prepaidrent 2624 75
Others 5252 3,674
672,960 562,807
16 CASH AND BANK
- Cash & cash equivalents:
‘Cashinhand 1621 1,549
. Policy & F?é\)énue stamps, Bond papers . 762 '''''' 416
2,383 1,965
Cash at bank
. Curentaccounts 24663 ....... 45,517
. Deposit accounts - local currehéy 777777777777 268700 ....... 153,892
293,363 199,409

16.1 These carry an annual effective markup rate ranging from 3.7% to 14.5% (2021 : 2.52% to 8%).
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16.2

During the year, the Company has obtained running finance facility of Rs. 300,000 thousand from Bank Al Habib Limited
at 3 months average KIBOR + 0.4%, prevailing on the date of disbursement. Tenor of the facility is one year. 110% Lein is
marked over market value of Pakistan Investment Bonds as security procured through Bank Al Habib's account maintained

at Pak Oman Investment Bank.

17 SHARE CAPITAL 2022 2021
17;1 . Authorized Cabital 7 RLVJpees.iﬁ fhoﬁsand
2022 2021 -
Numbért 6f sharés
©100,000000 100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
172 - Issued, subsqribed and paid-gp share gapital
2022 N 2021 2022 2021
Numbrer.qf shares 3 - 7 - 7 7 Rupees inrthousand
o 7 3 Ordinan/ shares Qf Rs. 10 Qach issued as: 7 7 -
24,358,699 B 24,358,699 - ful\yrpaid cashrshares - 7 243,587 - 243,587
47,543,196 47,543,196 - fully paid bonus shares 475,432 475,432
71,901,895 71,901,895 719,019 719,019
17.3 Army Welfare Trust (AWT) and directors hold 42,600,734 (2021 42,600,734) and 545,939 (2021: 545,939) ordinary
shares of the Company respectively at the year end.
2022 2021
' the . Rubées in t'housérrlrd
18 - RESERVES
. Capital reserve -
Share premium 1217,71761 . 121,161
: Revenue rééerves
General reserves - (23,923) (1 8,887)
AFS Revalruation reserve (23,923) (18,887)
46,077 51,113
167,238 172,274
19 - LEASE LIABILITIES - - -
. Lease Iiability - right of use assets - rental prqperties 1127,72702 . 140,879
Lease liabilities - right of use assets - vehicles 87,552 72,227
199,754 213,106
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19.1 Liabilities against assets - secured
2022 2021
L Financial Present value - Financial Present value
Minimum L Minimum -
charges of minimum charges of minimum
lease lease
for future lease for future lease
payments payments

periods payments periods payments

- - Rupees in thousand
Not later than one year 80,398 23,824 56,785 74,989 14,932 60,057
Later than one year and not

later than five years 141,624 30,832 110,792 156,989 33,778 123,211
Later than five years 52,688 20,510 32,177 57,639 27,801 29,838
274,710 75,166 199,754 289,617 76,511 213,106
19.2 Interest rate used in calculation of lease liability is 6-months KIBOR +.7% for vehicles and 1-year KBOR + 1% for rental
properties.
2022 2021
the . Rﬁbées ih fhouséhd
20 INSURANﬁiCiE / REINSURANCE PAYABLE;S:,:
. Amount due to other insurers . - 604,421 o 429,064
Amount due to foreign reinsurers 429,688 404,415
1,034,109 833,479
21 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS - -
. Agents' cqmmission payablre” - 787,77762 o 61,256
. Tax deductgd atsource - 5,282 o 5,185
. Federal exqise duty / federarlrinsurance fee - 76]27 o 46,116
. Accrued expenses - 11,623 o 9,166
. Fund receiyed against \easerdr vehicle . 217.1 - 227583 o 20,029
. Fund receiyed against vehiqlg liarah . 217.1 - 13?550 o 7,733
.Uneameol rgntal income - 2376 . 5,749
Others 58,883 47,654
269,786 202,887
211 . Funds received from executives -
. Fund received against leased vehicle - 9,589 - 6,330
Fund received against vehicle ljarah 5,472 197
15,061 6,527
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22.1.2

22.1.3

22.1.4

22.1.5

22.1.6

22.1.7

22.1.8

22.2
22.2.1

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Inland Revenue authority framed an order under section 161/205 of the Ordinance creating a tax demand of Rs. 4.25
million for alleged non-withholding of tax on various heads of account for the Tax Year 2015. The Company filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"] against the impugned order. The CIR(A) confirmed the
order. Subsequently, being aggrieved with the order, the Company filed second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue [ATIR], which is subjudice till date.

Tax assessments for Assessment Years 1996-1997 to 1999-2000 were finalized by the tax authorities mainly by curtailing
management expenses and thereby raising demands aggregating to Rs. 6.6 million. On appeals filed by the Company, these
assessments were set aside by the ATIR. The Department has filed reference applications to the High Court on question of
admissibility of management expenses for the Assessment Years 1996-1997 to 1999-2000.

The Inland Revenue Tax authorities issued an order raised a demand of Rs. 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim of
input tax credit, short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period 2017. The Company being aggrieved with decision
fled an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who uphold the decision. Subsequently the Company filed
an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending disposal to date.

The Inland Revenue Tax authorities issued an order raised a demand of Rs. 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim of
input tax credit, short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period 2017. The Company being aggrieved with decision
fled an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who uphold the decision. Subsequently the Company filed
an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending disposal to date.

Taxation officer of Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) framed the Order-in-Original No 285 of 2022 dated 11 February 2022 raising
atax demand of Rs 288.13 million on account of non-payment of Sindh sales tax on reinsurnace premiums and commission
from reinsurer for the period January 2014 to Decemeber 2015. The management believes that the nature of demand is not
appropriate as per applicable rules/laws/regulations and would result in double taxation and has filed an appeal before the
CIRA).

Taxation officer of SRB issued show cause notice No 818082 dated 28 January 2022 alleging the Company for under dec-
laration of insurance premiums and short payment of sindh sales tax for tax periods January 2014 through December 2015.
The Company has obtained stay from High Court of Sindh against the notice.

The Inland Revenue Tax autorities issued an Order-in-Origianl No 04/2020 dated 31 december 2020 raising a demand of
Rs 1.39 million on account of inadmissible claim input tax credit and short payment of Federal Excise Duty for the tax period
2017. The Company preferred an appeal before the CIR(A) who deleted the tax demand to the extent of Rs 9,277 and upheld
the remaining impugned tax demand throguh Order-in-Appeal No 06 dated 12 July 2021. Being aggrieved with the Appellate
Order of CIR(A) , the Company has filed an appeal before the ATIR which is pending disposal. The Company has deposited
total 15% of the impugned tax demand to avalil stay order against the recovery of the impugned tax demand.

Others

Certain claims have been filed against the Company. The management, based on the opinion of its legal counsels, believes
that the above mentioned matters are most likely to be decided in favour of the Company at superior appellate forums and
no charge is required to be recognised and carried in the financial statements. Management on the basis of nature and facts
of the claims believes that expected outcome of these cases will be favorable and adverse financial impact, if any, on these
financial statements is not likely to be material.

Commitments

The Company's commitment under liarah arrangement with Meezan Bank Limited is Rs. 67.04 milion (2021: Rs 37.6 million). The
contracts have a term of five years.

2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

Future Minimum ljarah (lease) payments are as under:;

188

Not later than one year 17,431 9,139
Later than one year and not later than five years 50,567 28,469

67,998 37,608
liarah payments recognized in expense during the year 17,047 8,067
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22.2.2  The Company’'s commitment under rental agreements with lease term of less than 1 year are:

2022 2021
Ru'brées fn t.housraihrd
. Not later tham one year . V o 2624 - 2,385
' Rental payrﬁents recognizedr ih the expenserdruring the year' - 1(7)7,544 o 10,072

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

23 - NET INSUhANCE PREMIUM
- Written grdéé premium ' 7 - 4,04‘7I7,72755 o 3,606,497
. Add: Unééfned premium rééerve opening . 1,715,511 - 1,493,846
' Less: Unéémed premium fééerve closing ' 7 o 1,8237,76722 o 1,719,511
Premium earned 3,937,144 3,380,832
. Less: Reihéurance premiurﬁ beded - 1,616,229 1,323,827
. Add:r V Prepaid reinsurréhce premium dbéning - 5597,70758 ) 7 448;281
Lesrsrzr Prepaid reinsuféhce premium crlbrsing - 6657,70784 ) 7 559,7(7)58
Reihéurance expensér 7 . - 1,510,203 1,208,050
2,426,941 2,172,782
24 ~ NET INSURANCE CLAIMS . - -

~ Claims paid - 1,889,692 - 1,887,268
. Add: Outgtanding claims irpluding IBNR cloging - 7637,72791 - 639,160
Less: Outstanding claims including IBNR opening 639,160 735,247
. Claims expense - 2,013,823 1,791,181
. Less: Reihgurance and othq recoveries reqeived - 400,386 - 549,746

Add:, 7 Reinsurance anq other reooverigs in - - , -
mrespect of outstgnding claims Q\Qsing - 31(7)7,77712 - , 245,7466

LeS,S,:, Reinsurance anq other recoverigs in - - 7 -
mrespect of outstgnding claims Qpening - 245,465 381,046
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 465,633 414,166
1,548,190 1,377,015

241 Claim Development

The Company maintains adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of claim payments are normally
resolved within one year. The following table shows the development of the claims over a period of time. All amounts are

presented in gross numbers before reinsurance.
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Accident Year 2%:1;& 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
Rupees in thousand
At the end of accident year 8,920 18,534 25,764 29,786 1,735,753 2,058,520
One year later 10,602 22,302 29,863 688,815 549,750 -
Two years later 28,172 25,718 55,773 40,409 - -
Three years later 34,363 10,835 39,460 - - -
Four years later 21,321 3,318 - - - -
Five year later 10,665 - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 10,665 3,318 39,460 40,409 549,750 2,058,520 2,702,122
Less: Cumulative payments to date - (1,783 (18,767) (24,726) (492,698) (1,400,877) (1,938,831)
Liability recognized in statement of financial
position 10,665 1,555 20,693 15,683 57,052 657,643 763,291

24.2 The provision for IBNR on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2022 amounted to Rs. 304,102
. thousands (2021: Rs 239,937 thpusands). B
o 2022 202
25 NET COMMISSION AND OTHER ACQUISITION COSTS Rupees in thousand
V . Corﬁmissioﬁ paid ér payable V o V - 264,794 o 7288,980
. Aold:r Deferfed corﬁmissioh expehse oprenin.g. 102,363 - 71 18,5675
. Lesé: Defefred corﬁmissbn expénse clésing. 108,258 - 7102,868
Net commission 258,899 265,142
. Lesé: Comhwissioﬁ receivéd or récoverab\e B 337,403 314,365
. Add: Uhearned reinsufance crommisrsion. c.)penirng 97,068 V 86,896
Less: Uheamed reinsQrance éommisrsior.w.closihg 113,76ﬁ 97,068
Commiésion frém reinéurers V - V 320,710 304,193
(61,811) (49,050
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2022 2021

26 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES Note Rupees in thousand
7 Employeers”breneﬂt cost . 267.17 o 539940 R 496,918
Ret - 10544 """" 10,072
Communiééﬁon 77777777777 8414 7777777 6,643
Tracker déQiées 77777777777 5455 7777777 3,685

l\/lonitoringr rorfr wackers 6790 7777777
Printing aha Vétationery 7777777777 11768 7777777 7,699
Traveling and entertainmenf 7777777777 6863 7777777 5,062
Depreoiaﬁbﬁ Vand amortizaﬁbﬁ 777777 93679 VVVVVVV 83,083
Repair and Vrrﬁaintenance 7777777777 13605 7777777 9,324
utites 21579 14,425
Adverisement 1393 1,961
Legal andr bféfessional chérééé 777777 8929 7777777 8,311
Bankcharges 1840 1,768
Provision égéinst premium due butunpaid (4982) VVVVVVV (10,586)
Vehicle Ijéréhrrenta\s 7777777777 17047 7777777 8,709
I\/Iisce\lané@é 77777777777 9239 7777777 24,219
752,103 671,193

26.1 7 Employerers”benefit cost
Salaries, allowance and other benefits . o 502,507 459,890
Charges for post employment benefits 26.2 37,433 37,028
539,940 496,918
26.2 This includes charges for defined benefit plans, staff compensated absences and defined contribution plans amounting to

Rs. 19.11 million (2021: Rs. 16.46 milion), Rs. 7.52 million (2021: Rs. 7.57 million) and Rs. 14.51 million (2021: Rs. 12.99

million) respectively.
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INVESTMENT INCOME Note

Dividend income on investments

2022

Dividend income on securities held for tradinrg” 528 34
. Dividend ihééme on availablrérfor sale investfﬁénts 187,%22 VVVVV 16,945
19,250 16,979
. Income frérﬁ debt securitiéé 7777777777
. Return on é&emment Sechifies 246,415 200,714
. Return on &her fixed incomé Vsecurities 367,79785 25,%21
. 283,400 226,435
. Net realisércrj'gains on inveéfments 7777777777
. Gain on tréaihg of held for tféding investmenrtrs” 1,521 534
. (Loss) / Géirrrwron sale of avairlérarble—for—sa\e invéé;[ments ({,71784) 87,7568
. 337 9,102
. Unrealizedr bfofit on re—measwurrement of invééfrﬁents held fof traolring 91 - 19
. Provision féf diminution in a\}éilable—for»sale ihr\}éstments . (34,9%0) VVVVV
. Reversal fcr)rrrdiminution in vélﬁe of Cer’[iﬂcater(rarfrInvestments S .
. Investmenf Vrrer\ated expensersw . (148) VVVVV (133)
Total investment income 267,960 262,402
28 . RENTAL INCOME VVVVVVVVVV
. Rental incéhﬁé 6,013 VVVVV 5,009
. Less: expéhées of investméht property (22) VVVVV (25)
5,991 4,984
29 . OTHER INCOME VVVVVVVVVV
V . Profit on bank deposits 257,78762 VVVVV 11,628
. \ehicle mcr)hritroring and otherrwservices VVVVV . 20,651
. Gain on sé\é Vof fixed assetsr ) 2,160 VVVVV 2,563
. Mark-up oﬁ Vsrtaff house builaihg finance 477 VVVVV 199
. Funds amé&iieol against Ieéééd vehicles 7,692 VVVVV 4,826
. Others 17609 VVVVV 1,255
53,800 41,022
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2022 2021
30 OTHER EXPENSES Rupees in thousand
7 Subscripﬁbﬁ 7777777777777 7,026 o 6,023
Auditors' férmwtrmeration 77777777777 2,287 o 2,015
9,313 8,038
30.1 V Auditors'r féﬁﬁuneration 77777777777
- Auditfee 1,287 o 1,015
Half yearl;rfrrrer\r/rievv 77777777777 450 - 450
Special ptrJrerbrse eview 250 o 450
Code of C&bérate Governéhée 777777 100 o 100
Other cerﬁﬁééﬁons 77777777777 200 o
2,287 2,015
317 FINANCEVVCV)O'STS 77777777777
7 Interest orrwr iéése ebiies 24,964 - 13,385
Interest orrwr Vrthning france 641 o
25,605 13,385
32 WINDOWfAKAFUL OPEhATIONS - OPF 77777
7 Wakala féé 777777777777777 170,125 o 168,419
Managerﬁéﬁf éxpenses 77777777777 (87,437) o (79,446)
Commissbﬁ Véxpenses 77777777777 (49,248) - (44,348)
l\/lodarib'é éhére of PTF invééfrhent ncome 9,797 - 5,384
Investmerﬁ Virnrcrome 77777777777 19,784 - 12,875
. Other incbrm”ér— et 5,547 - 1,965
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 68,568 54,849
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year

2022

Current 206,465 131,509
'Deferred (117,76973) VVVVV 5,883
. Prior yearr o
. Current o . 653
194,772 138,045
33.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
- . . . . 2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective tax rate - % Rupees in thousand
Profit for the year before taxation 549,860 506,458
. Tax atihe applieeble rate - - 279.070%7. ) 29.QO% - 159,459 - 146,5887
. Effect of items that are not considered N 3 B
. in determining taxable income - net -0.86% N -1.82% B (4,725) B (9,191)
. Effect of tax rate change 4.00% N 3 21,994 B
Effect of prior year adjustment 3.28% 0.13% 18,044 653
35.42% 27.31% 194,772 138,045
33.2 - Taxatien charged to other comprehensive ineome - 7
Deferred tax income / (expense) (1,232) (14,173)
7 . - - - 2022 2021
34  EARNINGS PER SHARE - 7 - 7
Profit after tax (Rupees in thousand) 355,088 367,413
Weighted average number of shares 71,902 71,902
Earnings (after tax) per share - (Rupees) 4.94 511
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35 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2022 2021

Ch'ef Directors Executives Chle.f Directors Executives
Executive Executive

Rupees in thousand

Fees - 1,560 - : 1565
Manageril remuneraton 20578 - 43666 16226 - 23906
leaveencashmert 949 - 1213 89 - 718
.Bongrsr - 87,113” R . 157,78907” B 7055 ”8,705
g;irge to defined benefit 1,744 ) 3,695 1,430 . 2004
Rentand house maintenance  83% - 18518 7,002 - 10607
.Uti\itire'é - 17;866.. R . 47,1157” B 17,7628” ”2,86777
.ConQéyanoem - ”935” R . 1(7)7,019”. B 17,7317” ”9,88737
.Provridrentfuhd - 17;554.. R . 27,7955”. B 17,7352” ”1,57747
.Othéks' - 2;495.. R . 13,7437”' B ”86” ”2,43757
46,630 1,560 113,508 37,200 1,565 62,241
‘Noofperson) 2 12 26 2 12 14
35.2 The Chief Executive and Executives are also provided with Company maintained cars.



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is a subsidiary of Army Welfare Trust (“the parent company’) therefore all subsidiaries and associated
undertakings of the parent company are related parties of the Company. Other related parties comprise of directors, key
management personnel, entities with common directorships and entities over which the directors are able to exercise
influence. Balances with related parties are shown in the note 12.1 and the remuneration of chief executive, executives
and directors is disclosed in note 36 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Transactions with related parties other than
those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2022 2027
Transactions with the parent company: Rupees in thousand

' Insurance brémium written (fhduding govemrﬁent levies - -

' administréﬁve surcharge and policies stambé) - 1(7)7,619 - 10,776
Premium received during the period 10,519 9,804
Insurance claims paid 2,842 1,113
Rent paid 29,782 27,693
Dividend Paid 106,502 88,929

. Transactiohrs with associa{éd undertakingé:

. Army Welféfe Sugar Mills )

. Insurance brémium written (ihduding governrﬁént levies

. administréﬁve surcharge and policies stambs) - 127,74702 o 9,003
Premium received during the period 12,454 7,890
Insurance claims paid 672 108

. Askari Aviéﬁon (Private) Lirrhrited

. Insurance brémium written (fhduding govemrﬁent levies

. administréﬁve surcharge and policies stambs) 7 2593 . 2,830
Premium received during the period 3,241 2,455
Insurance claims paid 917 380
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2022 2021
Askari Development and Holdings (Private) Limited Rupees in thousand

. Insurance bfémium written V(frrwroluding governﬁént levies S .

' administfé;tfve surcharge and policies starﬁbé) - 7320 7777777 8,298
Premium received during the period 7,760 8,176
Insurance claims paid 249 209

. Askari Entrérrrprises (Privafé) VLimited 77777777777777

. Insurance brémium written r(ihrcluding governfn”ént ovies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 240 335
Premium received during the period 336 284
Insurance claims paid 50 191

. Askari CNG Vand Fuels

. Insurance brémium written r(ihrcluding governfn”ént ovies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 4,878 2,499
Premium received during the period 7,507 3,377
Insurance claims paid 369 1,145

. Askari Guéfds (Private) Lfrﬁted 77777777777777

. Insurance brémium written r(ihrcluding governfn”ént ovies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 60,880 67,905
Premium received during the period 61,811 56,297
Insurance claims paid 15,993 2,782

. Askari Lagébn Faisalabadr o

. Insurance brémium written r(ihrcluding governfn”ént ovies

. administfé{fve surcharge and policies starﬁbé) S 67 77777777 67
Premium received during the period 203
Insurance claims paid - 50
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Askari Shoe Project

Insurance premium written (including government levies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps)

2022

2,403 1,641
Premium received during the period 2,390 1,694
Insurance claims paid 1,046 570

. Askari Tourrrs”and Travels o

. Insurance bfémium written r(fhrcluding governhw”ént evies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,095 431
Premium received during the period 224 145
Insurance claims paid 30 7

. Askari Wdéién Mills

. Insurance bfémium written r(fhrcluding governhw”ént evies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,264 714
Premium received during the period 1,346 770
Insurance claims paid 180 261

. AWT Plazé rFr’roject 777777777777

. Insurance bfémium written r(fhrcluding governhw”ént evies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 223 223

Premium received during the period -

Insurance claims paid 240 203

. Army Welféfé Trust CEO (Army Projects) dfﬁce 777777777777

. Insurance bfémium written r(fhrcluding governhw”ént evies
. administféifve surcharge and policies starhbé) 777777 . (4)
Premium received during the period - (4)

Insurance claims paid
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2022 2021

| Blue Lagd&h - Rﬁbéés fn t.hoursra'trrlrd

. Insurance bfémium written V(fhrcluding governfn”ént levies S -

. administféifve surcharge and policies Starﬁbé) 505 VVVVVV 263
Premium received during the period 664
Insurance claims paid - 60

. Fauji Secﬁfify Services (stiQate) Limited o

. Insurance bfémium written V(fhrcluding governfn”ént evies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 25,149 19,067

Premium received during the period 22,686 21,913
Insurance claims paid 1,129 1,208

. MAL Pakiéfén Lmited

. Insurance bfémium written V(fhrcluding governfn”ént evies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 15,003 12,122

Premium received during the period 12,648 13,262
Insurance claims paid 5,017 4,564
Petrosel Lubricants (Private) Limited

' Insurance brémium written r(fhrcluding governﬁént evies

. administféﬁve surcharge and policies starhbé) . (1 49) 777777
Premium received during the period -
Insurance claims paid -

. Army Welféfé Housing Séhréme 777777777777

. Insurance bfémium written V(frrwrcluding governﬁént evies

. administféfive surcharge and policies starﬁbé) - 566 VVVVVV 418
Premium received during the period 523 418
Insurance claims paid 24 24
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Insurance premium written (including government levies

2022

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 2,210 1,363
Premium received during the period 2,058 1,208
Insurance claims paid 599 763
Askari A[;V)Vprérrel 777777777777777777777777

. Insurancer bfémium written r(frrwrcrluding goverhhw”ént evies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) (206)

Premium received during the period -

Insurance claims paid -

AWT Invééﬂhents Limited 77777777777777777777777
. Insurancer bfémium written r(frrwrcrluding goverhhw”ént evies

administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 2,878 2,750
Premium received during the period 2,313 2,758
Insurance claims paid 1,809 680
Services Travels
Insurancer bfémium written V(fhéluding goverhﬁént evies

adminisfféfive surcharge and policies stahﬁbé) 77777 92 7777777 124
Premium received during the period 92 124
Insurance claims paid 17
Askari LifrérAssurance 777777777777777777777777
Insurancer brémium written r(ihrcrluding goverhfn”ént vies

adminis{fé{fve surcharge and policies stafﬁbé) 1640 7777777 2,841
Premium received during the period 4,101 2,783
Insurance claims paid 3,691 1,455
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2022 2021
. Askari Seeds 77777777777 - Rupees fn t.housand
. Insurancer bféfnium written r(frrwrcrluding goverhhw”éht levies - o
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 1,360 1,383
Premium received during the period 1,400 1,272
Insurance claims paid 366 604
. Medask
. Insurancer bféfnium written r(frrwrcrluding goverhhw”éht levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 5,225 4,011
Premium received during the period 435 4,567
Insurance claims paid 1,498 1,017
Jolidays (IsfiQate Limited)
. Insurancer bféfnium written r(frrwrcrluding goverhhw”éht levies
administrative surcharge and policies stamps) 144 4,011
Premium received during the period 40 4,567
Insurance claims paid 73 1,017
Transactiéhrsr,rwith other réiétéd parties
. Contributbhé fo Employeeér #fovident Fundr Trust - 47,432 o 41,945
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39 MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS
Held t_o Available- Fair value Loar_15 and Total
mraturltyr B for-sale ) through F&L . Vrecelvables B
Rupees in thousand

At beginning of previous year 2,216,657 323,591 654 - 2,540,901
. Additions ) - 4;428,087 - 712,741 ﬂ 195,7000 - 7 5,335,828
. Disposals (sale andr Vredemptions) . . (4,@47,97%) - (637,694) ﬂ (195,(500) - 7 (5,080,671)
. Fair value net gain (éxcluding net realised gains) . . 7 7 - - (30,947) ﬂ 7 19 - —7 - (30,928)
. Designated at fair vélue through profit / loss B . 7 - ﬂ 7 - o

upon initial recogniﬂorn - 7 - 7 7 7

Classified as held for trading - - -
. Impairment (loss) / féversal . . 7 7 - - - ﬂ 7 -

At beginning of current year 2,296,767 467,691 673 - 2,765,131
. Additions ) - 1;699,489 - 338,474 ﬂ 809,7099 - —” 7 2,847,063
. Disposals (sale andr Vredemptions) ) . (1 ,481,729) - (286,451) ﬂ (709,466) - —” V (2,477,645)
. Fair value net gain (éxcluding net realised gains) ) . ' ' - - (42,804) d ' 91 - _' o (42,713)
. Designated at fairvélue through profit / loss B . 7 7 ) N . ﬂ 7 ) - _7 o .

upon initial recognitpn 7 B -

Classified as held for trading - - - - -
. Impairment reversa\” . V V - V - V V - V —V V -

At end of current year 2,514,527 476,910 100,397 - 3,091,836

40

40.1

MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK
Insurance risk

The Company’s activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including interest / mark-up rate risk
and price risk). The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance. The Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material
change from previous year in the manner described in notes below.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company'’s risk management framework. The Board is
also responsible for developing the Company’s risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a
large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change in
economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The management monitors
and limits the Company’s exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client’s exposure and maintaining conservative estimates of provisions
for doubtful assets, if required. The management believes it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are
adequately diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.
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The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

2022

. Bank depééffs 293,363 196,392
. Investmentré” 3,09‘7I7,7871733 VVVVV 2,765,132
. Salvage reéb&eries accruedr . 3339 77777 3,769
. Advances to Vemployees 347 77777 357
. Amounts due from insurancre”contract holderrrs” 1,3267,74747 VVVVV 1,254,309
. Amounts due from other insLnfers / reinsurerér . 1487,7471732 VVVVV 180,721
. Accrued inr\r/rerstment incomem 57831 VVVVV 48,029
. Reinsuraméé Vrecoveries aga'irnrst outstanding Véiéims 31(7)7,7732 77777 245,466
. Staff housrer building ﬁnancer ) 3129 VVVVV 4,012
. Sundry recrérirvables 1447,79”77 77777 100,692

5,379,411 4,798,879

The Company does not hold any collateral against the above balances except for staff house building finance. Provision
against receivable is written off when the Company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. Except as already
provided for in these unconsolidated financial statements, past due balances were not impaired as they relate to a number
of policy holders and other insurers / reinsurers for whom there is no recent history of default. The age analysis of gross

receivables is as follows:

Amount Amount Reinsurance
.due from due from recov.erles Sundry 2022 201
insurance other against receivables  Aggregate Aggregate
contract insurers / outstanding ggreg goreg
holders reinsurers claims
Rupees in thousand
Upto 1 year 1,123,799 143,105 263,169 144,977 1,674,050 1,487,235
1-2 years 194,955 6,054 18,258 - 219,267 204,501
2-3 years 14,600 (449) 6,187 - 20,338 49,437
Over 3 years 3,058 341 23,098 - 26,497 23,044
1,336,412 149,051 310,712 144,977 1,940,152 1,764,217

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:
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Rating Financial institution Rating Rating agency 2022 2021

Long term  Short term Rupees in thousand

Askari Bank Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA 241,359 168,925
S Sum m ,t Bank lelted ...................................... BBB ............. A_3 ........... JCR_V'S .............. 957 ........... 25 .
[ H ableanklelted AAA ............ A_1+ .......... JCRVlS .............. 852 .......... 231 .
S F aysa|BanK lelted ....................................... AA ............. A 1 + ............ PACRA ............. 2 001 ......... 2692 .
S S ”KBankumlted ......................................... A ............. A_2 ........... JCRVIS ................. ............. 1, .
[ B ankAlFa‘ahlelted AA+ ............. A 1+ ............ PACRA7 H
[ B ankAlHab‘blelted AAA ............. A 1+ ............ PACRA ............. 1356 ........ 16@

MeezanBankUm,ted AAA ............ A_1+ .......... JCRVIS ........... 14988 ............. 4 .

S TheBankOfPumab AA+ ............. A 1+ ............ PACRA ............... 387 ........ 1164

S N RSP ,\/“Croﬁnance Bamk ..................................... A_ ............. A2 ............. PACRA ............. 1409 ........ 3768 .

S JSBamK lelted ........................................ AA_ ............. A 1+ ............ PACRA ............. 1116 ........ 3181 .

S Smdh Bank L‘m,ted ....................................... A+ ............. A1 ............ JCRVIS ................. _ ............. R

S Bankomhyber .......................................... A ............. A1 ............. PACRA ............. 1294 ........... 29 .
© PunabProvioalCooperative Bank Exempted  Exempted Notapplicable 1565 1811
S Zara‘Taraquat‘Bank AAA ............ A1+ .......... JCRVIS ............ 2441 ........ 24995 .

S SambaBanKum‘ted ....................................... AA ............. A1 ............ JCRVIS ................. _ ............. R

S AH'edBamKLmted AAA ............. A 1+ ............ PACRA ............. 2459 .......... 778

S Te‘enor Mg@@ce Bank .................................... A ............. A1 ............ JCRVIS ................. _ ............. R

S chaM‘crOfmnce Ban,k ...................................... A ............. A1 ............. PACRA ............. 3098 ............. 2 .

S UM‘CrOfmamce éénk ....................................... A+ ............. A1 ............ JCR_V|S ............... 10 ........... 24 .

S M C B |S\am|c Bankmg ........................................ A ............. A1 ............. PACRA .................. _ ............. { .

S UmedBamk L‘m‘ted ...................................... AAA ............ A1+ .......... JCR_V|S ........... 18064 .......... W56 .
293,362 199,409
b) The credit quality of amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers and reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims can be assessed

with reference to external credit rating as follows:

2022 2021

Amount Reinsurance

due from recoveries

other against Aggregate Aggregate
insurers / outstanding
reinsurers claims

Rating Rupees in thousand

A or above 149,051 310,712 459,763 431,579
Others - - -
149,051 310,712 459,763 431,579

s
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C) The Company has diversified portfolio of investment to mitigate the risk. The credit risk exposure relates to investment in debt securities as
mentioned in note 10 to the unconsolidated financial statements. The Company has also maintained a provision against certain certificates of
investments as disclosed in note 10.5 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. Liguidity requirements are monitored by management to ensure that adequate
funds are available to meet any obligations as they arise. To guard against risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are
managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily marketable securities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities. The contractual maturities of these liabilities at the year
end have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Financial liabilities
not having a contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expected date on which these liabilities will be settled.

2022
Carrying Contractual Up to one More than
amount cash flows year one year

Rupees in thousand

. Provisionrforr outstandirrwgrgr claims (incIQaing IBNR) . 763,291 7 763,291 763,2971 - -
. Amountsrdrue to other iﬁéurers / reinsQrérs . 1,034,1767'57)7 d 71 ,034,ﬁ09 o i,034,10§ . -
. Other crerdﬁors and acér@a\s . 90,335 77777 7 90,385 - 90,385 - -
. Unc\aimerd”dividend . 9,70é 777777 7 9,708 - 9,708 - -
. Depositsrérnd other payéb\es . 59,0éi 77777 7 59,061 - 59,0671 - -
. Lease \iagi\ities . 199,7574”7. V 199,754 - 56,785 - 142,969
. Other Iiabirlirﬂes . 58,883 77777 7 58,883 - 58,885 - -

2,215,191 2,215,191 2,072,222 142,969

2021
Oarryihg 77777 VOontracrtualr N Up to oner . Moré thaﬁ
amount cash flows year one year

Rupees in thousand

. Provisionrfcr)r outstandiﬁrgr claims (inleéing IBNR) . 639,160 7 639,160 639,16@ .

. Amountsrdrue to other iﬁéurers / reinsgrérs . 888,477797”. V 888,479 - 888,47@ .

. Accrued Ver>r<penses . 7,00é 777777 V 7,00é - 7,00é .

. Other Crerdﬁors and acér@a\s . 182,57275”7. V 182,528 - 182,523 .

. Unc\aimer(rjrdividend . 10,97& 77777 V 10,9ﬂ - WO,9771 .

. Depositsrzrarnd other pag/éb\es . AS,WS% VVVVV V 48,W§7 - 48,137 .

. Lease \iagi\ities . 2W8,1(V)V6”w V 218,Wb6 - 60,05% - 158,049

. Other Iiatr)irlirﬂes . 86,6éé 77777 V 86,668 - 85,665 -
1,965,041 1,965,041 1,811,992 163,049
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iii) Market risk
a) Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of change in market variable
such as interest / mark up rate, foreign exchange rate and equity prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. The market risks associated with the Company’s business activities are interest / mark up
rate risk and price risk.
Interest / mark up rate risk
Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in the market
interest / mark up rates. The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to interest / mark up rates risk. The Company
limits interest / mark up rate risk by monitoring changes in interest / mark up rates in the currencies in which its cash and investments are
denominated. The Company’s financial liabilities are not exposed to interest / mark up rate risk. At the balance sheet date exposure to interest
bearing financial assets is as follows:
2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective interest rate (%) Carrying amounts
Rupees in thousand
Fixed rate financial assets
‘ 3.70% to
Deposit accounts 2.80% to 8% 268,700 153,892
14.5%
8.49% to 8.50% to
Investments 3,091,836 2,765,133
13.49% 13.48%
3,360,536 2,919,025
b) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company, at present, is not materially exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.
c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or foreign currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company'’s listed securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about the future value of investment securities.
The Company limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in equity market.

The following table summarises the Company’s price risk as at December 31, 2022 and 2021. It shows the effects of an estimated increase of
10% in the market prices as on those dates. A decrease of 10% in the fair values of the listed securities would affect it in a similar and opposite
manner.

Effect on fair

Fair value Price change
value

(Rupees in ‘000 (Rupees in ‘000)

December 31, 2022 341,991 +10% 34,199
341,991 -10% (34,199)
December 31, 2021 206,534 +10% 20,653
206,534 -10% (20,653)
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iv) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values except for available for sale and held to
maturity investments whose fair values are determined for disclosure purpose only and have been disclosed in their respective notes to these
financial statements.

Determination of fair values
Fair values have been determined for measurement / or disclosure purpose based on the following methods:
Investment in fair value through profit and loss account - held for trading

The fair value of held for trading investment is determined by reference to their closing repurchase price / price quoted on the stock exchange
at the reporting date.

Available-for-sale investment

The fair value of available for sale investment is determined by reference to their closing repurchase price / price quoted on the stock exchange
at the reporting date. They are being carried at fair value.

Held to maturity investment

Fair value for held to maturity investment is estimated as the present values of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date. They are being carried at fair value.

Non-derivatives financial assets and liabilities

The fair value is estimated based on the present values of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
However, since these assets and liabilities are due to be settled within one year, their fair values approximate their carrying values.

V) Capital management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concermn so that it can continue
to provide retuns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained
development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions.

In accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Rules, 2017 issued by the SECP, minimum paid-up capital requirement to be complied
with by insurance/ takaful companies as at December 31, 2017 and for subsequent years is Rs. 500 milion. As at December 31, 2022, the
Company's paid-up capital is in excess of the prescribed limit.

40.2 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risk that the Company faces
under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the
frequency or severity of claims is greater than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims will vary
from year to year from the level established.

Based on past experience, management is of the view that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome is. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of
these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of
industry covered.

(@) Frequency and severity of claims
Political, environmental, economical and climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe extreme events (for example, fire, theft,

steal, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, hurricanes, typhoons, river flooding, electric fluctuation, terrorism, war risk,
damages occurring in inland transit, burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, travel and personal accident, money losses , engineering

@
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(o)

losses and other events) and their consequences (for example subsidence claims). For certain contracts, the Company has also limited the
number of claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any policy vear.

Insurance contracts which are divided into direct and facultative arrangements are further subdivided into five segments: fire, marine, motor,
accident and health and miscellaneous. The insurance risk arising from these contracts is concentrated in the territories in which the Company
operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal properties / assets in the overall portfolio of insured properties / assets.
The Company underwrites insurance contract in Pakistan.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and
geography. The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent claims.
Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). The claim
payments are limited to the extent of sum insured on occurrence of the insured event.

The Company has entered into reinsurance cover / arrangements with local and foreign reinsurers having good credit rating by reputable rating
agencies, to reduce its exposure to risks and resulting claims. Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a
number of proportional and non-proportional facultative reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of a major
catastrophe. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Company recovers the share of claims from reinsurers thereby reducing
its exposure to risk. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional
reinsurance arrangements, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered under non-proportional treaty which is very much in
line with the risk management philosophy of the Company. In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly
submitted with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The Company has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether reported or not. This department
investigates and settles all claims based on surveyor’s report / assessment. The unsettled claims are reviewed individually on a periodic basis
and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively
manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims reported and otherwise are analyzed separately. The development of large losses / catastrophes is analyzed separately. The shorter
settlement year for claims allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims including IBNR.
However, the longer time needed to assess the emergence of a subsidence claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these
claims.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation value, reinsurance
and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome may be different from the original liability
established. The liability comprises amount in relations to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims
settlement costs and a provision for unexpired risks at the end of the reporting year.

Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In calculating the estimated cost
of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company estimation techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss
ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums eamed in a prior financial years in relation to
such claims) and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined basis where greater weight is given to actual claims
experience as time passes.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers any information available from surveyor's
assessment and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous years. Claims are assessed on a case-by-
case basis separately.
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Age-wise Breakup

. Total
Particulars amount 1106 7to12  13t024  25t036 Be%’g”d
months months months months
months

Rupees in thousand

Claims not encashed 106,223 88,782 5,190 8,464 3,786 -

(¢) Key assumptions
The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves is that the Company’s
future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The management uses qualitative
judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply in future. The judgement
includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors, economic conditions, etc.

(d) Changes in assumptions
The Company did not change its assumptions for the insurance contracts as disclosed in above (b) and (c).

(e) Sensitivity analysis
The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to number of variables which complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claim numbers and expected loss
ratios. The Company considers that the liability for insurance claims recognized in the balance sheet is adequate. However,
actual experience will differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market
conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit
before tax net of reinsurance.

Profit before tax Shareholders’ equity

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

10% increase in loss

. Fire and property damage . (1,789) . (1,658) (1,199) . (1,177)
. Marine aviation and transport . (2,154) . (2,357) (1,443) . (1,673)
Motor ' (16,626) (14,711) (11,139)  (10,445)
Health ' (20,524) (15,614) (18.751)  (11,086)
. Miscellaneous . (4,165) . (5,029) . (2,791) . (3,671)
(45,258) (39,369) (30,323) (27,952)

A 10% decrease would have had equal but opposite effect on the profit and loss account and shareholders’ equity.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, to the
Company's profit before tax and equity based upon closing balances and rates:

@
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Increase / )
(decrease) in Effect on profit Effect on equity
. : before tax
basis points
(Rupees in ‘000)

December 31, 2022 100 4,568 3,061
-100 (4,568) (3,061)
December 31, 2021 100 3,631 2,433
-100 (3,631) (2,433)

®

Concentration of insurance risk

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular type of policyholder, within a geographical
location or to types of commercial business. The Company minimizes its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a
number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme importance. There are
a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location, the most
important of which is risk survey. The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities.

G:::Srzzm Reinsurance Net
Rupees in thousand
2022
Freand property 744,390,706 666,441,971  77948,735
Marine, aviation and transport 613,988,830 372,182,600 241,806,230
CMotor 67852,699 1,885,714 65966985
Miscelaneouss 482,876,418 371,986,705 110,889,713
1,909,108,653 1,412,496,990 496,611,663
2021
Freand propety 513562,364 491036489 22,515,875
Marine, aviation arnrdrt'rénsport 777777 446;882,021 ' ”2817,704,7510 ' 27175,12777,511
Motor 57638482 2728206 54,910,275
Miscelaneouss 355,458,156 215,707,699 139,750,457
1873481023 941,176,004 432,304,118

Motor
Liability

Miscellaneous

The Company'’s class wise major risk exposure is as follows:

2022

Maximum Gross Risk Exposure

2021

Rupees in thousand

90,869,307

37,400,000
3,078,032
1,890,000

23,196,748

66,260,599
721 ,OCO,QOO
V 1 ,81@,%83
7 1 ,485,600
720,9178,(7300
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41 STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY 2022

Assets

. Property éh'd”equipmem '''''''''' 417,054
Intangible'érs'ééts '''''''''' 9,992
Investmehf 'b'rbperty '''''''''' 36,571
Investmerﬁ m éubsidiary 777777777777 -
Investmehfé 777777777777777
- Equity securies 341,988
- Debtsecurites 2,749,845
Loans andr 6fher reoeivabléé """""" 205,284
Insurance / Reinsurance receivables - unsecured,
considered good 1474879

. Reinsurahbé Vr'ecoveries agé'ihrs't outstanding cla|ms 310,712
Salvage rébd)eries accruéd 77777777 3,339
Taxation - béyments less bfé\)iéion 777777 -
Deferred Cbﬁwmission expéhéé / Acquisitioh cost 108,258
Deferred fékéfion '''''''''' 36,329
Prepayments 672,960
Cashandbark 295,746

' Total assété 'frrom WindoW'TéakafuI Operat'irdh's' - OPF 366,960
Total Assets (A) 7,029,912
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2022

. Rubéés in thousand

In-admissible assets as per following clauses of section 32(2)

of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

' (dj loans to emb\oyees 3,475
' (g) . receivable'frrrom related partiéé 89;342
7 (gj . investmenf \n subsidiary 10,7(7)00
' (hj ' insurance V/'feinsurance rec'e'i\'/ab\es for more”t'han three monfhs ' 589;394
7 (i)r .intangible éésets - 9;992
7 (j)r . deferred tékrasset 36;324
' (kj . security débosit receivable 16;921
' (kj .security débosits 59;061
7 (I)V . assets subjéct to encumbréhbes 330,7(7)00
(U-) vehidles 129,939
(Ui} office equipment 38,485
V(U)—V(ii) . office equibrhent (window tékéful operator's ﬁjrnd) 573
(U)-(ii) fixtures and fittings 8,171
(U)—(iii) . fixtures andr fittings (vvindovvrtrarkafu\ operator‘éfund) 7369
'82('5) . Right of us'é'assets - Rentalr broperties 96;657
~ Total of In-admissible assets (B) 1,418,703
Total Admissible Assets (C=A-B) 5,611,209
Total Liabilities
' Underwritrirhg Provisions
" Outstanding claims including IBNR 763,291
- Uneamedr bremium resewéé ' 1,823;622
- Uneamedr feinsurance conﬁﬁwission ' 113;761
' Retiremerﬁ Vbeneﬁt obligatiohé 30;675
' Staff combéhsated absences 44ﬁ85
' Lease Iiabiii{ies 199;754
' Taxation - bfovision less payfhent 28;864
 Premium received in advance 63,361
' Insurance '/”Reinsurance Payébles ' 1,034;109
" Unclaimed dividend . - 9,708
. Other Credifors and Acoruaiér 269;786
. Deposits anol other payablers” 59;061
Total Liabilities 4,440,176
Total liabilities from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 118,919
Total Liabilities (D) 4,559,095
Total Net Admissible Assets (E=C-D) 1,052,114
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' Method C - Uss 36(3)(c)

2022
Rupees in thousand

' Minimum éblvency requirérhent (higher of fbllowing) ' - . 485,388
Method A - U/s 36(3)(a)

Method B - U/s 36(3)(b)

Excess in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Requirements 566,726

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

42

Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
2022 2021
Rupees in thousand

43 WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS - OPF
Assets
Cash and bank deposits 92,076 66,887
Investments 177,479 179,450
Current assets - others 96,462 84,247
Fixed assets 943 608
Total assets 366,960 331,192
Total liabilities - current 118,919 102,923
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF 68,568 54,849
Details of total assets, total liabilities and segment disclosure of window takaful operations are stated in the annexed financial
statements.

44 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purposes of
comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions.

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
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45 NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on 15 March 2023 have proposed a final cash dividend of
Rupees 2.9 per share.

46 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
15 March 20283.

47 GENERAL
Number of employees
Total number of employees at the end of the year were 377 (2021: 384). Average number of employees during the year
were 387 (2021: 391).

/A T R

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman
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INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT ON WINDOW TAKAFUL
OPERATIONS OF ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 31
DECEMBER 2022

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT
OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE TAKAFUL RULES 2012

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of Askari General Insurance Company Limited (the Company) to report on the management's
assessment of compliance, as set out in the annexed Statement of Compliance (the Statement) prepared by the management for the
year ended 31 December 2022, with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in the form of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion about
whether the annexed statement presents fairly the status of compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

APPLICABLE CRITERIA

The criteria against which the subject matter information for the Statement is assessed comprise of the provision of the Takaful Rules,
2012 as issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT

The management of the Company is responsible for preparation of the annexed Statement that is free from material misstatement This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation of the annexed Statement
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. It also includes ensuring the overall compliance with the Takaful
Rules, 2012.

The Management of the Company is also responsible for preventing and detecting fraud and for identifying and ensuring that the Takaful
Operations comply with laws and regulations applicable to its activities. They are also responsible for ensuring that the management,
where appropriate, the Board of Directors, and personnel involved with the Takaful Operations, compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012
are properly trained, systems are properly updated and that any changes in reporting encompass all significant business units.

OUR INDEPENDENCE AND QUALITY CONTROL

The firm applies Interational Standard on Quality Control 1 “Quality Control for firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of
quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for Chartered Accountants issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional
competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY AND SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED

Our responsibility is to carry out an independent reasonable assurance engagement to express a conclusion as to whether the Statement
is prepared in accordance with the applicable criteria, based on our work performed and the evidences obtained.

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Intemational Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), ‘Assurance
Engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial statements’ (ISAE 3000) (Revised) issued by the International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board.

That standard requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable level of assurance about whether the Statement
presents fairly the status of compliance with the Takaful Rules 2012, in all material respects.

@
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The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgment, including the assessment of the, risks of the Company’s
material non-compliance with the Takaful Rules 2012, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered
internal control relevant to the Company’'s compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in order to design assurance procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing a conclusion as to the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over the compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

A reasonable assurance is less than an absolute assurance. A system of internal control. because of its nature, may not prevent or detect
all instances of non-compliance with Takaful Rules, 2012, and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance that the objective of
compliance with Takaful Rules, 2012, will be met. Also, projection of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods is subject to the risk
that the controls may become inadequate or fail.

The procedures performed included;

. Evaluate the systems, procedures and practices in place with respect to the Takaful operations against the Takaful Rules, 2012
and Shariah Advisor's guidelines;

* Evaluating the governance arrangements including the reporting of events and status to those charged with relevant responsibility,
such as the Shariah Advisor and the Board of Directors;

* Test for a sample of transactions relating to Takaful operations to ensure that these are carried out in accordance with the laid down
procedures and practices including the regulations relating to Takaful operations as laid down in Takaful Rules, 2012; and

* Review the statement of management's assessment of compliance of the Takaful transactions during the year ended December
31, 2022, with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained through performing our procedures were sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our conclusion..

CONCLUSION

In our opinion, the Statement for the year ended December 31, 2022 present fairly the status of compliance of the Company with the
Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

The engagement partner on the Shariah audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Syed Imran Haider, FCA.

EmM.Rhad £ ¢,

S.M. Suhail & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Our Ref: SMS-A-05232023
Date: Februrary 17, 2023
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Shariah Advisor Report to the Board of Directors

For the year ended 315t December 2022

As shariah Advisor of Askari General Insurance Company Limited (Window Takaful Operations) |
have carefully reviewed all the product documents Including PTF policies, Takaful PMDs, Co-Takaful
agreement, Re-Takaful agreement, Surplus Distribution Mechanism, Investment Policy and Mechanism,
etc. | confirm that overall transactions and activates of Window Takaful Operations performed during
the year are in line with guidelines of Shariah Advisor as well as requirements of Takaful Rules 2012.

According to my information Shariah principals have been followed in every aspect of practical
implementation of Askari General Insurance Company Limited (Window Takaful Operation).

elel by dilow cLi!\_g

fmw

Mufti Ehsan Waquar Ahmad

Shariah Advisor

Askari General insurance Company Limited
(Window Takaful Operations)

January 18, 2023.

Head Office: 3rd Floor, AWT Plaza, The Mall, Rawalpindi, Pakistan. Tel: 9028101-2, 9272425-7 Fax: 9272424 E-mail: agicoho@agico.com.pk, www.agico.com.pk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Askari General Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Askari General Insurance Company Limited — Window Takaful Operations
(the Operator), which comprise the statement of financial position of OPF and PTF as at December 31, 2022, and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in operator’s fund and participants’ takaful fund and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position of
OPF and PTF, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in operator's fund and participants’ takaful fund
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of Operator’s affairs as at December 31, 2022 and total
comprehensive income, the changes in operator's fund and participants’ takaful fund and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibiliies
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Operator in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

@
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Operator’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerm and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Operator or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Operator’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Operator’s internal contral.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Operator's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Operator to cease to continue as a going concem.
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e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in operator's fund and
participants’ takaful fund and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXl of 2017), and are in agreement with the books of account;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Operator's business;
and

(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).
Other Matter
Prior Year Financial Statements Audited by Predecessor Auditor

The financial statements of the Operator for the year ended December 31, 2021 were audited by another auditor, KPMG Taseer Hadi &
Co. Chartered Accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April 30, 2022.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. JehanZeb Amin.

/‘(me-;F W

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 6 April 2023

UDIN: AR202210134GpOITYxB



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021 2022 2021

ASSETS Note Rupees in thousand

Property and equipment 5 943 608 - -

Investments

157,303 143,366 184,629 167,853

- Equiity securities

- Debt securities 20,176 36,084 15,117 25,723

6,686 9,402 878 3,685

Loans and Other Receivables
- 1,204 113,137 80,096

© o~ o

Takaful/Retakaful receivable

Deferred wakala fee - - 80,661 69,082

Salvage recoveries accrued - - 3,900 9,676

Deferred taxation 11 298 - - R

Receivable from PTF 10 62,633 44 554 - -

Retakaful recoveries against outstanding - - 65,667 49,895

claims / Benefits

Deferred Commission expense/Acquisition cost 20 23,012 19,685 - -

Taxation - provision less payments 3,632 9,096 - -

Tax deducted at source - PTF - - - 6,205

Prepayments 12 201 306 80,464 69,546

Cash & Bank 13 92,076 66,887 111,363 106,862

Total Assets 366,960 331,192 655,816 588,523

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

. 2

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Operator’s Fund

Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022

2021

2022

2021

Note

L SauoyFund ..50,000 50,000 -
o Hesemes ... (e%9) 591 -
....... A(H:chumulatedmp@ﬁt 198,337 177,678 -
........ Balance of Operator's Fund 248,041 228,269 .
Waqf/Participants’ Takaful Fund
e mOney ; 100001 1,000
o Hesemes ; LT I
....... Aggumulatedws'g(plus - 91,192 49,650
........ Balance of Participants' Takaful Fund - 32809 518rS.
e
WPTEHpderwritir‘lugwl'?rovision§ """"""""
. Qutstanding claims including IBNR gl S 140,108 | | 182662
. Uneamed contribution reserves o N 200,737 || 175858
- ypgarned retg@ful rebate - 19,255 16,340
""""""""""""""""""""""""""" - 360,095 324,360
Contribution received in advance B R B 8447 ). 50842
Takaful /retakaful payables 14 6,336 5849 1] 123605 )| 152,580
(Unearned wakalafees B 80,661 69,082, S B
Payableto OPF o | N 62633 ]| 44504
 Deferred taxation L T 128 S B
M(‘)’(hgrﬂgreditors’gpg accrual§ """""""" 15 31,922 27,869 10,727 10,014
118,919 102,923 203,412 212,790
TotalLiaities T8I 102925 563507 537150
Total funds and liabilities 366,960 331,192 655,816 588,523
_Contingencies and Commitments B

Malik Riffat Mahmood
Director

—

(o™

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)

Director

e

—

L.t Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

Chairman



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 2021
Note Rupees in thousand
Participants’ Takaful Fund
Contributioneamed 262,383 249,389
Less Contibution ceded to retakafl | (184,403) (146,396)
Netcontribution revenue 17 77980 102,993
Retakafulrebateeamed w 46976 a1582
Net underwriting income 124,956 134,675
Net claims - reported / settled including IBNR 19 (98,328) (122,840)
Otverdrectexpenses s (7500) Nach
Surplus before investment income 19,128 3,960
Civestmentincome 24 24,492 13,461
ome“ncome ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 25 ................................. s . . i ..
Less Mudarlo's share of investrert income % | 9.797) ” sy
Results of operating activites 22,414 10,368
Surplus transferred to accumulated surplus 41,542 14,328
Other comprehensive income
Itemsthatwnlbe ;‘L;l;;équently reclassified to profit and loss account
Unreahzed(loss)/gamon avalable-for-sale ivestments (606) | | 226
Othercomprehenswemcome forthe year (606) 226
Total comprehensive income for the year 40,936 14,554
OPF Revenue Account
Waka‘afee ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 21 ................................... o 158419
CCommissonexperse 0 (49,248) (44,348
Genoral administiative and Menagement expenses 2 (94,636) (79,446)
26,241 34,625
Modarb's share of PTF imestment income. 26 9,797 5,384
Cmesmentincome 2| 19,784 ” 275
Dectexpenses | (484) ” O usy
Othemncome ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 25 ................................. oo . . 21449,‘
Resuts of operating activiies 35,128 20,224
Profit before taxation 61,369 54,849
Taxatlon ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 28 .................................. (10500 (1541 1 )
Profit after taxation 42,167 39,438
. Other compmhenswe m '(‘;ome ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
Iltems that will be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss account
Unrealized (loss) / gain on Available-for-sale investments - net (887) | | 61
Other comprehensive income for the year (887) 61
Total comprehensive income for the year 41,280 39,499

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Pt S —

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

- - 416,345 88t 749
- (157726)'“' (103 668)‘
o (188’617). I — .
- 33,447
s : 37295..., 21 182‘
167881 156,074 | | (167881) || (156,074
5 541 6514 5, 541). (N (6 51 4).‘
'..(89 976) (77993) (7500). [N (7, 775).‘
40,509 41,900 (40 178) 8,714
(14,158) (18,774) - (2,384)
8y (478) - " :
(4 158) (18) (345) (7 21 1).‘
5,006 1,369 20851 || (2525
Net cash (outflows) / inflow from other operating activities (13,494) (17.901) 20,506 (12,120)
Total cash om / (used in) all operating activities 27,015 23,999 (19,672) 8 406)
4 414 2,084 6 456 2,236
Dividend received . 10 918 8,262 16 153. [N 8,881 ‘
"""""" Payment for investments ~ (1.882) (14,151) (13.434) | | (14756
"""""" Proceeds from disposals of investments 21,832 7915 14998 (| 6008
"""""" Fixed capital expenditure  (802) @7 - ‘
Totalcashgeneratedfrom / (used in) investing activities 24,481 4,073 24,173 2,369
d) ...... F |nanc|ngact|v|t|es ST SO AU T LTI
"""""" Payment against ljarah (4,798) (5,611) -
"""""" Pay-out in respect of Dividend © (21,508) (22,200) -
Total cash used in financing activities (26,306) (27,820) -
Net cash generated from / (used in) all activities 25,189 252 4 501 (1,037)
Gash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 66,887 66,635 106,862 107,899
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 92,076 66,887 111,363 106,862

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

G i

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director

(s

N

—

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

Director

Chairman

@




ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account: Rupees in thousand

Operating cash flows 27,015 23,999 (19,672)

Depreciation expense

8,400)

(8) 410 :

Dividend income 10,918 8,262 16,153 8,881
Increase in assets other than cash 18,953 5,423 131,870 75,710

Increase in liabilities other than running finance (17,807) (2,352) (101,640)

(75,624

N Umrealized' gain on investments held for trading 5,072 1,301 5,556 2,215

- mvestmemmome 3794 o 2783 2365
- Othermcome 4532 e 6492 1804
- Taxpa\d 14158 T e 2384

Decrease in deposit against vehicle ljarah (4,799) (5,611) -

Profit/ surplus for the year 61,368 54,849 41,542 14,328

Attri

Operator's Fund 61,369 54,849 -

ibuted to
Participants' Takaful Fund - - 41,542 14,328

61,369 54,849 41,542 14,328

Definition of cash :

Cash for the purpose of the statement of cash flows consist of:

Cash comprises of cash in hand, bank balances, stamp in hand and short term placements with banks which are readily convertible to cash in
hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Cash and other equivalents - - 320 191
Current and other accounts 92,076 66,887 111,043 106,671

92,076 66,887 111,363 106,862

The

annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/A T S

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed Malik Riffat Mahmood — AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Director Chairman

&



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OPERATOR'’S

FUND AND PARTICIPANTS’ TAKAFUL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Operator's Fund

Available-for- Accumulated
Statutory Fund Sal?el\?a\llliztt?;ﬁms SET;ES Total
reserve
 PRupeesinthousand
Balance as at January 01, 2021 50,000 530 160,449 210,979
el comprahencive ncome forthe vear e ettt et
Profit for the year 39,438 39,438
Other comprehensive income for the year 61 61
61 39,438 39,499
Changes in Operator's Fund
Transfer of Profit to the Company ..(.2.2”,209) - (22209) “
Balance as at December 31, 2021 50,000 591 177,678 228,269
Balance as at January 01, 2022 50,000 591 177,678 228,269
Total comprahensive income for the year e et ere e
Profit for the year - - 42,167 42,167
Other comprehensive income for the year - (887) R (887)
- (887) 42,167 41,280
Changes i Operators Fund et et e
Transfer of Profit to the Company - - - (21 508) - (21 508) “
Balance as at December 31, 2022 50,000 (296) 198,337 248,041
Participants’ Takaful Fund
Available-for- Accumulated
Cede Money salfel\zlizttrizﬁnts Profit Total
reserve
" Rupeesinthousand
Balance as at January 01, 2021 1,000 497 35,322 36,819
ol comprehansive o for the year e ettt oot et
Surplus for the year 14,328 14,328
Other comprehensive income for the year H 226 S 226
226 14,328 14,554
Balance as at December 31, 2021 1,000 723 49,650 51,373
Balance as at January 01, 2022 1,000 723 49,650 51,373
ol sommrehensive o for e year e e e
Surplus for the year - - 41,542 41,542
Other comprehensive income for the year - (606) R (606)
- (606) 41,542 40,936
Balance as at December 31, 2022 1,000 117 91,192 92,309

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/e

Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director

Malik Riffat Mahmood

—

(e

Director

V|

—

AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chairman

&



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1

21

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Askarl General Insurance Company Limited (“the Operator”) was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(Repealed with the enactment of Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017) on 12 April, 1995, The Operator is registered
in Pakistan Stock Exchange and is engaged in general insurance business. The registered office and principal place of the
Operator is located at AWT Plaza, Rawalpindi.

The Operator has been allowed to undertake Window Takaful Operations (WTO) on 10 August 2015 by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan under SECP Takaful Rules 2012 to carry on General Window Takaful Operations in
Pakistan.

For the purpose of carrying on the takaful business, the Operator has formed a Wagf/ Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF)
under the Wagf deed. The Wagf deed govemns the relationship of Operator and participants for management of takaful
operations.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements of the WTO have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (FAS) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and
directive issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Takaful Rules, 2012 and the General
Takaful Regulations, 2019. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 the Takaful Rules, 2012, the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 shall prevail.

These financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations of both the Operator's Fund (OPF) and
Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF) in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Operator and PTF remain
separately identifiable.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments
which are stated at their fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Operator's functional and presentation currency. All
financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are effective in the current year

The following amendments are effective for the year ended December 31, 2022, These amendments are either not relevant
to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ -

Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfiling a contract January 01, 2022
Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended beyond

June 30, 2021 April 01, 2021
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - IFRS 16 * Leases” January 01, 2022

Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that
are not yet effective

The following amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of
them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact
on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from Accounting

period beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure of accounting policies  January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 '‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors’ - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023
Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

from a single transaction. January 01, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 16 * Leases’ -Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently

measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 = First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ has become applicable, however as an insurance company, the management has opted
temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities
whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance. Additional disclosures, as required by the IASB, for being
eligible to apply the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are given below:

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during that
period for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

(a) Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held for
trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and

&
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(b) All other financial assets

Operator’s Fund

Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
unrealized Carrvin Cost less unrealized
FairValue | gain/ (loss) Varlﬁeg Imoairment gain / (loss)
during the P during the
period period
Rupees in thousands
Financial assets
Cash and Bank* 92,076
Investment in equity securities -
available-for-sale 165,471 5,072
Investment in debt securities -
available-for-sale* - - 20,176 - 176
Loans and other receivables* - - 1,339
Total 155,471 5,072 113,591 - 176.00

Participation Takaful Fund

Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
unrealized Carrying Cost less unrealized
FairValue | gain/ (loss) Value Impairment gain / (loss)
during the during the
period period

Rupees in thousands

Financial assets

111,363

Cash and Bank*

. Investment in equity securities -
available-for-sale 184,629 5,656

' Investment in debt securities - '
available-for-sale* - - 15,117
Loans and other receivables® - - 878
Total 184,629 5,556 127,358

* The carrying amount of these financial assets measured applying IAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values.



ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASKARI GENERAL INSURANGCE CO. LTD
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:-
3.1 Property and Equipments

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for capital work in progress
which s stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged on depreciable amount over the estimated
useful life.

Depreciation is charged on monthly basis where full depreciation is charged in the month of addition and no depreciation is
charged in the month of disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
are incurred. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense.

3.2 Takaful contracts

Takaful contracts are those contracts where the Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF) has accepted significant Takaful risk from
another party (the participants) by agreeing to compensate the participants if a specified uncertain future event adversely
affects the policyholders.

Once a contract has been classified as a Takaful contract, it remains a Takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even
if the Takalul risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

The Operator underwrites non-life takaful contracts that can be categorised into Fire and Property Damage, Marine, Aviation
and Transport, Motor, health and accident and Miscellaneous contracts. Contracts may be concluded for a fixed term of
one year, for less than one year and in some cases for more than one year. However, most of the contracts are for twelve
months duration. Takaful contracts entered into by the Operator under which the contract holder is another Takaful Operator
(inwards retakaful) of a facultative nature are included within the individual category of takaful contracts, other than those which
fall under Treaty. The takaful risk involved in these contracts is similar to the contracts undertaken by the Operator as takaful
operator.

Fire and Property takaful contracts mainly compensate the customers for damage suffered to their property. Customers who
undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the covered properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Marine, Aviation and Transport class of business provides coverage against loss and damage to goods in transit by any
means of conveyance, physical loss or damage to aircraft, ships, and liabilities to third parties and passengers arising from
their use.

Motor takaful covers physical loss or damage to the vehicle and liabilities to third parties as provided under the requirements
of the Motor Vehicle Ordinance, 1965.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

All other takaful contracts like cash in hand, cash in transit, personal accident, infidelity, public liabilities, crop, livestock, travel,
bankers and other financial institutions packages, product liabilities, professional indemnity, workers compensation etc. are
included under Miscellaneous takaful cover.

Deferred commission expense

Commission incurred in obtaining and recording are deferred and recognised as an asset. These costs are charged to the
profit and loss account based on the pattern of recognition of contribution revenue.

Reserve for unearned contribution

The uneamed portion of contribution net of Wakala fee is set aside as a reserve. Unearned Contribution determined as a ratio
of the unexpired period of the policy and the total period, both measured to the nearest day, as specified in the Insurance
Accounting Regulations, 2017.

Contribution deficiency reserves

The Operator is required as per the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019, to maintain a provision in respect of
contribution deficiency for the class of business where the unearmed contribution reserve is not adequate to meet the
expected future liability, after retakaful recoveries from claims, and supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the
reporting date in respect of the unexpired takaful contracts in that class of business at the reporting date. The movement in
the contribution deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense in the profit and loss account.

The Operator determines adequacy of liability of contribution deficiency by carrying out analysis of its loss ratio of expired
period of contracts. The liability of contribution deficiency in relation to accident and health takaful contracts is based on
actuary recommendation.

No provision has been made as the uneamed contribution reserve for each class of business as at the year end is adequate
to meet the expected future liability after retakaful from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting
date in respect of policies in force at reporting date.

Retakaful contracts held

The Operator cedes retakaful in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential through the
diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities, income and expense arising from ceded retakaful contracts are presented separately
from the assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related takaful contracts because the retakaful arrangements do not
relieve the PTF from its direct obligation to its policyholders.

Outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

The liability for IBNR is computed through Chain Ladder Method (Development technique) in light of the guidelines issued
by Insurance Division of SECP vide its Circular 9 of 2016 dated March 09, 2016 for estimation of IBNR claims reserve, the
liability for IBNR for all classes of business is based on actuary recommendation. Any significant change in assumption used
event may affect the management’s judgment which could affect the provision made for IBNR. Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and are measured at the amount expected to be
received.

Amount due to / from retakaful operators

Amount due to / from retakaful operators are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Cost represents the fair value
of the consideration to be received / paid in the future for services rendered.
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ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
3.9 Segment reporting

The Operator's operating businesses are recognised and managed separately according to the nature of services provided
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets.

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, stamps in hand and call deposits with maturities of three
months of less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by
the Operator in the management of its short-term commitments.

3.1 Revenue recognition
a) Contribution income under a palicy is recognised over the period of takaful net of wakala fee.
b) Wakala fee charged from PTF is recognised upfront.
) Rebate from retakaful operators is recognised at the same time of takaful of underlying takaful policy by the Operator.
d) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
e) Profit on Islamic investment products is recognised on an accrual basis.
f) Gain / loss on sale of available for sale investments are included in profit and loss account.
3.12 ljarah
liarah rentals are recognised as an expense on accrual basis as an when the rental become due.
3.13 Investments
3.13.1 Classification

The classification of financial assets is determined at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Currently, the financial assets of the Operator are classified into the following categories:

a) In equity securities

Investments in equity securities are carried at through there fair value. At each reporting date, the Company measures the
investments at there fair value with any increase or decrease charged to Profit and Loss Account. Upon disposal the proceeds
less fair value at the previous reporting date is charged to Profit and Loss.

b) In debt securities

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Company has the intention and
ability to hold till maturity. Provision for impairment against debt securities is made in accordance with the requirements of the
law. In case of unquoted equity securities, the breakup value of- the security should be considered to determine impairment
amount. Premium or discount on debt securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity is amortised using effective
interest method and taken to the profit and loss account. Where the fair value of the debt security is available, unrealised
gains/losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and upon disposal are reclassified to profit and loss.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

c) In term deposit

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed (short term) maturities which the Company has the
intention and ability to hold till maturity.

Investments which are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
d) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables comprise cash and bank deposits, contribution due but unpaid, amounts due from other Takaful &
Retakaful operators and sundry receivables.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability other than those relating to takaful contract is offset and net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when the operator has a legally right to set-off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on the net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Operator has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. However, the provision are reviewed at balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current
pest estimates.

Taxation
Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the current year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss account, except
in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Takaful surplus

Takaful surplus attributable to the participants is arrived after charging all direct cost and setting aside various reserves.
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3.18 Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment
of any asset or group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account.

3.19 Management expenses

Expenses allocated to the takaful business represents directly attributable expenses. Expense not directly allocable to takaful
business are charged to OPF and allocated on the basis of gross contribution written during the year.

3.20 Qard-e-Hasna
Qard-e-Hasna is provided by Operator’s fund to PTF in case of deficit or to fulfill cash flow requirements.
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience, current trends and various other factors
that are believed to reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the estimates about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate revised if the revision effects only that
period or in the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, the matters involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are:

- Reserve for unearned contribution 3.4
- Contribution deficiency reserve 3.5
- Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 3.7
- Useful lives of fixed assets 51
2022 2021
Note Rupees in thousand
5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets 51 943 608

943 608
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6.1 Available-for-sale - OPF Number of shares / units 2022 2021

Carrying
value

Carrying

t
Cos value

Open -end mutual funds 2022 2021 Cost

Rupees in thousand

AKD Islamic Stock Fund 50,940 50,940 2,500 1,832 2,500 2,247

2,500 1,832 2,500 2,247

. Fa|r valuemt‘}"‘]roughmb“roﬁt andﬁl‘oss held .............................................................................................................
for tradlng OPF

Others

6.2

Open end mutual funds

ABL \Slamlc Income Fund 3 141 338 2,984,448 33 187 33,822 30,828 31,074

JS Islamwc Income Fund 449 145 424 991 47888 50,084 44, 874 45,359

NBP ISIamlc l\/lahana Amadanl Fund 4 054 884 8 772 784 42 230 43 582 39, 046 39,395

A\hamra Is\am|c \ncome Fund 256 383 238,699 27094 27983 25,070 25,291

150,399 165,471 139,818 141,119

Fair value through profit and loss - held

6.3 for trading - PTF

Related Partles

Open end mutual funds

A\/\/T (PII\/IL) \Slamlc Income Fund 355,726 355,726 38,329 39,897 37,792 38,329

Others

Open end mutual funds

AKD Islamlc Imcome Fumd 758,373 704 048 39 466 41,277 36, 371 36,763

Atlas \slamlc Income Fund 60 329 56 957 31 638 32,705 29, 021 29,426

HBL Is\amwc \ncome Fund 299 575 276 OO5 31 948 33 059 28, 651 29,632

ABI_ Islamwc Cash Fund 3,769,080 3,380,235 37,691 37,691 33,802 33,802

140,743 144,732 127,845 129,623
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7

INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES

2022

2021

Cost

Impairment /
provision

Carrying Cost

value

Impairment /
provision

Carrying
value

Rupees in thousand

7.1

176

20,176 35,000

36,084

Sukuks

7.2

Surplus on revaluation

15,000

117

22000

25,000
723

15,117 25,000

25,723

71

Sukuks -OPF

Investee Name

Profit Rate

2022

2021

72

Meezan Bank Ltd.

e Hub Power Co.
Lid.

Sukuks -PTF

Meezan Bank Ltd.

 The Hub Power Co,
Ltd.

Other receivable

Shariah pool

Based on monthly

S.Mo'nth.kl‘BéI;%H -

Plus 190 bps

Based on monthly

Shariah pool

3MonthKBOR

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CONSIDERED GOOD
Receivable against sale of asset
Deposit against ljarah - vehicles

Accrued investment income

Plus 190 bps 100

Carrying
Cost

value

Carrying

Cost vaue

Rupees in thousand

5,000

15,000 15,176

5,000

5,000 5,000

30,000 31,084

20,000 20,176

35,000 36,084

5,000

10,000 10,117

5,000

5,000 5,000

20,000 20,723

15,000 15,117

25,000 25,723

Operator’s Fund

2022

5,347

555 437

238 3,751

2021
546 578

4,636

Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021

287 2562

591 3,433

6,686 9,402

878 3,685
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Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
9 TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES
Due from takaful contract holders - - 90,902 57,165
Provision against doubtful balances - - (222) (222)
- - 90,680 56,943
Due from other Takaful/Retakaful Operators 9.1 - 1,204 23,628 24,324
Provision against doubtful balances - - (1,171) (1,171)
- 1,204 22,457 23,153
- 1,204 113,137 80,096
9.1 This includes contribution amounting to Rs.1.19 million(2021: Rs.(0.04) million) receivable from the associated undertakings as follows:
2022 2021
Rupees in thousand
Askari Guards (Private) Limited 1,182 (28)
Mobil Askari Lubricants Pakistan Ltd 5 (12)
1,187 (40)
Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021
10 RECEIVABLE / (PAYABLE) (Current account between OPF and PTF) Rupees in thousand
Wakala fee 57,453 43,630 (57,453) (43,630)
Less: Provision for refund of wakala fee against doubtiul balances (408) (408) 408 408
57,045 43,222 (57,045) (43,222)
Modarib's fee 5,588 1,332 (5,588) (1,332)
62,633 44,554 (62,633) (44,554)
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Operator’s Fund

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

(163) 241

Provision for refund of wakala fee against doubtful balances (135) (118)

(298) 123

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021 2022 2021

12 PREPAYMENTS Rupees in thousan:

Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded - PTF - - 80,464 69,546

Others - OPF 201 306 -

201 306 80,464 69,5646

13 CASH & BANK

- Stamps in hand - - 320 191

Cash at bank

- Savings account 92,076 66,887 111,043 106,671

92,076 66,887 111,363 106,862

Operator’s Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021 2022 2021

14 TAKAFUL/RETAKAFUL PAYABLES Rupees in thousan

Due to takaful participants / retakaful payable 6,336 5,849 123,605 162,580

6,336 5,849 123,605 162,680

15 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

21,898 14,918 - _

Federal takaful fee payable - - 593 409

Federal excise duty payable 161 138 7,796 7,099

Tax deducted at source 517 576 380 317

1,084 784 - -

Others 8,262 11,453 1,958 2,189

31,922 27,869 10,727 10,014
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16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingency
There is no contingency as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:Nil)
Commitments

The Operator's commitment under ljarah arrangement with Meezan Bank Limited is Rs.18.58 million (31 December 2021
Rs.15.02 million). The contracts have a term of five years.

Future Minimum ljarah (lease) payments are as under: Operator’s Fund
2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

No’[ Iater than 1 year . 4,313 3,359
14,262 11,658
18,575 16,017

4,088

Participants’ Takaful Fund
2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

17 NET CONTRIBUTION

- Wntten Gross C'ouﬁ"‘c}'i‘bution """"""" - 457,887 402,676
lessiWakdafee 1 (181,704) - (158218)

o Contrlbutlon Net ‘of Wakala Fee - 276,183 244,458
o Aold Uneamed contrlbunon reser\'/‘émo”bemng net - 106,276 1 17207
Less Uneamed contnbunon reser\')éﬁél'bsmg net R (120,076) (106276)

Contrlbu’uon eamed 262,383 249,389

o Less Retakaful Contnbut\om ceded """"" - 195,321 160 645

Add Prepaud retakafu\ coman‘t'b‘r{ﬂopemng """""""""""""""""""""""""" 69,546 65 297

‘ I_ess Prepaud retakafu\ contnbtj‘t'b‘r;c\08|ng """""""""""""""""""""""""" (80,464) (69 546)

. Retokaful expense - - 184,403 146,396

Net contribution 77,980 102,993
18 RETAKAFULREBATE
- Retakaful Rebate i ncome - R 49,891 86966
W“Add Uneamed retakaful rebate openmg 16,340 11966
I_ess Uneamed re‘[akafu\ rebate closmg - (19,255) (W6840)

Rebate from retakaful operators 46,976 31,682
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Participants’ Takaful Fund

NET CLAIMS

2022

2021

Rupees in thousand

 Claim paid 188,617 142,396
Add Outstandrng clarms |nclud|ngﬂlrérl{l‘r:% closing 140,103 182662
I_ess Outstandrng clarrns rnc\udrngwléN‘R openrng (132,662) (1 O667W)
Claim expense 196,058 168,387
81,958 38,100
Add Retakaful and other recoveries in respect of A
outstanding clarrns closing 65,667 49,895
Wl_ess Retakafu\ and other recor/erres in respect of e
outstanding clarms opening (49,895) (42,448)
W‘Retakaful and other recoveries revenue 97,730 45,547
Net claims expense 98,328 122,840

The Company marntarne adequate reserves in respect of its takaful busrness in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of claim payments are normally
resolved within one year. The following table shows the development of the claims over a period of time. All amounts are

presented in gross numbers before retakaful

Accident Year 2017 &

orior 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
Rupees in thousand

At the end of accident year 55,696 131,923 129,870 161,125 178,941 227535 885,090
One year later 21,915 31,858 51,377 89,496 79,780 - 274,427
Two years later 933 2,632 5,810 20,432 - 29,808
Three years later 377 677 768 - - 1,823
Four years later 24 163 - - - 187
Five year later 41 - 41
Current estimate of cumulative claims 41 163 768 20,432 79,780 227,535 328,720
Less: Cumulative payments to date 10 8 42 9,759 59,065 119,733 188,617
Liability recognized in statement of

financial position 31 155 726 10,673 20,715 107,802 140,103

19.2

The provision for IBNR on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2022 amounted to
Rs.58,997 thousands (2021 Rs. 35,905 thousands).
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Operator’s Fund

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

20
19,685
Less Deferred commission expense olosmg (23,012)
Commission expense 49,248 44,348
21 [ WAKALA e
. '“The Operator manages the generalﬂfa‘kaful operat\ons for the parﬂgpants and charges 35% for fire and property damage .
35% for marine and aviation, 45% for motor, 25% for health and accident and 40% for miscellaneous of the gross contribution
vvntten as wakala fee agamst the ser\/|ces as fol\ovvs
. Gross wakala fee """""" 181,704 158218
Adol Uneamed vvakala fee opemng """"" 69,082 69288
Less Unearmed wakala fee closmg """"" (80,661) (69082)
Net wakala fee income 170,125 168,419
Operator’s Fund
2022 2021
22 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT - Aupees inthousand
EXPENSES
Employee beneﬂt cost Note 22.1 61,824
Rt 12,896
Commumcat\on B 2,085
o Prmtmg and staﬂonery """""" 2,883
Taveling and entertanment 1,585
o Depremat\on 467
Repaws and mamtenance """"""" 2,386
o Ulies 5,399
Legal and profesaonal charges - busmess related -
N Bank charges """""" 21
\/eh\cle liarah expenses """"""" 4,088
l\/||sce\|aneous """"""" 1,002
94,636




ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Operator’s Fund

2022 2021

224 Employee benefit cost

Rupees in thousand

SaIary, allovvamces and other benefits 57,252 53,500
Charges for post emponment benefits 4,572 1,710
61,824 55,210

Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022 2021
23 OTHERDIRECT EXPENSES "~ Rupeesinthousand
. “.Tracker |nstaI|at|on and momtormg charges 7,411 7665
Inspec’mon Charges """""" - IO
BarkCharges 89 100
7,500 7,775
Operator s Fund Par'umpants Takaful Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

24 INVESTMENT INCOME

D|V|o|end income 10,918 8,262 16,153 8,881
Income from debt securltles Held to maturlty
Retumn on fixed income securities 3,794 3,312 2,783 2,365
14,712 11,674 18,936 11,246
Net unreallzed galns on investment
Net unreahzed gams on investments at fair value
through profit or loss - held for trading 5,072 1,301 5,556 2,215
Total investment income 19,784 12,875 24,492 13,461

25 - OTHER INCOME

Retum on bank balances 4 532 2,151 6 492 2,291
Miscellaneous 1,499 298 1,227
6,031 2,449 7,719 2,291
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26 MODARIB'S FEE
The Operator manages the participants’ investments as a Modarib’'s and charge 40% Modarib's share of the investment

income earned by PTF.

Operator’s Fund

2022 2021
27 DIRECT EXPENSES Rupees in thousand

Auditors' remuneration 303 303

Shariah Compliance Auditors' remuneration 181 181
484 484

28 TAXATION
For the year

Current 18,781 16,629

Deferred 421 (118)
19,202 15,411

28.1 Relationship between tax expense and 2022 2021 2022 2021
accounting profit Effective tax rate - % Rupees in thousand
Profit for the year before taxation 61,369 54,849

Tax at the applicable rate 33.00 29.00 20,252 16,906
e not considered

(1.71) (0.90) (1,050) (495)
31.29 28.10 19,202 15,411

Effect of items that

in determining taxable income - net

29 COMPENSATION OF EXECUTVES ~ Rupees in thousand

Managerial remuneration 1,311 1,296
B Bonus B . 385
 Chargeto defined berefitplan
. 581 ‘‘‘‘‘‘ .
129 129
Conveyance . 439 ‘‘‘‘‘‘ Jop
B Prov|dem o . 108 ‘‘‘‘‘‘
others . 44
3,047 2,409

Number of persons 1 1

Executives mean employees, other than the Chief Executive and Directors, whose basic salary exceed twelve hundred

thousand rupees in a financial year.

©
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30

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of directors, major shareholders, key management personnel, entities under common control,
entities with common directors and employees retirement benefit funds. The transactions with related parties are carried
out at commercial terms and conditions except for compensation to key management personnel which are on employment

terms.

Balance due from associated undertakings are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements. Transaction with related

parties during the year are as follows:

o Takafu\ benefits pald

stamp duties)

Takafu\ benefits pa|d

Takafu\ benefits pa|d

o Army Welfare Trust N

o Army Welfare Sugar M|IIs

stamp duties)

o Others

Employees ret\rement beneﬂts

o Askar| Guards (Prlvate) L|m|ted

Gontmbut\on vvr\tten (mcludmg govemment levies and stamp duUes)

Contnbut\on rece\ved durmg the year -

o MObIl Askarl Lubrlcants Paklstan lelted

Contmbut\on vvr\tten (mcludmg govemment levies and

Contnbutrorw rece\ved durmg the year

Askar| Life Assurance Co lelted

Contnbutrom vvr\tten (mcludmg govemment levies and stamp dutles)

Contmbut\on rece\ved durmg the year

Contnbutrorw vvntten (mcludmg govemment levies and stamp dutles)

Contmbut\on rece\ved durmg the year

Investment in AV\/T (PII\/II_) Islamic Income Fund

Contmbut\on vvr\tten (mcludmg govemment levies and stamp duUes)

Contﬂbut\on rece\ved during the year

~ Askari Development and Holdings (Pvt) Limited

Contribution written (including government levies and

' Contmbut\on rece\ved durmg the year .

Rupees in thousand

1,210

0

571

3,895

3,878

648

358

358

2,104

2,210

2,210

1,014

1,014

3,331

1,802
1,774

49

3 826
8 8T4
W 878

383
383

R

631
631

1200

175

175

3,008
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32

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy
for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilites not measured at fair
value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

32.1

Operator's Fund

2022

Held-for-

trading

Available-
for-sale

Loans and
receivables

Other
financial

Total

Rupees in thousand

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

liabilities

6,686

155,471
92,076

62,633

e .(31‘,‘922)...‘

(6.336)

155,471

22,008

17,008

155,471

92,076

6,686

62,633

155,471

22,008

161,395

(38,258)

300,616

172,479

- 5,000
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2021

Held-for-

Available-
for-sale

trading -

Other

Loans and financial Total

receivables

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

liabilities

Rupees in thousand

Other cred|tors and accruals

141,119

38,331

MT W19

38 381

MT W19

33 331 -

5,000

66 887 - 66 887 - - -

9 402 - 9 402

44 554 - 44 554 - - -

‘ (5 849) " (5 849)

| (27 869) (27 869)

141,119

38,331

120,843 (33,718) 266,575

174,450

5,000

32.2

Participants' Takaful Fund

2022

Held-for-

trading

Available-
for-sale

Other

Loans and financial Total

receivables

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

liabilities

Rupees in thousand

15,117

144,732 - - 144,732

111,363 - 111,363

- - 15,117

10,117

144,732

5,000

Takaful / Retakaful recelvab\es - - 113,137 - 113,137 - - -
Retakaful recoveries against outstandlng Clalms - - - 65,667 65,667 - - -
FmanC|aI liabilities not measured at fair value PTF

Prowswon for outstanding c\a|ms (mc\udmg B B B 140,103 140,103 B B B
IBNR)*

Takaful / Retakaful payables - - - 123 605 123,605 - - -
Payab\e to OPF - - - 62 633 62 633 - - -
Other credﬁors and accruals - - - 10 727 10 727 - - -

144,732

15,117

224,500 402,735 771,967

154,849

5,000
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2021
Held-for-  Available-  Loans and ‘Othe‘r
. : financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
trading for-sale receivables o
liabilities
Rupees in thousand
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment at fair value through profit and loss 167,853 - - - 167,853 167,853 - -
Investment at Available-for-sale - 25,723 - - 25,723 20,723 5,000 -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and bank deposits - - 106,862 - 106,862 - - -
Takaful/Retakaful receivable® - - 80,096 - 80,096 - - -
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding
- - 49,895 - 49,895 - - -
claims*
Loans and other receivables®
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Provision for outstanding claims (including
- - - (132,662) (132,662) - - -
IBNR)*
Takaful / Retakaful payables* - (1562,680) (152,580)
Payable to OPF (44,554)  (44,554)
Other creditors and accruals* (10,014) (10,014)
167,853 25,723 236,853 (339,810) 90,619 188,576 5,000

* The Operator has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.

The Operator measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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33 STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY Part|C|pants Takaful Fund
© Assets 2022 2021
o : Rupees in thousahe“
. Investment o
Equﬁy sécun‘ues ."‘.184 629 """ 1 67,853
| Debt eecurmes 15 117 """ 25,723
N Loane and other rece\vables 878 """ 3,685
H “Takaful/Retakaful recewables 113 137 """ 80,096
- Salvage recovenes accrued 3 900 """ 9,576
Retekeful recovenes agamst outstandmg c\e\ms ' 65 667 """ 49,895
. Deferreol vvakala fee 80 661 """ 69,082
Tax deducted at souree . - 6,205
.............. Prepayments 80 464 69,546
Caeh & Bank - 111 363 1 06,862
 Total Assets (A 655816 588523
“ In adm|SS|bIe assets as par foIIowmg clauses of sectlon 32 (2) """
of the Insurance Ordlnance 2000
“ fekaful ane"f‘etakafu\' }e’eeivab\eﬁfer moretkeen threemr‘eonths 51,299 31,074
. Recewab\e from re\ated par’ues 1,188 o (89)
Total In- adm|SS|bIe Assets (B) 52,487 31,035
_ Total Admissible Assets (C=A-B) 603329 557488
.
. Under\/\mtmg Prowsmns """
Outetandmg beneﬂts mcludmg IBNR 140,103 182 662
Uneamed contnbuﬂon reserves 200737 "‘1 75 858'
| Uneamed retakafu\ rebate - 19255 16 840.
. éontnbunon rece\ved in advanee . 6, 447 | 5,642.
Tekaful/ Retakaful payable H '123 605 152580
 Payable to OPF 62,633  aas64
. Other cred\tors and accruals . 10 727 ‘ 10 014.
. Total Labilties ©) 563,507 537,150
Total Net Admissible Assets (E=C-D) 39,822 20,338
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Held to
maturity

Loans and

Available- Fair value )
receivables Total

for-sale through P&L

34

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS - OPF
At beginning of previous year
Additions / Re-investments

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Fair value net (loss)/gain

Impairment losses

Rupees in thousand
35,746 132,795 - 168,541
2,500 7,023 - 9,623

85 1,301 - 1,386

At beginning of current year

Additions / Re-investments

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Classified as availabale for sale

o000

Fair value net gain

Impairment gains

38,331 141,119 - 179,450
- 11,882 - 11,882

(80N T (18800

(1,323) 3,771 - 2448

At end of current year

22,008 155,471 - 177,479

35

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS - PTF
At beginning of previous year
Additions / Re-investments

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Fair value net gain

25,497 164,525 - 180,022
- 11,113 - 11,118

226 2,215 - 2,441

At beginning of current year

Additions / Re-investments

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Classified as availabale for sale

Fair value net loss

Impairment losses

25,723 167,853 - 193,576

- 13,434 - 13,434

Moo - - (0000

- 3,341 - 3,341

At end of current year

15,117 184,628 - 199,745




ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

36

36.1

MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL AND FINANCIAL RISK

Takaful risk

The principal risk that is faced under takaful contracts is the possibility that the covered event occurs, the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claims i.e. the frequency and severity of claims and that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities. By the very nature of the takaful contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The objective of the Operator is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The Operator manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate retakaful arrangements and proactive clams
handling. The underwriting strategy aims to minimize takaful risks with a balanced mix and spread of business classes
and by observing underwriting guidelines and limits. The Operator underwrites mainly property, motor, marine cargo and
transportation and other miscellaneous business. These classes of takaful are generally regarded as short-term takaful
contracts where claims are normally intimated and settled within a short time span, usually one year. This helps to mitigate
takaful risk.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Operator has the right not to
renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. For large
risks, particularly in property segment of business, risk inspections are carried out before accepting the risks. Similarly, in
case of large risks, annual renewals are also preceded by on-site surveys. Where needed, risk mitigation measures are
identified and communicated to the clients to improve the risk to an acceptable level.

Retakaful arrangements in place include treaty and facultative arrangements, on proportional and non-proportional basis and
also include catastrophe cover. The effect of such retakaful arrangements is that the PTF may not suffer ultimate net takaful
losses beyond the PTF's risk appetite in any one year.

The Operator’s arrangement of retakaful is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single retakaful operator nor the
operations of the Operator are substantially dependent upon any single retakaful contract. The Operator obtains retakaful
cover only from companies with sound financial health.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like political violence, environmental and economical,
atmospheric disturbances, natural disasters, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Operator manages these risk through
the measures described above. The Operator has limited its exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of retakaful
arrangements.

The Operator also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For
fire and property risk a particular building and neighbouring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are
considered as a single location. For earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. Similarly, for marine
risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk.
The Operator evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative takaful risks and establishes its retakaful
policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Operator. The concentration of risk by type of contracts is
summarized below by reference of liabilities.
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Gross sum Sum
2022 takaful Retakaful Net

Rupees in thousand
Fire and property damage 133,506,217 115,994,648 17,511,569

Marine, aviation and transport 169,903,645 77,689,993 92,213,652

Motor 15,583,974

Miscellaneous

5,055,589

3,239,243

1,044,129

14,539,845
1,816,346

324,049,425

197,968,013

126,081,412

2021

Gross sum
takaful

Sum Retakaful

Net

Marine, aviation and transport

Motor

Miscellaneous

10,982,461

Fire and property damage 96,677,267
94,613,367
11,842,450

Rupees in thousand

6,243,896

83,739,011
57,029,957
1,245,624

12,938,256

S7,.588.410

10,596,926
4,738,565

214,115,645

148,258,388

65,857,157

. The Operalor's class wise major gross risk exposure is as follows:
B . LN

R _ Rupeesinthousand
JClessofbusiness
L e and Property daMBGS e A0S 2,461,200
MBS, QVIBHON BNATANSOOM o OO OO SO OO

Motor 334,000 138,921
Miscellaneous 1,448,000 2,642,302

Since the Operator operates in Pakistan only, hence, all the takaful risks relate to policies written in Pakistan.
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b)

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether
reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the
estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under takaful contracts. Such estimates are necessarily
based on assumptions about several factors involving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty
and actual results may differ from management's estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative
judgments are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence,
changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess
the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the balance sheet date and
for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the balance sheet date. The details of estimation
of outstanding claims (including IBNR) are given under note 3.7.

Key assumptions

The principle assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves is that the Company's
future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The management uses qualitative
judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply in future. The judgement
includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors, economic conditions, etc.

Changes in assumptions
The Company did not change its assumptions for the insurance contracts as disclosed in above (b) and (c).
Sensitivity analysis

The Operator believes that the claim liabilities under takaful contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However,
these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements.
The impact on the PTF surplus of the changes in the claim liabilities net of retakaful is analysed below. The sensitivity
to changes in claim liabilities net of retakaful is determined separately for each class of business while keeping all other
assumptions constant.
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Participants’ Takaful Fund Participants’ Takaful Fund

Revenue Equity
.. 10% increase in loss S e Rupeesinthousand
. Fire and property damage B %5 e 68
. Marine aviation and ransport .91 G4 %84
. Motor o e 180 4581 298 .82l
 Health B les . kre 1189
Miscellaneous 943 815 670 579
7444 8,277 5,285 5,877

A 10% decrease would have had equal but opposite effect on the profit and loss account and Participants’ Takaful Fund

Equity.
f) Age-wise breakup of unclaimed Takaful benefits
Age-wise Breakup
Particulars Total amount 1to6 7 to 12 13to0 24 25 to 36 Beyond 36
months months months months months
Rupees in thousand
Claims not encashed 8,153 6,740 554 506 354 -
36.2 Financial risk

The Operator’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (comprising of currency risk, profit
rate risk and other price risk). The Operator’s overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimize potential adverse effects on the Operator’s financial performance.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and over sight of the Operator’s risk management framework. There are
Board Committees and Management Committees for developing and monitoring the risk management policies.
36.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The management monitors exposure to credit risk through regular review of credit exposure, un-
dertaking transactions with a large number of counter parties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of

counter parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change
in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. Due to the nature of

financial assets, the Operator believes it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk.
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The carrying amounts of the following financial assets represent the Operator's maximum exposure to credit risk:

Operator’s Fund

Participants’ Takaful Fund

202

2

2021 2022

2021

Rupees in thousand

Bank deposits

Investments

Loans and Other Receivables

Takaful/Retakaful receivable

Retakaful recoveries

against outstanding claims

Salvage recoveries accrued

Receivable from PTF

177,479

6,686

92,076

62,633

66,635 111,363

1,028 113,137
- 65,667

- 3,900

43,540 -

168,641 199,746

2,169 878

106,862
193,676
3,685
80,096
49,895

9,576

338,874

281,903 494,691

443,690

The Operator does not hold any collateral against the above balances. Past due policies were not impaired as they relate to the number of
policy holders and other Takaful/ retakaful operators for whom there is no recent history of default. The age analysis of gross receivables

is as follows:

a) Operator’s Fund

2022

2021

Due from
Other
takaful/
retakaful
Operators

Loans and
other
receivables

Due from
Other

Loans

Aggregate takaful/ and other Aggregate
retakaful receivables

Operators

Rupees in thousand

Upto 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

- 6,686

- 1M -

- 6

6,686 1,187

9,402 10,589

11

- 6,686

6,686 1,204

9,402 10,606
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b)

Participants’ takaful fund

Upto 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

2022

Due from
takaful
contract
holders

Due from
other
takaful/
retakaful
operators

Retakaful
recoveries
against
outstanding

Loans and
other
receivables

Aggregate

claims

Rupees in thousand

82,515

8,277

5,099

110

Over 3 years

17,222

1,307

47,715 878 148,331

10,112 - 23,487
6,493 - 7,909

1,348

90,902

23,628

65,668 878 179,727

Upto 1 year

1-2 years

2021

Due from
takaful
contract
holders

Due from
other
takaful/
retakaful
operators

outstanding

Retakaful
recoveries

Loans and
other
receivables

against Aggregate

claims

Rupees in thousand

53,395

3,686

17,635

2-3 years

184

2,317

4,372

35,896 3,685 110,611

13,563 21,521

436 - 2,937

57,165

24,324

49,895 3,685 135,069

The credit quality of Operator’s bank balances and deposits can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating

Financial institution

Rating

~ Short

term

Rating

agency

Long

term

Operator’s Fund

Participants’ Takaful Fund

2022

2021 2022 2021

Rupees in thousand

Meezan Bank

Askari Islamic Bank

Al

Al+

Al

S
The Bank of Khyber

A| Barkagankud TS

- Faysa‘Bank Ltd TS

. Bank A|Hab‘b|_td e

A-1
Al+

LPRCRA
LIORVIS
RO
LSS

CPRCRA

PACRA

60,640

36,497 22,079 9,658

1,602

2,095 86,781 91,785

- 1,262 112

29,826

28,285 4 4

- 916 5212

8

10 - -

92,076

66,887 111,042 106,671
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The management monitors exposure to credit risk in contribution receivable from customers through regular review of credit
exposure and prudent estimates of provisions for doubtful receivables.

The credit quality of amount due from other takaful & retakaful operators and retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims
can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

a) Operator’s Fund 2022 2021
..................................................................................................................................... Takaful/ [ Takaful/ S
Retakaful Retakaful
Receivable Receivable

A or above - 1,204
- 1,204
b) Participants’ takaful fund
2022 2021
Other Takaful / Retakaful Retakaful
. . Other Takaful / ) ‘
Retakaful recoveries against recoveries against

. ] ) Retakaful Receivable i )
Receivable Outstanding claims Outstanding claims

Rupees in thousand

A or above 23,628 65,667 24,324 49,895

23,628 65,667 24,324 49,895

36.4 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Operator will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities.
In respect of major loss event, there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out-
flows and expected retakaful recoveries.

The objective of the Operator’s liquidity management process is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its claim and other liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Operator's reputation. It includes measuring and monitoring the
future cash flows on daily, monthly and quarterly basis, maintaining sufficient cash reserves in bank accounts and a portfolio
of highly marketable financial assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption to cash flows.

The table below provides the maturity analysis of the Operator’s liabilities as at balance sheet date. The contractual maturities
of these liabilities at the year end have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. Financial liabilities not having a contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expected
date on which these liabilities will be settled.
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2022
Carrying Contractual Up to one More than
""""""""" amount cash flows year one year
Rupees in thousand
o FlnanC|aI Llabllltles OPF S
Otercredtosandaccorals 31922 3192 ste2 -
Tafetakat payaoe 63% 636 636 -
38,258 38,258 38,258 -
FlnanC|aI Liabilities - PTF
Provwsmn for O&ééndmg Ola\%; (mclud\ng'\‘é‘lﬁ'ﬁ) """""""" 140,103 140 103".“”‘” . 140103 - -
Takafu\/retakafg\”E;yab\e """"""""""""""""" 123,605 . 123 605"““”” . 123605 - -
Wakala fees pz;;;ag\e """"""""""""""""" 57,045 H 57,045"““"” - 57045 - -
Otercredtosandacoals w0727 to727 10727 -
331,480 331,480 331,480 -
2021
Carrying Contractual Up to one More than
""""""""" amount cash flows year one year
Rupees in thousand
FlnanC|aI Llab'l‘l';'t‘I;S oPFE
Other oredﬁors;r']‘a scovas 27,869 27 869"““”” . 27869 .
“ Takaful/retakaﬂJIHééyab\e """"""""""""""""" 5,849"“ . 5, 849"““”” - 5849 R
33,718 33,718 33,718

FlnanC|aI Liabilities - PTF

162,580

Other creditors and accruals

10,014

132,662

43,222

152,580

1OOW4

132,662

43 222

182,662

152 580

48 222 -

10,0W4

338,478

338,478

338,478

36.5

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of change in
market prices such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The Operator limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in
Government securities, equity and term finance certificates’ markets. In addition, the Operator actively monitors the key
factors that affect the underlying value of these securities.
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36.6

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to
the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The following table summarises the Company’s price risk as at December 31, 2022 and 2021. It shows the effects of an
estimated increase of 10% in the market prices as on those dates. A decrease of 10% in the fair values of equity securities
would affect it in a similar and opposite manner.

36.8

39

Fair value Price Eﬁect on

change fair value
..................... Rupeesm Rupeesm

Operator's Fund thousand thousand
December 31, 2022 157,303 +10% 15,730
e e 157303 10% R (15730)
oo 51 2001 e e W48866 +10% R 14837
e e W48866 10% R (14887)

Participants' Takaful Fund

Do 51 2005 e e 184629 +10% R 18468
e e W84629 10% R (1 8468)
oo 51 2001 e e W67858 +10% R 16785
e e W67858 10% R (1 6785)

Fair value
The fair value of all major financial assets is estimated to be not significantly different from their carrying values.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on its meeting held on

-

% @‘3/ (puioh? 5
Suleman Khalid Abdul Waheed AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive Director Chairman

@



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

No. of Shareholders From To Shares Held Percentage

304 1 100 11,929 0.0166

662 e e 1 01 500 - 544’704 03403
,‘1,‘89 e e 501 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 1';600 ....... {44’457 02009
396 e 1001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 5OOO 1009526 1404
11 1 e e 5001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ @;COO - é34’1 - 11602
s 10001 1500 656,00 09125
s 15001 20000 264,901 03684
0 20001 2500 208677 0318
0 25001 3000 280,000 03894
s 0001 3500 269576 08749
,‘,‘3 e e 35001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 46;600 ....... {09’023 01516
,‘,‘7 e e 40001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 45;600 - 599’260 04162
,‘,‘8 e e 45001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 56;600 - 589’055 05411
,‘,‘5 e e 50001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 55;000 ,‘.‘..557’019 03575
,‘,‘3 e e 55001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ GO,bOO - .1,‘75'476 0244
,‘,‘3 e e 60001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 65'1600 - .1,‘91 e 02661
,‘,‘1 e e 65001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 75;600 ......... e 00969
2 e 70001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 75000 ....... {471000 02044
3 e 75001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 80000 - 536,350 03287
1 e 80001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 85000 ......... - 01133
3 e 85001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ QOOOO - 562’382 03649
1 e 90001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 95000 ......... o 01307
1 e 95001 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 100000 ....... {OO’OOO 01391
R 100001 105,000 202970 02828
PR 10001 ©mso0 115,000 01509
PR 15001 o000 117,630 01635
o 120001 o aso0 121,256 01686
R 125001 130000 388500 05408
o 140001 o aaso0 141,787 01972
o 145001 ©aso00 150,000 02086
PR 150001 185,000 © a02.266 04204
PR 175001 180000 Coes22t 049
PR 180001 185,000 ~ ae5812 05088
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No. of Shareholders From To Shares Held Percentage
1 185,001 190,000 188,025 0.2615
PR 190001 © qeso0 191,844 02668
P 195001 200,000 ~ so7.225 05525
2 0001 205000 406,613 05655
om0 210000 205938 02864
20000 215000 210358 02926
2 s 280,000 457,733 06366
o g0 315000 315000 04381
S gooon a0 574000 05202
o gwmoon 400,000 899,446 05555
o smoon 510000 506810 07049
o spo0n 535000 582,30 07408
1 560001 """"""""" 565000 . 563,000 0783
o smoon 600,000 599,300 08336
PR 600001 oeso0 661,250 09197
oo 780000 779533 10842
""1 805001 """"""""" 810})00 ".‘...6'3‘08,162 1124
PR 855001 860,000 ~ ssgo6e 11946
PR 1495001 1500000 1,495,508 20799
PR 1980001 1,985,000 1980976 27551
PR 3110001 3115000 3,118,267 43209
PR 5700001 5,705,000 5,701,308 79208
o s 42,545,000 42,541,720 50,1663
1842 Company Total 71,901,895 100




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Particulars No. of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Individuals 1,818 22,760,387 31.65%

“Fmanc‘a\ |n3t|tut|ons 1 4560 019

"Mutua\ Funds . : 77053 o

"Chamab\emst R 42,600,734 .................... 5925%

Others 18 5,756,679 8.01%
Total 1,842 71,901,895 100.00%

HeIdBy
Particulars No. of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Associated companies, undertakings & related parties

Army Welfare Trust

Directors, CEO, their spouse & minor children
.'I_tG Na\/eed l\/lukhtar e
Rizwan Ullah Khan (Retd)
“AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd) S
. Br|g Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd) e
“l\/lahk R|ﬁat l\/lahmood
“ l\/Iohammad l\/lumr I\/Iahk

“ Sa|ma Akbar Khattak

\mrah Iqba\

RO U U U DU S S

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas &
pension funds (other than specified above)

Escorts Investment Bank Limited o - 1 4,562 0.01%

MuwalFunds
CDC TrusteeAKD Oppor’[un\t\/ Fund 1 779,533 1.08%

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights in
the Company
Muhammad Iqbal 1 5,701,303 7.93%

ﬁ'nd'v'dua's ocal . 1755 14435033 2008%

- forelgn 54 2,077,212 2.89%

ﬁﬁﬁéﬁtﬁhﬁéﬁféfﬂﬂfffffffffﬁﬁﬁﬁfffffﬂfffﬁffffffffffffﬂffffﬁffﬂ o8 sTeeTe BO1%.

Total 1,842 71,901,895 100.00%

@



NOTICE OF 28™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Notice is hereby given that the 28" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Askari General Insurance Limited (the Company)
will be held at Blue Lagoon, Rawalpindi on Friday April 28, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To confirm minutes of the 27th Annual General Meeting held on May 30, 2022.

2. To elect eight (8) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board in their meeting held on 15 March 2023 in accordance with
provision of section 1569(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 for a period of three (3) years commencing from April 21, 2023. The total
strength of Board of Directors shall be 9 including President & Chief Executive Officer of the Company, being a deemed Director
under section 188 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Following are the names of the retiring Directors, who are eligible for re-election:
. Lt Gen Naveed Mukhtar (Retd)

e AVM Mohammad Athar Shams (Retd)

e Rizwan Ullah Khan (Retd)

e Brig Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd)

. Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood

e Mr. M. Munir Malik

o Mr. Imran Igbal

e Ms. Saima Akbar Khattak

3. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the annual, Audited Financial Statements (Consolidated and Unconsolidated) of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 together with Chairman review, Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

As required under section 223(7) of the Companies Act 2017, Financial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the
website of the Company which can be downloaded from the following link:

https://www.agico.com.pk/reports.php

4, To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of 29% (Rs. 2.9 per share) for the year ended December 31, 2022, as
recommended by the Directors of the Company.

5. To appoint auditors for the year 2023 and to fix their remuneration. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have
recommended reappointing Yousuf Adil & Co. Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the company.

Special Business:

6. To consider, and if deemed fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolution for the transmission of the Annual Audited Accounts through
QR enabled code and weblink:

Resolved that “the circulation of Annual Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account, Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report etc. (*Annual
Audited Accounts’) of AGICO to its members through QR enabled code and weblink instead of CD/DVD/USB thereof at their
registered addresses, as per the Notification No. SRO 389 (1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan be and is hereby approved.”

Further Resolved that “the annual audited financial statements be also circulated to members through email, in case email has
been provided by the members of the company, without receiving consents from the members.

7. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

By order of the Board
Rawalpindi Haseeb Gul
April 07, 2023 Company Secretary
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ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

IMPORTANT NOTES:
1. Participation by Shareholders

Arrangements have been made by Company to facilitate the participation of the shareholders in AGM through online video
conference, in-person participation or through appointed proxies. To avalil this facility, the shareholders are requested to please
provide below particulars to our Company Secretary Office of the Company at cs@agico.com.pk before close of business hours on
April 20, 2023.

Folio/CDC Account No Name 3 CNIC No. 3 Cell No. ©  Email Address

The shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda items of the AGM on email: cs@agico.com.pk.
2. Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 21, 2023 to April 28, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers
received at our Share Registrars, Messrs. THK Associate (Pvt.) Limited, 32-C Jami Commercial Street -2, DHA Phase 7, Karachi, at
the close of business on April 20, 2023 will be treated in time for the purposes of entitlement of members to the final cash dividend
and for attending and voting at the AGM.

3. Change of Address

Members of the Company are requested to immediately notify the change in address if any, and ask for consolidation of folio
number, provided the member holds more than one folio, to the Share Registrar.

4. E-Voting /Voting by Postal Ballot

If the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected is more than the number of directors fixed under sub-section (1) of
section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017, then the company shall provide its members with options of e-voting or voting by postal
pballot in accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

Shareholders who wish to participate through e-voting, kindly provide immediately through a letter duly signed by them, i.e. Name,
Folio/ CDC Account No., E-mail address, contact number to the Share Registrar.

5. Deduction of Withholding Tax on the Amount of Dividend

Under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 withholding tax on dividend income will be deducted as follows:

For filers of Income Tax returns 15%
For non-filers of Income Tax retums 30%
To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, all the shareholders,

including joint shareholders, whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR,
despite the fact that they, or their joint holders, are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL by the close
of business on April 20, 2023.

6. Exemption fromTax and Deduction of Zakat:

Shareholders, who intend to claim exemption from tax and/or zakat (where applicable), are advised to ensure that they have
provided valid tax exemption certificates and zakat declaration to their respective broker/company’s shares registrar before April 20,
2023,

@
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7.

Taxation for Joint Shareholders

In order to ensure that holders of shares held in joint names or joint accounts are treated individually as filers or non-filers, all such
shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint holder(s) in respect of shares held
by them to our Share Registrar, on the address mentioned at end of notice, in writing before close of business on May 23, 2022 as

per format given below.

NS CNIC No.
Name of Principal - Shareholdin (copy to be
Shareholder/Joint : . 9 Py
proportions (%) attached)
Holders

Folio / CDS

Account No. Total Shares

Signature

NOTE: In the event of non-receipt of the information by April 20, 2023, each shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of

shares and the tax will be deducted accordingly.

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive dividend directly
into their respective bank account, shareholders are requested (if not already provided) to fill in Bank Mandate Form for Electronic
Credit of Cash Dividend produced below and also on the Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to
the Share Registrar of the Company, THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 32-C Jami Commercial Street-2, DHA Phase 7, Karachi, Pakistan,

in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC, electronic dividend mandate form must be directly submitted to shareholder’s brokers / participant

/ CDC account services.

In case of non-receipt of information, the Company will be obliged to withhold payment of dividend to such shareholders till provision

of prescribed details.

Name of Company

CNIC

PK

Please also note that in compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after completion of required procedure, all
dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from the date due and payable shall be deposited with the Federal Government.

Circulation of annual reports and notices of meetings:

In compliance with the Section 223(6) of Companies Act 2017, the Company has electronically transmitted the Annual Report
2022 through emall to shareholders whose email addresses are available with the Company’s Share Registrar, THK Associates
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10.

11.

12.

(Private) Limited. In those cases, where email addresses are not available with the Company Share Registrar, THK Associates
(Private) Limited, printed notice of AGM along with the weblink to download the said financial statements have been dispatched. The
Company would provide hard copies of the Annual Report to the Shareholders on their demand at their registered addresses, free
of cost, within one week of such request. Those members who desire to receive printed copy of Annual Report 2022 may send an
email request to company secretary at cs@agico.com.pk

Conversion of Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form:

The Shareholders having physical shares may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor Account directly with
the Central Depository Company (CDC) of Pakistan Limited to have their physical shares converted into electronic form. This will
facilitate them in many ways including safe custody and timely sale of shares. Additionally, Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017
(Act) requires that after the commencement of the Act from a date notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), a company having share capital, shall have shares in electronic form only. Every existing company shall be required to
replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by SECP, within a period
not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act.

Unclaimed Dividend

As per provision of Section 244 of the Act, any shares issued, or dividend declared by the Company which have remained
unclaimed/unpaid for a period of three years from the date on which it was due and payable are required to be deposited with
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the credit of Federal Government after issuance of notices to the shareholders
to file their claim.

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar, THK Associates
(Private) Limited,32-C, Jami Commercial Street-2, DHA Phase 7, Karachi, to collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividend. In
case, no claim is lodged with the company in the given time, the Company, after lapse of time period given in the notice in the
newspaper, shall proceed to deposit the unclaimed/unpaid amount and shares with the Federal Government pursuant to the
provision of Section 244(2) of the Act.

An updated list for unclaimed dividend/shares of the Company is available on the Company’s website www.agico.com.pk
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS:
Statement of material facts under Section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 with respect to Agenda ltem No. 2

Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 provides that a statement of material facts is annexed to the notice of the general meeting
called for the purpose of election of directors which shall indicate the justification for choosing the appointee for appointment as
an independent director. The Company is required to have at least three independent directors on its Board in accordance with
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The persons to be elected as independent directors
shall meet the criteria set out for independence under Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 and are listed on the data bank
of independent directors maintained by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance duly authorized by Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan. Further, their selection shall be made based on their respective competencies, requisite skills, knowledge
and experience and will be elected as per section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Documents/information required to contest Election of Directors

Any person who seeks to contest the election of Directors shall, whether he/she is a retiring director or otherwise, file with the
Company the following documents and information at its registered office not later than fourteen days before the day of the above
said meeting:
o His/her Folio Number/CDC Investors Account Number/CDC Sub-Account Number;
. Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the election of directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act,
2017,
. Consent to act as Director under:
a. Companies Act, 2017; and
o} Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019;

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
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. Profile along with his/her address to be placed on the website of the Company;
. An attested copy of CNIC or Passport (in case of foreigner);
. A declaration that he/she is not ineligible to become a director under:
a. Companies Act, 2017;
b Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019; and
c Insurance Companies (Sound and Prudent Management) Regulations, 2012(Note).
d Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers-2016
e PSX Regulations
He/she is aware of the duties and powers of a director under.
a. Companies Act, 2017;
b Securities Act, 2015;
¢ Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019;
d Listing of Companies and Securities Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange;
e Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company; and
f. Any other applicable laws/rules/regulations/codes etc.
o Any other document/information he/she may think necessary.

Note: Annexures A, B & C can be downloaded from the Company's website under the tab “Election of Directors”

Approval from SECP is needed to become director of the Company.

13.

14.

Availability of Audited Financial Statement on Company’s Website:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been made available on the
Company’s website www.agico.com.pk

Statement Under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 with respect to Agenda Item No. 6

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”) through its Notification No. S.R.O 389()/2023 dated March 21,
2023, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors
report, etc. (“annual audited financial statements”) to its members through QR enabled code and weblink. A shareholder may
request the Company Secretary or Share Registrar of the Company to provide hard copy of Annual Audited Accounts and the same
will be provided at shareholder’s registered addresses, free of cost within one week of the demand. In this regard, email address of
the Company Secretary / Share Registrar will be placed on website of the Company. A shareholder may also prefer to receive hard
copies for all future Annual Audited Accounts. In view of the above, it is proposed that the Ordinary Resolution at Agenda 6 of the
Notice of AGM be passed.

None of the Directors of the Company have any personal interest in the afore said Special Business except in their capacity as
Shareholders or Directors of the Company.

SPECIAL NOTES

A

For Attending the meeting:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations shall
authenticate his/her original valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the original Passport at the time of attending the
meeting.

The shareholders registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, 1.0 numbers and account numbers in CDS.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be
produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.
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B. For appointment of proxies:

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote for
him/her. No person shall act as proxy, who is not a member of the Company except that Government of Pakistan/Corporate entity
may appoint a person who is not a member of the Company. If the member is corporate entity (other than Government of Pakistan)
its common seal should be affixed on the instrument.

ii. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend anyone meeting. If any member appoints more than one
proxy for anyone meeting and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited with the company, all such instruments of proxy
shall be rendered invalid. The instrument appointing a proxy duly completed, together with Power of Attorney or Board Resolution, if
any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited with the Company Secretary, Askari General
Insurance Company Limited, 3rd Floor, AWT Plaza, The Mall, Rawalpindi, not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting.

i.  For attending the meeting and appointing proxies, CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in
Circular No. 1 of 2000 dated January 26, 2000, issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The rights of
the members and their proxies exercisable during meetings and all other relevant information are listed in S.137 of the Companies
Act 2017, which can be easily accessed on the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) website.

iv.  Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the persons whose registration details are uploaded as per
the Regulations shall submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.

v.  The proxy form shall be withessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
vi.  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
vii. ~ The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

viil. In case of corporate entity being a Member, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of — attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee / attorney shall have to be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form to the Company.

Contact Information:
For any query/problem/information, the shareholders may contact the Company Secretary and/or the Share Registrar at the following:

Company Representative
Company Secretary
051-9028206, 051-9028101
cs@agico.com.pk

Shares Registrar

THK Associates (Private) Limited
32-C, Jami Commercial Street-2,
DHA Phase 7, Karachi
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PROXY FORM

ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

I/We of being
Member(s) of askari general insurance co. Itd, holding ordinary shares, hereby
appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of

or failing him/her of

who is also a member of the company, as my/ our proxy to vote for me/us, and on my/our behalf at the
28" Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on Friday 28" April, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. and at
any adjournment thereof.

Folio No. CDC Account No. Signature

Participant ID Account No.

Rs. 50 Revenue Stamp

Signed this day of 2023.
Witness:
Signature
Name
Address

CNIC No./Passport No.

Notes:

1. Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

2. The Proxy Form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours
before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she is a member of the Company.

4. CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested Photocopy of their
Computerized National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the
Company.
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INSURANCE

Head Office:

UAM:

FPh:
ax.

Ernail:

3rd Floor, AWT Plaza, The Mall
Rawalpindi, Pakistan
+92-51-111-444-687
+92-51-9272425-7
+92-51-9272424
info@agico.com.pk

DESIGN MEDIA SOLUTIONS 0335-5557717
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